
 

collaborate. 
innovate. 

lead. 

 
Executive Committee 

                           

MEETING AGENDA 

 

 

Meeting Details 

Date: Friday, August 11, 2023 
Time: 1:00 p.m. 
Location: Administrative Office 

584 NW University Blvd. 
Suite 100 
Port St. Lucie, FL 34986 
 

MS Teams Virtual Meeting Access: 

Access Code: 308 897 726# 
Phone: 772-800-5467 
URL: Click here to join the meeting  
 
 

 

 

Opening Remarks 

1. Welcome & Attendance  

Voting Items 

2. Review and Approve May and June Financial Reports - PY2022-2023 
3. Review and Approve WIOA Youth - Services Subrecipient Contract for 

PY 2023-2024 
4. Review and Approve WIOA Youth - Incentive Payment Policy Revisions 
5. Review and Approve WIOA Youth - Supportive Services Policy Revisions 
6. Review and Approve WIOA - Individual Training Account Policy Revisions 
7. Review and Approve UPDATED Board Member Contract/COI Exemption 

Request - PY 2023-2024 
8. Review and Approve One-Stop Operator - RFP 23-002-OSO 
9. Review and Approve Executive Staff Annual Performance-Based Bonus 

Recommendations - PY 2022-2023 
 

Information/Discussion  

10. Review and Approve LWDB 20 Budget - PY 2023-2024 
11. President’s Report 

• 2023 Workforce Professional Development Summit 
12. Adjournment  

 

 

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NWM2YzZhNzctYWY2NS00NDQyLThiMWEtMzkyY2ZiMWFhOGRj%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%2212fc6d77-599f-42ec-b88a-bea53946a490%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22947c87c3-3e7c-4b87-822b-67c23a1bb21b%22%7d


Agenda Item 2

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Title May and June Financial Reports - PY2022-2023

Strategic Plans/Goals Optimal Use of Resources

Policy/Plan/Law Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)/Role of LWDB’s 

Action Requested Review and Approve May and June Financial Reports - PY 2022-2023

Background The Board approved the budget for PY 2021-2022. The Executive 
Committee regularly reviews budgets, all amendments to the budget, 
and monthly expenditures. 

Staff 
Recommendations

Review and Approve May and June Financial Reports - PY2022-2023

Supporting Material May and June Financial Reports - PY2022-2023

Board Staff Lisa Delligatti  
CFO 
ldelligatti@careersourcerc.com 
(866) 482-4473 ext. 430

2 of 84

mailto:ldelligatti@careersourcerc.com


LW
D

B
 2

0
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 F

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

A
s 

of
 M

ay
 3

1, 
20

23

PY
 2

2-
23

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
9

6
4,

6
46

$
 

79
5

,9
6

0
$

 
85

7,
13

3
$

 
-

$
 

77
3,

41
7

$
   

   
   

  
48

1,8
5

5
$

   
   

   
  

24
8,

6
45

$
   

   
   

17
8,

9
80

$
   

   
   

 
33

9
,9

5
4

$
   

   
-

$
 

PY
 2

2-
23

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 
-

$
 

24
6

,4
6

0
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
32

,7
21

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
A

dd
iti

on
al

 F
un

ds
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
R

et
ai

ne
d 

by
 D

EO
 fo

r M
er

it 
Sa

la
rie

s
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
(3

19
,0

6
5

)
$

   
   

   
-

$
 

(17
9

,5
22

)
$

   
   

   
(11

6
,2

0
7)

$
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
C

ar
ry

fo
rw

ar
d 

to
 P

Y
 2

3-
24

-
$

 
(5

17
,2

87
)

$
 

(5
78

,5
9

0
)

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

(4
9

,0
86

)
$

   
   

   
  

(10
1,4

6
1)

$
   

   
   

   
(4

1,9
35

)
$

   
   

   
  

(11
,5

34
)

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

-
$

 
C

ar
ry

fo
rw

ar
d 

fr
om

 P
Y

 2
1-

22
-

$
 

9
85

,7
0

0
$

 
5

9
4,

6
18

$
 

-
$

 
80

,2
6

5
$

   
   

   
  

87
,8

5
9

$
   

   
   

   
17

,2
32

$
   

   
   

   
11

,3
28

$
   

   
   

   
 

19
6

,0
0

4
$

   
   

71
,6

14
$

   
   

   
   

 

   
  T

O
TA

L
-

$
 

9
6

4,
6

46
$

   
   

   
   

 
1,

5
10

,8
33

$
   

   
   

   
8

73
,1

6
1

$
   

   
   

   
  

32
,7

2
1

$
   

   
   

  
48

5
,5

31
$

   
   

   
46

8
,2

5
3

$
   

   
   

44
,4

2
0

$
   

   
   

 
6

2
,5

6
7

$
   

   
   

 
5

35
,9

5
8

$
   

  
71

,6
14

$
   

   
   

   

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 D
R

A
W

N
 D

O
W

N
 Y

TD
IN

D
IR

EC
T

 1
0

 A
D

U
LT

 
 1

2
 D

W
 

 1
1 

Y
O

U
TH

 
 1

2
2

 F
lo

ri
da

 
R

eb
ui

ld
 

 2
0

 W
P

 
 2

2
 S

N
A

P
 

 2
4 

LV
ER

 
 2

5
 D

V
O

P
 

 2
71

 R
ES

EA
 

 2
8

2
 T

A
A

 

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns
75

7,
19

4
$

   
   

   
   

  
2

2
,5

0
0

$
 

14
0

,7
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

37
0

,6
8

8
$

   
   

  
2

31
,2

78
$

   
   

   
 

2
0

,3
43

$
   

   
   

 
36

,0
8

4
$

   
   

   
 

2
49

,8
9

6
$

   
  

-
$

 

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
 

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
ds

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
5

,1
12

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
 

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r 

M
er

it 
S

al
ar

ie
s

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
 

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 P
Y

 2
3-

2
4

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
 

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
fr

om
 P

Y
 2

1-
2

2
-

$
 

9
8

5
,7

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

5
9

4,
6

18
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

8
0

,2
6

5
$

   
   

   
  

8
7,

8
5

9
$

   
   

   
  

17
,2

32
$

   
   

   
  

11
,3

2
8

$
   

   
   

   
19

6
,0

0
4

$
   

  
2

0
9

$
 

   
  T

O
TA

L
75

7,
19

4
$

   
   

   
   

  
1,

0
0

8
,2

0
0

$
   

   
   

  
73

5
,3

18
$

   
   

   
   

 
5

,1
12

$
   

   
   

   
  

45
0

,9
5

3
$

   
   

  
31

9
,1

37
$

   
   

   
 

37
,5

75
$

   
   

   
  

47
,4

12
$

   
   

   
  

44
5

,9
0

0
$

   
  

2
0

9
$

 

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

te
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
ec

ei
ve

d
78

.4
9

%
6

6
.7

3%
8

4.
2

1%
15

.6
2

%
9

2
.8

8
%

6
8

.1
5

%
8

4.
5

9
%

75
.7

8
%

8
3.

2
0

%
0

.2
9

%

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

-
$

 
6

6
,1

76
$

 
12

4,
79

8
$

 
14

,9
6

4
$

 
6

18
$

 
5

8
,7

31
$

   
   

   
   

38
,8

71
$

   
   

   
   

3,
0

2
8

$
   

   
   

   
3,

9
8

9
$

   
   

   
   

5
1,

9
0

7
$

   
   

  
8

$
 

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
37

3,
9

6
9

$
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
   

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

17
7,

14
6

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

   
A

llo
ca

te
d 

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

ts
(5

5
1,1

15
)

$
   

   
   

   
22

1,2
84

$
 

14
,8

79
$

 
14

,9
6

4
$

 
6

18
$

 
13

,5
41

$
 

38
,8

71
$

   
   

   
   

 
3,

0
28

$
   

   
   

   
 

3,
9

89
$

   
   

   
   

 
5

1,9
0

7
$

   
   

   
8

$
 

   
R

ec
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
-

$
 

(15
5

,10
8)

$
 

10
9

,9
19

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

45
,18

9
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

   
Tr

av
el

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

P
ro

gr
am

 T
ra

in
in

g
0

$
 

6
12

,1
0

6
$

   
   

   
   

  
8

77
,0

78
$

 
76

4,
2

8
5

$
   

   
   

   
4,

48
4

$
   

   
   

   
34

4,
47

3
$

   
   

   
2

71
,2

44
$

   
   

   
 

32
,6

9
7

$
   

   
   

 
41

,5
12

$
   

   
   

   
37

7,
0

14
$

   
   

2
0

2
$

 
  W

IO
A

 Y
ou

th
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
6

32
,7

5
5

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
   

Sa
la

rie
s 

an
d 

 B
en

ef
its

 
20

4,
12

3
$

   
   

   
  

86
7,

5
5

5
$

 
5

4,
9

23
$

 
22

,2
11

$
 

3,
45

2
$

   
   

   
   

 
33

,8
0

6
$

   
   

   
   

17
7,

81
9

$
   

   
   

   
5

,9
22

$
   

   
   

   
 

7,
37

9
$

 
25

2,
86

8
$

   
  

13
$

 
   

C
on

tr
ac

t L
ab

or
 

-
$

 
13

,9
75

$
 

1,2
70

$
 

-
$

 
4

$
 

89
$

 
23

,8
23

$
   

   
   

   
29

$
 

48
$

 
19

,2
11

$
   

   
   

  
-

$
 

   
In

te
rn

sh
ip

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
   

In
ce

nt
iv

es
/S

tip
en

ds
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

   
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
N

on
-IT

A
-

$
 

9
0

0
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

   
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
IT

A
-

$
 

6
0

4
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-IT

A
/O

ST
/T

A
A

-
$

 
18

6
,4

9
6

$
 

6
,5

37
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

-O
JT

-
$

 
71

,9
6

6
$

 
4,

71
7

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-C

us
t./

Em
pl

oy
ed

 W
or

ke
r

-
$

 
39

,2
20

$
 

10
,5

0
0

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

   
W

EX
/ I

nt
er

ns
hi

ps
/ P

ar
tic

ip
an

t W
ag

es
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

   
Tr

av
el

9
9

8
$

 
4,

73
6

$
 

42
7

$
 

28
7

$
 

23
$

 
6

5
7

$
 

1,2
5

8
$

 
2,

35
5

$
   

   
   

   
 

1,5
26

$
 

1,5
47

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

   
O

ne
 S

to
p 

Sh
ar

ed
 C

os
ts

-
$

 
17

4,
9

73
$

 
10

,9
22

$
 

-
$

 
5

9
7

$
 

70
,2

83
$

   
   

   
   

41
,12

2
$

 
18

,6
23

$
   

   
   

   
24

,5
9

9
$

   
   

   
  

5
8,

9
49

$
   

   
  

83
$

 
   

O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

46
,6

5
1

$
   

   
   

   
 

10
4,

37
1

$
 

8,
19

2
$

 
10

2,
19

5
$

 
12

6
$

 
42

,3
45

$
   

   
   

   
20

,9
18

$
   

   
   

   
 

3,
0

49
$

   
   

   
   

 
6

,13
8

$
 

20
,7

25
$

   
   

  
10

3
$

 
A

llo
ca

te
d 

Pr
og

ra
m

 In
di

re
ct

(2
5

1,7
72

)
$

   
   

   
 

10
1,0

9
2

$
 

6
,7

9
7

$
 

6
,8

36
$

 
28

2
$

 
6

,18
6

$
 

17
,7

5
8

$
   

   
   

   
 

1,3
84

$
 

1,8
22

$
 

23
,7

13
$

   
   

   
3

$
 

R
ec

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n

-
$

 
(9

5
3,

78
2)

$
   

   
   

   
 

77
2,

79
4

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

19
1,1

0
7

$
   

   
   

   
(11

,4
5

3)
$

   
   

   
   

 
1,3

35
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

To
ta

l  
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
0

$
 

6
78

,2
8

2
$

   
   

   
   

 
1,

0
0

1,
8

76
$

   
   

   
   

77
9

,2
49

$
   

   
   

   
5

,1
0

2
$

   
   

   
   

 
40

3,
2

0
4

$
   

   
  

31
0

,1
15

$
   

   
   

  
35

,7
2

6
$

   
   

   
 

45
,5

0
1

$
   

   
   

  
42

8
,9

2
0

$
   

  
2

10
$

 

Fu
nd

in
g 

O
ve

r/
(u

nd
er

) e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
0

$
 

78
,9

13
$

 
6

,3
2

4
$

 
(4

3,
9

31
)

$
   

   
   

   
  

10
$

 
47

,7
5

0
$

   
   

   
  

9
,0

2
2

$
   

   
   

   
 

1,
8

49
$

   
   

   
   

 
1,

9
11

$
 

16
,9

79
$

   
   

  
(1

)
$

 

Y
TD

 %
 o

f B
ud

ge
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ex
pe

nd
ed

70
.3

1%
6

6
.3

1%
8

9
.2

4%
15

.5
9

%
8

3.
0

4%
6

6
.2

3%
8

0
.4

3%
72

.7
2

%
8

0
.0

3%
0

.2
9

%

2
8

2
 T

A
A

11
 Y

O
U

TH
10

 A
D

U
LT

IN
D

IR
EC

T
2

0
 W

P
12

2
 F

lo
ri

da
 

R
eb

ui
ld

12
 D

W
2

2
 S

N
A

P
2

4 
LV

ER
2

71
 R

ES
EA

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

TO
TA

L 
A

V
A

IL
A

B
LE

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

2
5

 D
V

O
P

S:
\W

D
Ac

ct
\F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3\
11

 - 
M

ay
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3 
M

ay
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t

1

3 of 84



LW
D

B
 2

0
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 F

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

A
s 

of
 M

ay
 3

1, 
20

23

PY
 2

2-
23

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns

PY
 2

2-
23

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
ds

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r M

er
it 

Sa
la

rie
s

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 P
Y

 2
3-

24
C

ar
ry

fo
rw

ar
d 

fr
om

 P
Y

 2
1-

22

   
  T

O
TA

L

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 D
R

A
W

N
 D

O
W

N
 Y

TD

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
ds

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r 

M
er

it 
S

al
ar

ie
s

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 P
Y

 2
3-

2
4

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
fr

om
 P

Y
 2

1-
2

2

   
  T

O
TA

L

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

te
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
ec

ei
ve

d

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
   

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

   
A

llo
ca

te
d 

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

ts
   

R
ec

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

   
Tr

av
el

P
ro

gr
am

 T
ra

in
in

g
  W

IO
A

 Y
ou

th
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
 

   
C

on
tr

ac
t L

ab
or

 
   

In
te

rn
sh

ip
   

In
ce

nt
iv

es
/S

tip
en

ds
   

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

N
on

-IT
A

   
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
IT

A
   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

-IT
A

/O
ST

/T
A

A
   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

-O
JT

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-C

us
t./

Em
pl

oy
ed

 W
or

ke
r

   
W

EX
/ I

nt
er

ns
hi

ps
/ P

ar
tic

ip
an

t W
ag

es
   

Tr
av

el
   

O
ne

 S
to

p 
Sh

ar
ed

 C
os

ts
   

O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

A
llo

ca
te

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
 In

di
re

ct
R

ec
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n

To
ta

l  
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s

Fu
nd

in
g 

O
ve

r/
(u

nd
er

) e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s

Y
TD

 %
 o

f B
ud

ge
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ex
pe

nd
ed

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

TO
TA

L 
A

V
A

IL
A

B
LE

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

-
$

 
17

8,
0

0
0

$
   

   
   

 
1,1

44
,7

45
$

   
   

   
 

6
2,

5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
3,

0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

12
5

,0
0

0
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

-
$

 
18

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
74

,3
42

$
 

30
0

,0
0

0
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

(6
6

,7
6

3)
$

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
(1,

5
0

0
,0

0
0

)
$

   
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

12
9

,3
10

$
   

   
   

  
-

$
 

16
5

,9
0

8
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

 
16

6
,5

10
$

   
   

   
   

6
5

,5
77

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

6
2

,5
47

$
   

   
   

 
35

8
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

1,
31

0
,6

5
3

$
   

   
  

6
2

,5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

16
6

,5
10

$
   

   
   

  
6

5
,5

77
$

 
1,

5
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

19
9

,3
42

$
   

   
   

   
  

30
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

 3
9

 D
W

G
 

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 
 3

9
0

 D
W

G
 

H
ur

ri
ca

ne
 Ia

n 
 4

0
 W

TP
 

 4
70

 A
pp

re
nt

 
N

av
ig

at
or

 
 4

73
 R

ec
ov

er
y 

N
av

ig
at

or
 

 4
74

 R
ap

id
 

R
es

po
ns

e 
N

av
ig

at
or

 
 4

75
 F

A
W

A
 

 4
8

 F
.A

.T
.E

.S
. 

 7
9

2
 Y

ou
th

 S
O

S
 

S
LC

 
  O

th
er

 N
on

 N
FA

 

-
$

 
17

8
,0

0
0

$
   

   
  

5
47

,9
74

$
   

   
   

 
6

1,
5

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

17
8

,2
0

0
$

   
   

   
  

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

-
$

 
37

,1
12

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
6

7,
72

8
$

 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
19

9
,3

42
$

   
   

   
   

  
16

9
,8

35
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

4,
0

9
8

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
 

16
5

,9
0

8
$

   
   

   
 

-
$

 
13

6
,0

40
$

   
   

   
 

17
,6

32
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

4,
0

9
8

$
   

   
   

   
2

15
,1

12
$

   
   

   
 

71
3,

8
8

2
$

   
   

   
  

6
1,

5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
13

6
,0

40
$

   
   

   
 

17
,6

32
$

 
17

8
,2

0
0

$
   

   
   

  
19

9
,3

42
$

   
   

   
   

  
16

9
,8

35
$

   
   

   
   

  
6

7,
72

8
$

 

6
.5

5
%

6
0

.0
9

%
5

4.
47

%
0

.0
0

%
8

1.
70

%
2

6
.8

9
%

11
.8

8
%

10
0

.0
0

%
5

6
.6

1%
0

.0
0

%

5
33

$
 

2
6

,8
74

$
   

   
   

 
8

6
,8

8
8

$
   

   
   

   
6

,6
6

6
$

 
16

,6
9

5
$

   
   

   
   

1,
5

39
$

 
2

0
,0

6
7

$
   

   
   

   
5

,4
45

$
 

14
,6

8
2

$
 

8
,6

37
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
5

33
$

 
26

,8
74

$
   

   
   

  
86

,8
88

$
   

   
   

   
 

6
,6

6
6

$
 

16
,6

9
5

$
   

   
   

   
 

1,5
39

$
 

20
,0

6
7

$
   

   
   

   
 

5
,4

45
$

 
14

,6
82

$
 

8,
6

37
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 

3,
5

47
$

   
   

   
   

 
17

6
,2

72
$

   
   

   
6

2
7,

8
19

$
   

   
   

  
47

,8
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

10
7,

8
5

1
$

   
   

   
  

11
,3

5
3

$
 

14
3,

9
8

4
$

   
   

   
  

37
,5

39
$

 
9

4,
9

9
5

$
 

6
5

,8
9

1
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
6

77
$

 
22

,8
84

$
   

   
   

  
39

9
,0

9
0

$
   

   
   

  
34

,8
0

9
$

   
   

   
   

 
4,

9
70

$
 

8,
5

18
$

 
5

9
,9

9
3

$
   

   
   

   
 

16
,2

23
$

 
3,

9
12

$
 

24
,8

38
$

 
2,

40
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

10
,7

18
$

   
   

   
   

 
21

,2
38

$
 

1,2
33

$
 

86
,0

5
5

$
   

   
   

   
16

$
 

1,9
71

$
 

10
0

$
 

7,
5

9
7

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
3,

9
75

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
1,7

37
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

81
8

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

6
0

0
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

27
2

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
4,

9
5

0
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

1,5
6

8
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

8,
5

0
0

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
12

4,
5

5
8

$
   

   
   

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
73

,5
0

9
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
5

6
$

 
2,

34
2

$
 

29
8

$
 

1,2
9

5
$

 
5

1
$

 
33

7
$

 
5

4
$

 
83

$
 

74
3

$
 

-
$

 
4,

10
4

$
 

85
,9

71
$

 
5

,4
27

$
 

23
$

 
1,4

13
$

 
9

,0
6

4
$

 
2,

9
87

$
 

7
$

 
15

,7
14

$
 

22
6

$
 

1,6
76

$
 

74
,6

9
2

$
   

   
   

   
 

3,
0

37
$

 
7,

88
2

$
 

6
5

1
$

 
6

3,
45

1
$

 
1,3

6
6

$
 

1,4
42

$
 

19
,0

83
$

 
24

3
$

 
12

,2
77

$
   

   
   

   
39

,6
9

4
$

   
   

   
   

 
3,

0
46

$
 

7,
6

27
$

 
70

3
$

 
9

,16
8

$
 

2,
48

7
$

 
6

,7
0

8
$

 
3,

9
46

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

-
$

 
-

$
 

4,
0

8
0

$
   

   
   

   
2

0
3,

14
5

$
   

   
  

71
4,

70
7

$
   

   
   

  
5

4,
5

17
$

   
   

   
   

 
12

4,
5

46
$

   
   

   
 

12
,8

9
2

$
 

16
4,

0
5

1
$

   
   

   
  

42
,9

8
4

$
 

10
9

,6
77

$
   

   
   

   
  

74
,5

2
8

$
 

18
$

 
11

,9
6

7
$

   
   

   
   

(8
2

5
)

$
 

6
,9

8
3

$
 

11
,4

9
4

$
   

   
   

   
 

4,
74

0
$

 
14

,1
49

$
   

   
   

   
  

15
6

,3
5

8
$

   
   

   
   

  
6

0
,1

5
7

$
 

(6
,8

0
0

)
$

 

6
.5

2
%

5
6

.7
4%

5
4.

5
3%

0
.0

0
%

74
.8

0
%

19
.6

6
%

10
.9

4%
2

1.
5

6
%

36
.5

6
%

0
.0

0
%

 O
th

er
 N

on
 N

FA
47

3 
R

ec
ov

er
y 

N
av

ig
at

or
40

 W
TP

79
2

 Y
ou

th
 S

O
S

 
S

LC
48

 F
.A

.T
.E

.S
.

47
4 

R
ap

id
 

R
es

po
ns

e 
N

av
ig

at
or

47
5

 F
A

W
A

47
0

 A
pp

re
nt

 
N

av
ig

at
or

39
0

 D
W

G
 

H
ur

ri
ca

ne
 Ia

n
39

 D
W

G
 

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

S:
\W

D
Ac

ct
\F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3\
11

 - 
M

ay
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3 
M

ay
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t

2

4 of 84



LW
D

B
 2

0
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 F

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

A
s 

of
 M

ay
 3

1, 
20

23

PY
 2

2-
23

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns

PY
 2

2-
23

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
ds

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r M

er
it 

Sa
la

rie
s

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 P
Y

 2
3-

24
C

ar
ry

fo
rw

ar
d 

fr
om

 P
Y

 2
1-

22

   
  T

O
TA

L

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 D
R

A
W

N
 D

O
W

N
 Y

TD

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
ds

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r 

M
er

it 
S

al
ar

ie
s

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 P
Y

 2
3-

2
4

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
fr

om
 P

Y
 2

1-
2

2

   
  T

O
TA

L

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

te
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
ec

ei
ve

d

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
   

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

   
A

llo
ca

te
d 

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

ts
   

R
ec

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

   
Tr

av
el

P
ro

gr
am

 T
ra

in
in

g
  W

IO
A

 Y
ou

th
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
 

   
C

on
tr

ac
t L

ab
or

 
   

In
te

rn
sh

ip
   

In
ce

nt
iv

es
/S

tip
en

ds
   

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

N
on

-IT
A

   
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
IT

A
   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

-IT
A

/O
ST

/T
A

A
   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

-O
JT

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-C

us
t./

Em
pl

oy
ed

 W
or

ke
r

   
W

EX
/ I

nt
er

ns
hi

ps
/ P

ar
tic

ip
an

t W
ag

es
   

Tr
av

el
   

O
ne

 S
to

p 
Sh

ar
ed

 C
os

ts
   

O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

A
llo

ca
te

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
 In

di
re

ct
R

ec
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n

To
ta

l  
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s

Fu
nd

in
g 

O
ve

r/
(u

nd
er

) e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s

Y
TD

 %
 o

f B
ud

ge
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ex
pe

nd
ed

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

TO
TA

L 
A

V
A

IL
A

B
LE

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

9
,1

5
0

,8
35

$
   

   
   

  

42
6

,4
6

0
$

   
   

   
   

  

32
,7

2
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

  37
4,

34
2

$
   

   
   

   
  (6

14
,7

9
4)

$
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,8

6
6

,6
5

6
)

$
   

   
   

2
,5

71
,9

2
5

$
   

   
   

  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

,0
74

,8
33

$
   

   
   

 

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

A
ct

ua
l

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

B
ud

ge
t

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
%

Ex
pe

nd
ed

2
,7

9
4,

35
7

$
   

   
   

9
,1

5
0

,8
35

$
   

   
   

  
6

,3
5

6
,4

78
$

   
   

   
30

.5
37

%

37
,1

12
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

42
6

,4
6

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
38

9
,3

48
$

   
   

   
   

8
.7

0
2

%

6
7,

72
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

32
,7

2
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
(3

5
,0

0
7)

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
0

6
.9

8
6

%

37
4,

2
8

9
$

   
   

   
   

37
4,

34
2

$
   

   
   

   
  

5
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9

9
.9

8
6

%

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(6

14
,7

9
4)

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

,8
6

6
,6

5
6

)
$

   
   

   

2
,2

9
6

,8
9

3
$

   
   

   
2

,5
71

,9
2

5
$

   
   

   
  

2
75

,0
32

$
   

   
   

   
8

9
.3

0
6

%

5
,5

70
,3

79
$

   
   

   
9

,0
74

,8
33

$
   

   
   

 
3,

5
0

4,
45

4
$

   
   

  
6

1.
38

3%

6
1.

38
%

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

A
ct

ua
l

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

B
ud

ge
t

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
U

nd
er

/(
O

ve
r)

%
Ex

pe
nd

ed

5
5

1,
11

5
$

   
   

   
   

  
6

14
,4

8
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

6
3,

36
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

8
9

.6
9

%
37

3,
9

6
9

$
   

   
   

   
 

46
9

,15
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
9

5
,18

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

79
.7

1%
17

7,
14

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
5

,3
23

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

1,8
23

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
12

1.9
0

%
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(0

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

4,
6

42
,1

9
6

$
   

   
   

7,
0

8
9

,1
9

8
$

   
   

   
  

2
,4

47
,0

0
2

$
   

   
  

6
5

.5
%

6
32

,7
5

5
$

   
   

   
   

 
75

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

11
7,

24
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

84
.4

%
2,

20
5

,9
83

$
   

   
   

 
3,

23
2,

78
5

$
   

   
   

   
1,0

26
,8

0
2

$
   

   
   

 
6

8.
2%

18
9

,7
78

$
   

   
   

   
  

19
9

,3
11

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

,5
33

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
9

5
.2

%
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5
,7

12
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

,5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,7

88
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

34
.6

%
2,

31
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,5

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
8,

18
2

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
22

.1%
87

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

5
,18

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
4,

30
9

$
   

   
   

   
  

0
.8

%
19

7,
9

83
$

   
   

   
   

  
24

7,
14

4
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

49
,16

1
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
.1%

78
,2

5
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
6

5
1,5

5
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
5

73
,3

0
1

$
   

   
   

   
  

12
.0

%
5

8,
22

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
5

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
(8

,2
20

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
6

.4
%

19
8,

0
6

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
32

8,
46

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
13

0
,3

9
3

$
   

   
   

   
  

6
0

.3
%

19
,0

75
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

24
,8

72
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

5
,7

9
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
76

.7
%

5
24

,8
5

9
$

   
   

   
   

 
74

4,
87

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
22

0
,0

16
$

   
   

   
   

 
70

.5
%

5
28

,3
19

$
   

   
   

   
  

72
8,

0
15

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

9
,6

9
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

72
.6

%
(0

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

(0
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

5
,1

9
3,

31
1

$
   

   
   

  
7,

70
3,

6
79

$
   

   
   

  
2

,5
10

,3
6

8
$

   
   

   
6

7.
4%

37
7,

0
6

8
$

   
   

   
   

5
7.

2
3%Y

EA
R

 T
O

 D
A

TE
 T

O
TA

LS

S:
\W

D
Ac

ct
\F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3\
11

 - 
M

ay
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3 
M

ay
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t

3

5 of 84



LW
D

B
 2

0
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 F

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

A
s 

of
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

0
23

PY
 2

2-
23

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
9

6
4,

6
46

$
   

   
   

   
  

79
5

,9
6

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
85

7,
13

3
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
77

3,
41

7
$

   
   

   
  

48
1,8

5
5

$
   

   
   

  
24

8,
6

45
$

   
   

   
17

8,
9

80
$

   
   

   
 

33
9

,9
5

4
$

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

PY
 2

2-
23

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

6
,4

6
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
,7

21
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
A

dd
iti

on
al

 F
un

ds
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r M

er
it 

Sa
la

rie
s

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

(3
19

,0
6

5
)

$
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

(17
9

,5
22

)
$

   
   

   
(11

6
,2

0
7)

$
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 P
Y

 2
3-

24
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(5

17
,2

87
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
(5

78
,5

9
0

)
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

(4
9

,0
86

)
$

   
   

   
  

(10
1,4

6
1)

$
   

   
   

   
(4

1,9
35

)
$

   
   

   
  

(11
,5

34
)

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
fr

om
 P

Y
 2

1-
22

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

9
85

,7
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
5

9
4,

6
18

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
,2

6
5

$
   

   
   

  
87

,8
5

9
$

   
   

   
   

17
,2

32
$

   
   

   
   

11
,3

28
$

   
   

   
   

 
19

6
,0

0
4

$
   

   
71

,6
14

$
   

   
   

   
 

   
  T

O
TA

L
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

6
4,

6
46

$
   

   
   

   
 

1,
5

10
,8

33
$

   
   

   
   

8
73

,1
6

1
$

   
   

   
   

  
32

,7
2

1
$

   
   

   
  

48
5

,5
31

$
   

   
   

46
8

,2
5

3
$

   
   

   
44

,4
2

0
$

   
   

   
 

6
2

,5
6

7
$

   
   

   
 

5
35

,9
5

8
$

   
  

71
,6

14
$

   
   

   
   

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 D
R

A
W

N
 D

O
W

N
 Y

TD
IN

D
IR

EC
T

 1
0

 A
D

U
LT

 
 1

2
 D

W
 

 1
1 

Y
O

U
TH

 
 1

2
2

 F
lo

ri
da

 
R

eb
ui

ld
 

 2
0

 W
P

 
 2

2
 S

N
A

P
 

 2
4 

LV
ER

 
 2

5
 D

V
O

P
 

 2
71

 R
ES

EA
 

 2
8

2
 T

A
A

 

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns
6

78
,2

8
2

$
   

   
   

   
 

17
2

,6
5

2
$

   
   

   
   

   
2

8
9

,0
2

3
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

40
3,

9
9

2
$

   
   

  
2

75
,3

0
8

$
   

   
   

2
3,

2
46

$
   

   
   

 
38

,1
37

$
   

   
   

  
2

6
5

,4
38

$
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
ds

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5

,0
6

7
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r 

M
er

it 
S

al
ar

ie
s

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 P
Y

 2
3-

2
4

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
fr

om
 P

Y
 2

1-
2

2
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
9

8
5

,7
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
5

9
4,

6
18

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

8
0

,2
6

5
$

   
   

   
  

8
7,

8
5

9
$

   
   

   
  

17
,2

32
$

   
   

   
  

11
,3

2
8

$
   

   
   

   
19

6
,0

0
4

$
   

  
2

0
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  T

O
TA

L
6

78
,2

8
2

$
   

   
   

   
 

1,
15

8
,3

5
2

$
   

   
   

   
8

8
3,

6
41

$
   

   
   

   
 

5
,0

6
7

$
   

   
   

   
48

4,
2

5
7

$
   

   
   

36
3,

16
6

$
   

   
   

40
,4

78
$

   
   

   
 

49
,4

6
5

$
   

   
   

 
46

1,
44

2
$

   
   

2
0

9
$

   
   

   
   

   

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

te
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
ec

ei
ve

d
70

.3
1%

76
.6

7%
10

1.
2

0
%

15
.4

8
%

9
9

.7
4%

77
.5

6
%

9
1.

13
%

79
.0

6
%

8
6

.1
0

%
0

.2
9

%

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

6
6

,1
76

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

6
,8

9
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

15
,5

39
$

   
   

   
   

   
5

9
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
6

6
,7

11
$

   
   

   
   

44
,0

47
$

   
   

   
  

3,
38

8
$

   
   

   
   

 
4,

2
12

$
   

   
   

   
 

5
4,

0
38

$
   

   
 

7
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

Sa
la

rie
s 

an
d 

 B
en

ef
its

42
3,

72
7

$
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e
18

9
,5

9
5

$
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
A

llo
ca

te
d 

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

ts
(6

13
,3

23
)

$
   

   
   

 
23

9
,3

15
$

   
   

   
   

   
15

,2
5

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
,5

39
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
9

1
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
,0

0
5

$
   

   
   

   
44

,0
47

$
   

   
   

   
3,

38
8

$
   

   
   

   
 

4,
21

2
$

   
   

   
   

  
5

4,
0

38
$

   
   

  
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
R

ec
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(17

3,
13

9
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

12
1,6

39
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
2,

70
6

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

(0
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
Tr

av
el

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

P
ro

gr
am

 T
ra

in
in

g
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
6

12
,1

0
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

1,
0

2
1,

45
5

$
   

   
   

   
8

6
8

,1
0

2
$

   
   

   
   

 
4,

47
6

$
   

   
   

   
41

7,
5

46
$

   
   

   
31

9
,1

2
0

$
   

   
   

 
37

,0
9

1
$

   
   

   
  

45
,2

5
3

$
   

   
   

 
40

7,
40

3
$

   
  

2
0

1
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

  W
IO

A
 Y

ou
th

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
72

1,8
82

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

Sa
la

rie
s 

an
d 

 B
en

ef
its

 
23

1,6
6

7
$

   
   

   
  

9
84

,0
9

2
$

   
   

   
   

  
6

0
,2

83
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

24
,6

5
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
3,

45
2

$
   

   
   

   
 

36
,8

11
$

   
   

   
   

  
20

4,
32

2
$

   
   

   
 

6
,8

83
$

   
   

   
   

 
8,

33
9

$
   

   
   

   
 

27
6

,6
73

$
   

   
13

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
C

on
tr

ac
t L

ab
or

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

,2
0

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,3
75

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

4
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
31

,2
18

$
   

   
   

   
  

31
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
19

,7
39

$
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
In

te
rn

sh
ip

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

In
ce

nt
iv

es
/S

tip
en

ds
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
N

on
-IT

A
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
9

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

IT
A

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

78
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-IT

A
/O

ST
/T

A
A

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
9

,9
9

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
6

,5
37

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

-O
JT

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
6

,2
45

$
   

   
   

   
   

4,
71

7
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-C

us
t./

Em
pl

oy
ed

 W
or

ke
r

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

39
,2

20
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,5

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
W

EX
/ I

nt
er

ns
hi

ps
/ P

ar
tic

ip
an

t W
ag

es
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

   
Tr

av
el

1,3
5

1
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

5
,6

9
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
45

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

29
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6
6

1
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,4
6

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
3,

10
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

1,6
9

3
$

   
   

   
   

  
1,7

0
3

$
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
   

O
ne

 S
to

p 
Sh

ar
ed

 C
os

ts
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
18

7,
47

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,4

89
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5

9
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
74

,2
48

$
   

   
   

   
44

,18
2

$
   

   
   

   
 

20
,6

13
$

   
   

   
   

26
,5

88
$

   
   

   
  

6
1,9

11
$

   
   

   
  

83
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
   

O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

5
0

,4
9

3
$

   
   

   
   

11
5

,5
0

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

8,
9

0
4

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
4,

0
89

$
   

   
   

   
   

12
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
45

,0
73

$
   

   
   

   
29

,0
24

$
   

   
   

   
3,

5
5

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
6

,6
35

$
   

   
   

   
 

22
,3

9
8

$
   

   
  

10
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
A

llo
ca

te
d 

Pr
og

ra
m

 In
di

re
ct

(2
83

,5
11

)
$

   
   

   
  

11
0

,6
25

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

0
5

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
7,

18
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

27
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
6

,4
74

$
   

   
   

   
  

20
,3

6
1

$
   

   
   

   
 

1,5
6

6
$

   
   

   
   

  
1,9

47
$

   
   

   
   

   
24

,9
80

$
   

   
  

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
R

ec
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(1,

14
4,

6
38

)
$

   
   

   
   

9
10

,13
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
25

4,
18

7
$

   
   

   
  

(11
,4

5
3)

$
   

   
   

   
 

1,3
35

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
(1)

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l  
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6

78
,2

8
2

$
   

   
   

   
 

1,
15

8
,3

5
2

$
   

   
   

   
8

8
3,

6
41

$
   

   
   

   
 

5
,0

6
7

$
   

   
   

   
48

4,
2

5
7

$
   

   
   

36
3,

16
6

$
   

   
   

40
,4

78
$

   
   

   
 

49
,4

6
5

$
   

   
   

 
46

1,
44

2
$

   
   

2
0

9
$

   
   

   
   

   

Fu
nd

in
g 

O
ve

r/
(u

nd
er

) e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Y
TD

 %
 o

f B
ud

ge
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ex
pe

nd
ed

70
.3

1%
76

.6
7%

10
1.

2
0

%
15

.4
8

%
9

9
.7

4%
77

.5
6

%
9

1.
13

%
79

.0
6

%
8

6
.1

0
%

0
.2

9
%

2
5

 D
V

O
P

2
2

 S
N

A
P

2
4 

LV
ER

2
71

 R
ES

EA
P

Y
 2

2
-2

3 
TO

TA
L 

A
V

A
IL

A
B

LE
 F

U
N

D
IN

G
11

 Y
O

U
TH

10
 A

D
U

LT
IN

D
IR

EC
T

2
0

 W
P

12
2

 F
lo

ri
da

 
R

eb
ui

ld
12

 D
W

2
8

2
 T

A
A

S:
\W

D
Ac

ct
\F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3\
12

 - 
Ju

ne
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3 
Ju

ne
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t

1

6 of 84



LW
D

B
 2

0
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 F

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

A
s 

of
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

0
23

PY
 2

2-
23

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns

PY
 2

2-
23

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
ds

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r M

er
it 

Sa
la

rie
s

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 P
Y

 2
3-

24
C

ar
ry

fo
rw

ar
d 

fr
om

 P
Y

 2
1-

22

   
  T

O
TA

L

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 D
R

A
W

N
 D

O
W

N
 Y

TD

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
ds

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r 

M
er

it 
S

al
ar

ie
s

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 P
Y

 2
3-

2
4

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
fr

om
 P

Y
 2

1-
2

2

   
  T

O
TA

L

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

te
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
ec

ei
ve

d

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
   

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

   
A

llo
ca

te
d 

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

ts
   

R
ec

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

   
Tr

av
el

P
ro

gr
am

 T
ra

in
in

g
  W

IO
A

 Y
ou

th
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
 

   
C

on
tr

ac
t L

ab
or

 
   

In
te

rn
sh

ip
   

In
ce

nt
iv

es
/S

tip
en

ds
   

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

N
on

-IT
A

   
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
IT

A
   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

-IT
A

/O
ST

/T
A

A
   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

-O
JT

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-C

us
t./

Em
pl

oy
ed

 W
or

ke
r

   
W

EX
/ I

nt
er

ns
hi

ps
/ P

ar
tic

ip
an

t W
ag

es
   

Tr
av

el
   

O
ne

 S
to

p 
Sh

ar
ed

 C
os

ts
   

O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

A
llo

ca
te

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
 In

di
re

ct
R

ec
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n

To
ta

l  
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s

Fu
nd

in
g 

O
ve

r/
(u

nd
er

) e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s

Y
TD

 %
 o

f B
ud

ge
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ex
pe

nd
ed

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

TO
TA

L 
A

V
A

IL
A

B
LE

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
8,

0
0

0
$

   
   

   
 

1,1
44

,7
45

$
   

   
   

 
6

2,
5

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
3,

0
0

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

12
5

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

18
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

74
,3

42
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

30
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(6

6
,7

6
3)

$
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1,
5

0
0

,0
0

0
)

$
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

12
9

,3
10

$
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

5
,9

0
8

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
6

,5
10

$
   

   
   

   
6

5
,5

77
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

6
2

,5
47

$
   

   
   

 
35

8
,0

0
0

$
   

   
 

1,
31

0
,6

5
3

$
   

   
  

6
2

,5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

16
6

,5
10

$
   

   
   

  
6

5
,5

77
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
5

0
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

 
19

9
,3

42
$

   
   

   
   

  
30

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 3
9

 D
W

G
 

C
O

V
ID

-1
9

 
 3

9
0

 D
W

G
 

H
ur

ri
ca

ne
 Ia

n 
 4

0
 W

TP
 

 4
70

 A
pp

re
nt

 
N

av
ig

at
or

 
 4

73
 R

ec
ov

er
y 

N
av

ig
at

or
 

 4
74

 R
ap

id
 

R
es

po
ns

e 
N

av
ig

at
or

 
 4

75
 F

A
W

A
 

 4
8

 F
.A

.T
.E

.S
. 

 7
9

2
 Y

ou
th

 S
O

S
 

S
LC

 
  O

th
er

 N
on

 N
FA

 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

17
8

,0
0

0
$

   
   

  
6

70
,1

36
$

   
   

   
  

6
2

,5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2
39

,4
5

9
$

   
   

   
 

43
,0

34
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

6
7,

8
5

0
$

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
77

,5
17

$
   

   
   

   
   

  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

6
,7

0
8

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

4,
0

9
8

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
16

5
,9

0
8

$
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

14
2

,3
18

$
   

   
   

  
15

,0
2

2
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

4,
0

9
8

$
   

   
   

   
2

45
,8

5
0

$
   

   
  

8
36

,0
44

$
   

   
   

 
6

2
,5

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
14

2
,3

18
$

   
   

   
  

15
,0

2
2

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

39
,4

5
9

$
   

   
   

 
43

,0
34

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

6
,7

0
8

$
   

   
   

   
  

77
,5

17
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

6
.5

5
%

6
8

.6
7%

6
3.

79
%

0
.0

0
%

8
5

.4
7%

2
2

.9
1%

15
.9

6
%

2
1.

5
9

%
5

2
.2

4%
0

.0
0

%

5
5

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

31
,4

5
5

$
   

   
   

  
9

8
,8

8
5

$
   

   
   

   
7,

5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
18

,4
12

$
   

   
   

   
 

1,
74

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

8
,9

6
6

$
   

   
   

   
5

,2
5

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

2
0

,0
8

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
8

,8
5

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

5
10

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
31

,4
5

5
$

   
   

   
   

9
8,

88
5

$
   

   
   

   
 

8,
75

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

18
,4

12
$

   
   

   
   

   
1,7

45
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
28

,9
6

6
$

   
   

   
   

 
5

,2
5

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
89

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

85
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

43
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

(1,
25

0
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
5

45
$

   
   

   
   

 
2

14
,3

9
5

$
   

   
   

73
7,

15
9

$
   

   
   

  
5

5
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
12

3,
9

0
7

$
   

   
   

 
13

,2
77

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
2

10
,4

9
4

$
   

   
   

  
37

,7
78

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
13

6
,6

19
$

   
   

   
   

   
70

,5
9

2
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6
77

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

,7
18

$
   

   
   

   
45

5
,0

44
$

   
   

   
  

48
,11

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
4,

9
70

$
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

9
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
76

,2
24

$
   

   
   

   
 

16
,4

47
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

12
,5

9
4

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
26

,3
5

4
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

2,
40

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
13

,11
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

29
,13

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
1,5

46
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
0

,3
35

$
   

   
   

  
42

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

18
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

7,
5

9
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
25

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,4
87

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,0
6

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
6

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
27

2
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
9

5
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,5
6

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
8,

5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
15

7,
0

5
9

$
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

1,9
22

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
5

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

6
9

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
40

4
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,5

0
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
5

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

49
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
86

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
74

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
10

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
9

1,8
6

8
$

   
   

   
   

  
7,

20
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,5
6

4
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
10

,2
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
3,

0
16

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

6
0

2
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

17
,4

6
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

22
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,8

0
6

$
   

   
   

   
  

10
7,

39
2

$
   

   
   

   
3,

25
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

8,
5

6
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
71

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

10
7,

9
49

$
   

   
   

   
1,4

0
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

3,
0

46
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,3
73

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
23

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

14
,5

40
$

   
   

   
   

45
,7

10
$

   
   

   
   

  
4,

0
45

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
8,

5
11

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
80

7
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
,3

89
$

   
   

   
   

  
2,

43
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

9
,2

86
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
4,

0
9

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(9

,5
73

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

4,
0

9
8

$
   

   
   

   
2

45
,8

5
0

$
   

   
  

8
36

,0
44

$
   

   
   

 
6

2
,5

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
14

2
,3

18
$

   
   

   
  

15
,0

2
2

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
2

39
,4

5
9

$
   

   
   

 
43

,0
34

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

6
,7

0
8

$
   

   
   

   
  

79
,4

48
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(1

,9
31

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

6
.5

5
%

6
8

.6
7%

6
3.

79
%

0
.0

0
%

8
5

.4
7%

2
2

.9
1%

15
.9

6
%

2
1.

5
9

%
5

2
.2

4%
0

.0
0

%

39
 D

W
G

 
C

O
V

ID
-1

9
39

0
 D

W
G

 
H

ur
ri

ca
ne

 Ia
n

47
4 

R
ap

id
 

R
es

po
ns

e 
N

av
ig

at
or

47
5

 F
A

W
A

47
0

 A
pp

re
nt

 
N

av
ig

at
or

 O
th

er
 N

on
 N

FA
47

3 
R

ec
ov

er
y 

N
av

ig
at

or
40

 W
TP

79
2

 Y
ou

th
 S

O
S

 
S

LC
48

 F
.A

.T
.E

.S
.

S:
\W

D
Ac

ct
\F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3\
12

 - 
Ju

ne
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3 
Ju

ne
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t

2

7 of 84



LW
D

B
 2

0
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 F

un
di

ng
 a

nd
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s

A
s 

of
 J

un
e 

30
, 2

0
23

PY
 2

2-
23

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns

PY
 2

2-
23

 S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
ds

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r M

er
it 

Sa
la

rie
s

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 P
Y

 2
3-

24
C

ar
ry

fo
rw

ar
d 

fr
om

 P
Y

 2
1-

22

   
  T

O
TA

L

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

 D
R

A
W

N
 D

O
W

N
 Y

TD

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

A
llo

ca
tio

ns

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

S
up

pl
em

en
ta

l 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
ds

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r 

M
er

it 
S

al
ar

ie
s

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
to

 P
Y

 2
3-

2
4

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
fr

om
 P

Y
 2

1-
2

2

   
  T

O
TA

L

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 B

ud
ge

te
d 

Fu
nd

in
g 

R
ec

ei
ve

d

EX
P

EN
D

IT
U

R
ES

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
   

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

   
A

llo
ca

te
d 

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

ts
   

R
ec

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

   
Tr

av
el

P
ro

gr
am

 T
ra

in
in

g
  W

IO
A

 Y
ou

th
 C

on
tr

ac
ts

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
 

   
C

on
tr

ac
t L

ab
or

 
   

In
te

rn
sh

ip
   

In
ce

nt
iv

es
/S

tip
en

ds
   

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

N
on

-IT
A

   
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
IT

A
   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

-IT
A

/O
ST

/T
A

A
   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

-O
JT

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-C

us
t./

Em
pl

oy
ed

 W
or

ke
r

   
W

EX
/ I

nt
er

ns
hi

ps
/ P

ar
tic

ip
an

t W
ag

es
   

Tr
av

el
   

O
ne

 S
to

p 
Sh

ar
ed

 C
os

ts
   

O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

A
llo

ca
te

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
 In

di
re

ct
R

ec
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n

To
ta

l  
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s

Fu
nd

in
g 

O
ve

r/
(u

nd
er

) e
xp

en
di

tu
re

s

Y
TD

 %
 o

f B
ud

ge
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ex
pe

nd
ed

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

TO
TA

L 
A

V
A

IL
A

B
LE

 F
U

N
D

IN
G

9
,1

5
0

,8
35

$
   

   
   

  

42
6

,4
6

0
$

   
   

   
   

  

32
,7

2
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

  37
4,

34
2

$
   

   
   

   
  (6

14
,7

9
4)

$
   

   
   

   
 

(2
,8

6
6

,6
5

6
)

$
   

   
   

2
,5

71
,9

2
5

$
   

   
   

  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
9

,0
74

,8
33

$
   

   
   

 

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

A
ct

ua
l

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

B
ud

ge
t

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
%

Ex
pe

nd
ed

3,
33

9
,2

0
6

$
   

   
   

9
,1

5
0

,8
35

$
   

   
   

  
5

,8
11

,6
2

9
$

   
   

   
 

36
.4

9
1%

6
7,

8
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
42

6
,4

6
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

35
8

,6
10

$
   

   
   

   
15

.9
10

%

77
,5

17
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

32
,7

2
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
(4

4,
79

6
)

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
36

.9
0

3%

16
1,

77
5

$
   

   
   

   
  

37
4,

34
2

$
   

   
   

   
  

2
12

,5
6

7
$

   
   

   
   

 
43

.2
16

%

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(6

14
,7

9
4)

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

,8
6

6
,6

5
6

)
$

   
   

   

2
,3

0
0

,5
6

1
$

   
   

   
2

,5
71

,9
2

5
$

   
   

   
  

2
71

,3
6

4
$

   
   

   
   

 
8

9
.4

49
%

5
,9

46
,9

0
9

$
   

   
   

9
,0

74
,8

33
$

   
   

   
 

3,
12

7,
9

2
4

$
   

   
   

6
5

.5
32

%

6
5

.5
3%

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

A
ct

ua
l

P
Y

 2
2

-2
3 

B
ud

ge
t

V
A

R
IA

N
C

E
U

nd
er

/(
O

ve
r)

%
Ex

pe
nd

ed

6
13

,3
2

3
$

   
   

   
   

 
6

14
,4

8
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

1,
15

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

9
9

.8
1%

42
3,

72
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

46
9

,15
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
45

,4
31

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
9

0
.3

2%
18

9
,5

9
5

$
   

   
   

   
  

14
5

,3
23

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
(4

4,
27

2)
$

   
   

   
   

  
13

0
.4

6
%

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(0

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

5
,3

35
,5

17
$

   
   

   
 

7,
0

8
9

,1
9

8
$

   
   

   
  

1,
75

3,
6

8
2

$
   

   
   

75
.3

%
72

1,8
82

$
   

   
   

   
  

75
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
28

,11
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
9

6
.3

%
2,

5
11

,4
28

$
   

   
   

   
3,

23
2,

78
5

$
   

   
   

   
72

1,3
5

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
77

.7
%

22
5

,18
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

19
9

,3
11

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
(2

5
,8

70
)

$
   

   
   

   
  

11
3.

0
%

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
5

,7
37

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
16

,5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
,7

6
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
34

.8
%

2,
5

6
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
10

,5
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

7,
9

37
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

24
.4

%
1,0

6
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
5

,18
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

4,
12

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
1.0

%
20

1,4
83

$
   

   
   

   
  

24
7,

14
4

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
45

,6
6

1
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

81
.5

%
11

2,
5

29
$

   
   

   
   

   
6

5
1,5

5
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
5

39
,0

22
$

   
   

   
   

 
17

.3
%

5
8,

22
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

5
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

(8
,2

20
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
11

6
.4

%
25

8,
9

81
$

   
   

   
   

  
32

8,
46

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
6

9
,4

79
$

   
   

   
   

   
78

.8
%

22
,5

42
$

   
   

   
   

   
24

,8
72

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
2,

33
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
9

0
.6

%
5

6
3,

27
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

74
4,

87
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

18
1,5

9
8

$
   

   
   

   
   

75
.6

%
6

5
0

,6
32

$
   

   
   

   
 

72
8,

0
15

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
77

,3
83

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
89

.4
%

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(0

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5
,9

48
,8

39
$

   
   

   
7,

70
3,

6
79

$
   

   
   

  
1,

75
4,

8
40

$
   

   
   

77
.2

%

(1
,9

31
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

  6
5

.5
5

%Y
EA

R
 T

O
 D

A
TE

 T
O

TA
LS

S:
\W

D
Ac

ct
\F

in
an

ci
al

 S
ta

te
m

en
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3\
12

 - 
Ju

ne
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
ts

\P
Y 

22
-2

3 
Ju

ne
 F

in
an

ci
al

 R
ep

or
t

3

8 of 84



Administrative, 
613,322.55

WIOA Youth Contracts, 
721,882.21

Salaries and Benefits, 
2,511,427.79

Training/Support/Incentives, 
381,594.10

Participant Wages, 
258,980.81

One Stop Costs, 
563,276.52

Operating, 
898,355.37

PY 22-23 Expenditures

9 of 84



SALARIES AND BENEFITS 

This category contains the salaries, payroll taxes, insurances (health, vision, dental, short-term 
disability, and life), CSRC 401K match, and workers compensation.  

 

WIOA YOUTH CONTRACT 

The subrecipient for the WIOA Youth program for PY23-24 is Eckerd Connects. 

 

OTHER OPERATING COSTS 

This category represents the Administrative Office costs as well as the allocable programmatic 
indirect costs.  This may include but is not limited to facility and equipment rent, utilities, non-
capitalized equipment, staff development and training, dues and memberships, service charges 
and fees, marketing, programmatic indirect, professional fees, supplies, repairs and maintenance, 
security, and employee relations costs, and contract labor costs. 

 

ONE STOP COSTS 

All costs associated with the operation of CSRC’s Business Services office and the three One 
Stop Centers. 

 

TRAINING/SUPPORT/INCENTIVES 

This category represents the training and training support costs for participants.  This includes 
Individual Training Accounts (ITA), On the Job Training (OJT), Customized Training, Employed 
Worker Training, Work Experience, and Internships. and Participant wages paid through the CSRC 
Employer of Record.  In addition, this category includes participant incentives and stipends and 
participant supportive services including but not limited to books, mandatory fees, equipment, 
tools, supplies, uniforms, drug test, physicals, background checks, transportation assistance, child 
and dependent care assistance, and other needs related payments. 

 

PARTICIPANT WAGES 

This category represents participant wages paid through the Employer of Record (EOR) for the 
National Emergency Grant Hurricane Ian and St. Lucie County Board of County Commissioners 
Youth Summer of Success Program. 

10 of 84



Agenda Item 3 

Title

Strategic 
Plans/Goals

Policy/Plan/Law

Action 
Requested

Background 

Staff 
Recommendations

  Supporting 

Board Staff

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Review and Approve WIOA Youth Services Subrecipient Contract 
for PY2023-2024 (PY 3 of 5)

Optimal Use of Resources

Board Policy/Board Responsibility

Review and Approve the Renewal of WIOA Youth Services 
Subrecipient Contract for PY2023-2024

CareerSource Research Coast entered into a multiple-year sub-
recipient procurement for the provision of WIOA Youth Services. 

CSRC staff will report to the Board of Directors on the fiscal and 
programmatic risk evaluation and intent to renew the WIOA Youth 
Services contract with a current service provider or seek a new 
sub-recipient. 

Review and Approve WIOA Youth Services Subrecipient Contract 
for Program Year 2023-2024

Risk Evaluation Forms - Subrecipient Services

Brian Bauer 
President/CEO
bbauer@careersourcerc.com  
(866) 482-4473 ext. 418

11 of 84

mailto:sbatton@careersourcerc.com


Table of Contents 
 

SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT FOR THE SERVICE PROVIDER OF THE LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT 
AREA 20 CAREER CENTER SYSTEM ..............................................................................................................................................2 

SIGNATURES AND ATTESTATIONS ............................................................................................................................................... 4 

ATTACHMENT A – STATEMENT OF WORK .................................................................................................................................5 

ATTACHMENT B – MONITORING & EVALUATION .................................................................................................................. 15 

ATTACHMENT C – TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE & GUIDANCE ............................................................................................... 16 

ATTACHMENT D – PAYMENT TERMS ......................................................................................................................................... 17 

ATTACHMENT E – NEGOTIATED BUDGET FOR 2022-2023 YOUTH ACTIVITIES......................................................... 21 

ATTACHMENT F – DESIGNATION OF CONTRACT PERSONNEL ....................................................................................... 22 

ATTACHMENT G – SIGNATORY AUTHORITY FOR INVOICES ............................................................................................ 23 

ATTACHMENT H – PROGRESS REPORTS ................................................................................................................................. 24 

ATTACHMENT I – CERTIFICATIONS & ASSURANCES ........................................................................................................... 25 

ATTACHMENT J - SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 287.133 (3) (a), FLORIDA STATUTES, ON 
PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES .................................................................................................................................................................. 30 

ATTACHMENT K - CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY 
MATTERS ............................................................................................................................................................................................. 32 

ATTACHMENT L - BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATE ...................................................................................................... 33 

ATTACHMENT M - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY PROVISIONS ASSURANCE STATEMENT
 ................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 34 

ATTACHMENT N - DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENT CERTIFICATION ............................................................ 35 

ATTACHMENT O - CERTIFICATION REGARDING SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES .............................................................. 37 

ATTACHMENT P – LOCAL DEFINITION FOR YOUTH REQUIRING ADDITIONAL ASSISTANCE TO COMPLETE AN 
EDUCATION PROGRAM OR TO SECURE AND HOLD EMPLOYMENT .............................................................................. 38 

 

  

12 of 84



Subrecipient Agreement FOR THE SERVICE PROVIDER OF THE LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AREA 
20 CAREER CENTER SYSTEM 
 

Title 2 – Subtitle A – Chapter II – Part 200 – Subpart D - § 200.332:  Requirements for pass-through entities.  

(a) The following sub-award information is provided by CSRC, the Pass-Through Entity, to Eckerd Connects, Inc., 
the Sub-Recipient. If/when any of these data elements changes, the change(s) will (also) be included in any 
subsequent sub-award modification(s).  

(1) Federal Award Identification.  

Sub-Recipient name (which must match the 
name associated with its unique entity identifier) 

Eckerd Connects, Inc. 

Sub-Recipient’s unique entity identifier 
 

DUNS # 080681158 

 

Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 
 

AA-34762-20-55-A-12 
AA-36313-21-55-A12 

AA-38523-22-55-A-12 

Federal Award Date  July 1, 2023 

Sub-Award Period of Performance: start/end 
dates 

July 1, 2023 – June 30, 2024 

Amount of Federal funds obligated by this action $800,000 

Total amount of Federal funds obligated to the 
Sub-Recipient 

$800,000 

Total amount of Federal Award to CSRC $890,940 

Federal award project description WIOA Youth Services Provider 

Name of Federal awarding agency 
Pass-through entity, and 
Contact information for awarding official 

 

 

 

Federal awarding agency:  

For WIOA: U. S. Dept. of Labor through State of Florida, 
Dept. of Economic Opportunity 

Pass Through Entity:  CareerSource Research Coast 

Contact information: Tracey McMorris, Vice President of 
Operations 

tmcmorris@careersourcerc.com 

Assistance Listing Number  17.259 -WIOA Youth 

Is this sub-award for R&D? No 

Indirect Cost Rate  23.44% 

 

13 of 84



THIS AGREEMENT is entered into between Workforce Development Board of the Treasure Coast, Inc, d/b/a 
CareerSource Research Coast, hereinafter referred to as “CareerSource Research Coast” (CSRC) and Eckerd 
Connects, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the “Service Provider.” 
 
CONTRACT TERM 
THIS AGREEMENT will be in effect from July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, provided the Service Provider meets 
CSRC performance expectations. All services must be delivered during this period to qualify as part of this 
agreement. Through this Agreement the Service Provider shall provide services for CSRC as described in the 
attached Statement of Work.  None of these services may be subcontracted to another party without the 
knowledge and approval of CSRC. 
 
In return, CSRC shall compensate the Service Provider for services rendered in an amount not to exceed 
$800,000 in accordance with the Payment Terms of this Agreement, unless otherwise modified by mutual 
consent of both parties.   
 
This Agreement consists of the following attachments: 
• Statement of Work 
• Monitoring and Evaluation 
• Technical Assistance and Guidance 
• Payment Terms 
• Budget 
• Designation of Contract Personnel 
• Signatory Authority 
• Program Progress Report   
• Certifications and Assurances 
• Public Entity Crimes                       
• Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies 
• Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension and Other Matters 
• Anti-Lobbying Certification 
• Non-discrimination and Equal Opportunity Provisions 
• Certification Regarding a Drug-Free Workplace 
• Certification Regarding Scrutinized Companies 
• Local Definition for Youth Requiring Additional Assistance 
 
CSRC will provide the Service Provider with copies of the Workforce Services Plan, other contracts and 
agreements governing programs and services outlined in the attached Statement of Work, and policies and 
procedures specific to WIOA Youth, as requested. 
 
  

14 of 84



SIGNATURES AND ATTESTATIONS 

IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this AGREEMENT and Attachments to be executed by 
their undersigned officials as duly authorized. 

SERVICE PROVIDER – ECKERD THE WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD  
CONNECTS, INC. OF THE TREASURE COAST, INC. d/b/a CAREERSOURCE 

RESEARCH COAST 

Brian K. Bauer, President/CEO 
Name and Title of Certifying Representative Name and Title of Representative 

Signature Signature 

Date Date 

15 of 84



ATTACHMENT A – STATEMENT OF WORK 

PROGRAM SUMMARY: The Service Provider will provide program-based, workforce development activities and 
services to targeted youth at a contract value ratio of no less than 75% of funds spent on Out-of-School Youth and 
no more than 25% of funds spent on In-School Youth as specified by WIOA regulations. 

TARGET GROUPS: 

Out-of-School Youth must be age 16-24, not attending any school, and meet one or more additional conditions, 
which may include: 

• School dropout; within age of compulsory attendance but has not attended for at least the most recent
complete school year calendar quarter; holds a secondary school diploma or recognized equivalent and is
low income and basic skills deficient or an English language learner; subject to the juvenile or adult justice
system; homeless, runaway, in foster care or aged out of the foster care system, eligible for assistance under
section 477 of the Social Security Act, or in an out-of-home placement; pregnant or parenting; and individual
with a disability; low income person who requires additional assistance, as defined by CareerSource
Research Coast (CSRC), to enter and complete an educational program or to secure and hold employment.

In-School Youth must be age 14-21, attending school, low income, and meet one or more additional conditions, 
which could include: 

• Basic skills deficient; English language learner; an offender; homeless, runaway, in foster care or aged out of
the foster care system; pregnant or parenting; an individual with a disability; a person who requires additional
assistance, as defined by CSRC, to enter and complete an educational program or to secure and hold
employment.

OUTREACH & RECRUITMENT: 

The Service Provider’s project staff will network within the three county Local Workforce Development Area 20 
(LWDA 20) to outreach and form connections with partners/collaborators, social service organizations, and school 
districts to achieve required numbers. Total number served includes all applicable youth carried in from previous 
program year. The CSRC website will also be used as a tool to gather preliminary data for referral. 

All outreach/marketing tools developed by the Service Provider for this purpose will be created in collaboration 
with CSRC staff and will brand as the CareerSource Research Coast Youth Connections program and will be 
submitted to the CSRC Communications Manager for final approval prior to use. Outreach and recruitment will be 
on-going to ensure a constant flow of youth entering and exiting the program. 

ELIGIBILITY ASSESSMENT/WIOA REGISTRATION: 

The Service Provider will provide services to the existing active carryover caseload of 78 young adults, consisting 
of 11 ISY and 67 OSY and will recruit and enroll at least 70 additional young adults, comprised of 53 OSY and 17 
ISY during the 2023-2024 program year throughout the three-county area.   The Service Provider will serve a total 
of 148 young adults (78 carry-forward + 70 new enrollments). Program will provide continuous enrollment and 
work to exceed enrollment goals as long as funding allows.  An enrollment is defined by determining Workforce 
Investment Opportunity Innovation Act (WIOA) eligibility and creating participation in the State system.  

16 of 84



All youth must be WIOA eligible in order to receive services in the Youth Connections program.  Ineligible youth 
will be referred to other appropriate community resources and/or to CSRC for universal client services. The Service 
Provider will market, recruit, and collect eligibility paperwork to determine WIOA eligibility. This is tracked through 
a project management software and Employ Florida. The eligibility criterion adheres to the requirements as set 
forth by the WIOA legislation: 

Out-of-School Youth must be age 16-24, not attending any school, and meet one or more additional conditions, 
which may include; 

• School dropout; within age of compulsory attendance but has not attended for at least the most recent
complete school year calendar quarter; holds a secondary school diploma or recognized equivalent and is
low income and basic skills deficient or an English language learner; subject to the juvenile or adult justice
system; homeless, runaway, in foster care or aged out of the foster care system, eligible for assistance under
section 477 of the Social Security Act, or in an out-of-home placement; pregnant or parenting; and individual
with a disability; low income person who requires additional assistance, as defined by CSRC , to enter and
complete an educational program or to secure and hold employment.

In-School Youth must be age 14-21, attending school including postsecondary school, low income, and meet one 
or more additional conditions, which could include: 

• Basic skills deficient; English language learner; an offender; homeless, runaway, in foster care or aged out of
the foster care system; pregnant or parenting; an individual with a disability; a person who requires additional
assistance, as defined by CSRC, to enter and complete an educational program or to secure and hold
employment.

Further, by the guided interview process, it will be determined if the youth model will meet the youth customer’s 
needs and interests. Not all youth will be suitable for Youth Connections. Project staff will gather all required 
eligibility documents, determine eligibility and input the information into Employ Florida. Files will be checked and 
reviewed by Service Provider management for eligibility and accuracy prior to being data entered into Employ 
Florida. An approved basic skills assessment (CASAS) will be used for basic skills assessment in order to establish 
standardized Literacy and Numeracy levels. Upon youth participation, the service provider will facilitate intake and 
assessments through appropriate resources, including CSRC’s assessments to determine interests, values, 
aptitudes and preferences. The Service Provider will examine the participant’s work experience and academic 
history to develop a list of current and potential career choices for participants. This will also help staff members 
in developing the Individual Service Strategy (ISS). If eligibility issues arise and cannot be satisfactorily resolved 
to the satisfaction of CSRC, disallowed costs from the sole negligence of the Service Provider will be repaid by 
Eckerd using nonfederal funds. 

ASSESSMENT & DEVELOPMENT OF INDIVIDUAL SERVICE STRATEGIES: 

With the cooperation and commitment of each young adult and their family whenever possible, an ISS will be 
developed and barriers to each student’s success determined. The approved basic skills assessment will be used 
to get standardized Literacy and Numeracy levels. The Project staff will develop an individual plan that the student 
is aware of and agrees to. Other assessments will be utilized as deemed appropriate.  These tools help our Career 
Coaches develop the ISS which is tracked using Employ Florida. 

17 of 84



GOAL SETTING & DOCUMENTATION PROCESS: 

The Service Provider’s Career Coaches will record all activities with a participant through timely and accurate case 
notes, CSRC’s document management system (DocuPhase), applications, enrollments, goals (both planned and 
achieved), program outcomes, and follow-ups. The Service Provider’s Manager or their designees will conduct 
case file reviews on a regular basis. 

CASE MANAGEMENT:  

Case management will be developed to encourage inter-organizational partnerships to maximize the utilization of 
resources to support the needs of the youth. The Service Provider will provide referrals in order to make sure that 
each student is getting the appropriate professional support as needed. This is all case noted in the Employ Florida 
and scanned into DocuPhase.  

BASIC SKILLS/ALTERNATIVE SECONDARY: 

The Service Provider will evaluate youth academic skills utilizing an approved basic skills assessment (CASAS) in 
reading and math.  The youth’s prior educational history and the results of the basic skills assessment will be 
utilized to identify methods and resources to assist the youth to improve literacy skills at least one educational 
functioning level each year.  Youth will be offered the opportunity to enroll in adult basic education, English 
Language Learning (ELL), or GED classes to pursue a high school diploma. 

 

The Service Provider will also offer a limited number of scholarships for participants to enroll in Penn Foster, an 
alternative secondary school that evaluates the youth’s most recent high school transcript and will develop a 
learning plan that will establish a specific number of courses to be completed to earn a nationally recognized and 
accredited secondary diploma. 

WORK READINESS SKILLS: 

The Service Provider intends to utilize a range and variety of tools and resources to help youth attain and/or 
improve basic workforce readiness skills. These tools are used to tests students’ skills, provide both pretests and 
posttests to make initial assessments and gauge student progress, create assignments based on students’ pretest 
results, monitor student scores and completion of activities, produce reports for individual students and provide 
documentation which will be included in the case file. 

Enrolled youth are eligible for CSRC approved incentive policies that includes up to $600 for in-school youth and 
up to $650 for out-of-school youth in achievement-based incentives. Incentive payments are subject to funding 
availability.  

 

 

 

 

 

 
18 of 84



INTERNSHIP/JOB SHADOWING: 

The Service Provider will target 60 youth to participate in Internship with at least 85% completing the minimum of 
140 hours.   A minimum of 25% of regional allocation, or $222,735.00 must be spent on Internship expenditures 
related to participant wages and incentives (YESS Class Completion, Job Shadowing and Internship Completion 
Bonus), staffing and other applicable costs dedicated to the development, execution and oversight of work-based 
learning activities. Students will have an opportunity to earn a wage set at $13.00/hour, for a minimum of 140 
hours, maximum of 192 hours, based on individual participant needs and goals, for paid Internship activities. 
Workers Compensation coverage will fall under the State of Florida’s insurance policy for WIOA participants. The 
Service Provider will be responsible for providing guidance and information regarding the possible tax 
responsibilities to participants and families. 

CREDENTIALS & TRAINING VOUCHERS: 

The Youth Connections Program will prepare youth to attain State and Industry recognized credentials that can 
be stand alone or stacked. The Service Provider also encourages and assists youth to obtain credentials and 
certifications through our partner agencies and schools. Youth will be provided multiple avenues to achieve 
credentials throughout the delivery of the program based on their Individual Service Strategy (ISS) and program 
related goals and outcomes. 

The Youth Connections program will also offer scholarships for youth participants to pursue certifications in entry-
level career paths within in- demand, high growth occupations.  These certifications will require at least a 30-day 
training period. 

SUPPORT SERVICES: 

Support Services will be administered through the Service Provider via individual case circumstance then 
reviewed by Career Coaches and by the Service Provider project management staff. These requests, documented 
in Employ Florida case notes, will be processed for payment by Service Provider’s fiscal department and 
documented in the student file in DocuPhase and in the monthly billing report. 

FOLLOW-UP: 

A year-round approach to case follow-up will be conducted. Carry forward follow-up caseload is estimated to be 
45 young adults as of July 1, 2023 with additional clients moving into follow-up services monthly, based on last 
date of services, as defined by WIOA.  Clients in follow-up will receive any of the 14 youth elements allowable in 
follow-up along with support and capture of required performance outcomes.  Client may receive incentives up to 
$150 for placement in employment or education during the follow-up portion of the program.   

Follow-up services include, but are not limited to, tracking progress on the job, the development of increased 
skills and certifications, support services, financial literacy, and incentives to support retention and/or completion 
of education and employment services. The Service Provider will complete quarterly follow-ups and will 
specifically be tracking the 2nd and 4th quarter retention of employment or continuation of post-secondary 
placement after exit. The Service Provider will assist youth within the parameters of WIOA requirements and 
comply with the required follow up increments. This will all be entered and case noted in Employ Florida. 

19 of 84



PARTNERSHIPS: 

The Service Provider has established or is in the process of establishing partnerships with the following:  Indian 
River State College, Treasure Coast Technical College, Children’s Service Council of Martin County, Children’s 
Service Council of St. Lucie County, 211/United Way, Children’s Home Society, Helping People Succeed, St. Lucie 
County Schools, Martin County Schools, Indian River County Schools, The Early Learning Coalitions for Indian 
River, Martin and St. Lucie Counties, Gifford Youth Activity Center, Tykes and Teens, Boys & Girls Club of Martin 
and St. Lucie Counties, Treasure Coast Homeless Service Council, Drug Free St. Lucie County, St. Lucie County 
Roundtable, Martin County Interagency Coalition, Pace Center for Girls, GraceWay Village, Treasure Coast Food 
Bank, Mustard Seed Ministries, Good Samaritan Center, Hope for Families, United Against Poverty, Department 
of Juvenile Justice, Gulfstream Goodwill Industries, Florida Department of Health Martin and St. Lucie County, 
Mary’s Home of the Treasure Coast, Ignite Youth Alliance and many other.  Partnership reviews will be included 
with reports to the CSRC Board of Directors and in the final narrative report for the program year. 

ROLES OF THE PARTNERS: 

The Service Provider will provide overall project design, support and implementation of all required WIOA Youth 
program elements for the levels of service described in this statement of work. CSRC will assist the program by 
providing some office space, linkages to other services, and client access to computer resources. The Service 
Provider will ensure a high level of coordination and integration with CSRC. The Service Provider staff will work 
together with appropriate CSRC staff for a seamless delivery of all available services. Project staff will provide 
program eligibility, workshop training, linkages with business services for job development, and program 
outcomes. 

Facilities: 

Port St. Lucie 

CareerSource Research Coast Career Center – 584 NW University Blvd, Suite 400, Port St. Lucie, FL 34986 

Vero Beach 

Treasure Coast Technical College-4680 28th Court Room 2-201, Vero Beach, FL 32967 

Fort Pierce 

Garden City Early Learning Academy Annex Rm. 14 – 2102 NW Ave Q, Fort Pierce, FL 34950 

Martin County 

CareerSource Research Coast Career Center-710 SE Central Pkwy, Stuart, FL 34994 

These facilities conform to all codes and requirements and are ADA accessible or reasonable accommodations 
can be made.  Facilities may provide temporary in-kind space for the duration or part of the program during the 
year. 

WORK PLAN SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES: 

Activities and services are designed to help youth develop lifelong skills and career pathways, while overcoming 
obstacles and barriers, through a seamless integration of services. The program will help lead WIOA eligible young 
adults to outcomes of career pathways and/or post-secondary education.   

20 of 84



 

WIOA YOUTH PROGRAM SERVICES AVAILABLE: 
The following WIOA youth program elements are made available to each youth during the program. These are 
independently driven by the participants needs. Any service needed will be identified in the ISS.  
 

14 WIOA Required 
Youth Program Elements 

Provider, or 
Referral 
Agency 

Instructional Activities/Curriculum 

1. Tutoring, academic remediation; 
study skills training, and 
instruction leading to secondary 
school completion, including 
dropout prevention strategies 

Eckerd / Public 
school partners 

Computer based training/instructor 
facilitated, FSA and GED Practice, GED Prep 

materials, e.g. Khan Academy (online), 
Practice GED exams, and instructional 

teacher-aided tools that are also used as a 
one-to-one instructional resource with 

minimal guidance (online); 21st Century Skills 

2. Alternative secondary school 
offerings 

Eckerd/ Public 
school partners 

Florida State Standards; Penn Foster 

3. Paid and unpaid Internships with 
an academic and occupational 
educational component 

Eckerd/ 
Community 

Business 
partners, CBO’s, 

FBO’s 

ECKERD Documented Internship activities; 
job shadow activity 

4. Occupational skills training with 
a focus on recognized 
postsecondary credentials and 
in-demand occupations 

Eckerd / 
Approved 
Training 
Provider 
Partners 

Various. Based on identified 
occupations/career fields on the Targeted 
Occupations List with Approved Training 

Providers 

5. Leadership development 
opportunities, including positive 
social behavior and soft skills, 
decision making, teamwork, etc. 

Eckerd in 
connection with 

various 
community 

partner 
agencies and 

employers 

Community service, peer-centered activities, 
Employability Skills, Life Skills curriculum 
that includes leadership development, 
health, nutrition, sexual behavior, and 

substance abuse prevention 

6. Supportive Services Eckerd in 
connection with 
various partner 
agencies and/or 

employers 

Independently driven by participant needs. 
Supportive services for educational training 

and employment activities such as gas 
cards, bus passes, emergency assistance, 

driver’s license, state identification, 
professional clothing,  background checks 

and childcare 
7. Adult mentoring for at least 12 

months 
Eckerd in 

connection with 
partner 

agencies and 
employers 

Independently driven by participant needs. 
Case managed and documented.  Includes 
recruitment of both community-based and 
employer-based mentors and partnership 

with established mentorship programs 
21 of 84



8. Comprehensive guidance and
counseling

Eckerd and/or 
community 
agencies 

On-going intensive case management. 
Community/locally based programming 

9. Follow-up services no less than
12 months after exit

Eckerd Independently driven by participant needs. 
Contact with employer, post-secondary 

entities, job retention coaching, academic 
support, incentives, support, career and 

education counseling. (Continuous service 
until participant has completed follow-up 

period of 12 months) 
10. Workforce Concurrent

Education
Eckerd and/or 

community 
agencies 

Independently driven by participant needs. 
Utilizing local workforce system, work 

readiness training, Partnership with post-
secondary and local training providers and 

employers to encourage youth to see 
education as part of their career pathway 

11. Financial Literacy Eckerd in 
connection with 

partner 
agencies 

Independently driven by participant needs.  
Partnerships with local financial institutions 

12. Entrepreneurial Skills Training Eckerd and/or 
community 
agencies 

Independently driven by participant needs.  
Partnerships with local business and 

community-based business organizations 
13. Labor Market and Local

Employment Information
Eckerd/CSRC Independently driven by participant needs. 

Utilizing local workforce system; ongoing 
career pathway discussions to include LMI 

and local career opportunities 
14. Post-Secondary Preparation and

Transition Services
Eckerd and/or 

community 
agencies 

Independently driven by participant needs. 
Partnerships with post-secondary 

educational institutions and community 
organizations 

Summary of Main Components and Intent are as follows: 

• Outreach - engaging caseload for increased participation and identification of new participants.
• Assessment – determining ‘suitability’ for successful participation and referral to other appropriate alternatives

for youth who are not eligible or suitable for WIOA services.
• WIOA Eligibility/Registration - Compiling proper documentation for WIOA eligibility.
• Case Management – Actively engaging and managing the youth caseload and meticulous documentation in

Employ Florida for progress toward activity/goal completion and positive outcomes.
• High School Diploma/GED Attainment – GED/High School Diploma preparation and attainment will be

achieved by using various tools and resources AND through partnering with the school districts and college
system.

• Internship – determining suitability for Internship/job shadowing and case managing all aspects of the
placements; partnering with businesses, CBO’s, and the CSRC Business Services Unit to recruit meaningful
work experience sites.

• Credentials – providing training for industry recognized credentials and linking WIOA participants to existing
community resources for short term training that will lead directly to employment opportunities.

22 of 84



• Follow-up Services – Providing follow-up services for youth who exit during the 30, 60, and 90 days after exit 
and then continue in the 2nd, 3rd, and 4th quarter after exit to ensure program effectiveness. 

 

GOALS: 

A. An average caseload of 148 active WIOA Youth will be served during program year 23-24. The number served 
includes carry in youth from previous program year, as well as newly eligible and enrolled youth. Service 
Provider will enroll a minimum of 70 new WIOA eligible youth between July 1st, 2023 and June 30th, 2024.  
100% of all contracted enrollment of youth will be completed, accurately and timely, and entered in Employ 
Florida and Eckerd’s data management system by 06/30/2024. 

B. A minimum of 85% of all contracted enrolled WIOA youth receiving training services (occupational skills 
activities, secondary or post-secondary activities, or on-the-job training activities) will successfully engage in 
documented skills gains.  Skills gains are defined as: 

1. Training Milestone: Evaluations completed by an employer or training provider documenting the 
achievement of established milestones on-the-job training period.  Employer/training provider 
evaluations completed during job shadowing activities or work experience/internship activities cannot 
be utilized to document a training milestone measurable skills gain. 

2. Skills Progression: Documentation showing the successful completion of an exam required for an 
occupation, satisfactory attainment of an element or an industry or occupational competency exam 
or other completion test required to obtain a credential. 

3. Attainment of a Secondary School Diploma or its Equivalent: Documentation showing the participant 
earned a high school diploma or tis state-recognized equivalent.  

4. Educational Functioning Level: Results from a pre and post CASAS exam or other literacy numeracy 
test approved by the National Reporting System (NRS) showing an increase of at least one functional 
level in reading and/or math.  

5. Secondary or Post-Secondary Transcripts/Report Card: Report card/transcripts for one semester 
showing the client is achieving academic standards.  Secondary school credits or secondary school 
Carnegie credits may be accepted. 

6. Other approved WIOA related work preparation attainments, as defined and approved by CSRC. 

C. A minimum of 80% of all contracted enrolled WIOA defined youth who are terminated from the contractor’s 
program will be terminated with a WIOA defined positive exit of employment placement.  In addition, 30% of 
contracted enrolled WIOA defined youth who are terminated from the contractor’s program will be terminated 
with a WIOA defined positive exit of post-secondary placement.  Youth terminated from program may be 
calculated in one or both outcome requirements, with appropriate documentation and entry of outcomes into 
Employ Florida. 

D. A minimum of 92% of all contracted WIOA defined youth enrolled in a training program will attain a degree, 
certificate, or occupational skills credential prior to termination from the WIOA program. The measure will be 
calculated as the total number of youth exited with credential divided by the total number of youth exited who 
have received training related services from the program each month. Data verified from EF report. 

E. A minimum of 60 youth will be placed into paid Internship opportunities with local employers. Of those placed, 
a minimum of 85% are required to successfully complete their Internship activity as defined by the youth 
completing a minimum of 140 hours (maximum 192 hours). Additionally, the internship may be considered 
successful if the internship ends due to direct hire employment with the internship site or an alternate 
employer for a higher wage. 

23 of 84



F. A minimum of $222,735.00 will be charged as approved work-based learning related expenditures.

G. Service Provider will document employer engagement by collecting a minimum of 40 employer surveys (direct
hire or internships), 20 of which will be private business employers. Service Provider will obtain or retain at
least 25 community employer partners as documented by internship agreements.

SUBCONTRACTS:  

If the Service Provider needs to subcontract any services, the terms of the contract and payment for services 
rendered must meet WIOA guidelines and will remain the sole responsibility of the Service Provider. Funds to 
cover the cost of the service will be provided by CSRC through this contract. The Service Provider must not 
subcontract the entire youth activities program. Acceptable subcontracts may include assessment, transportation, 
instruction, and other program components better delivered by a source other than the Service Provider.  The 
Service Provider must notify CSRC, in writing, 30 days prior to subcontracting any services not covered in this 
agreement. 

REPORTS AND EVALUATION:  

The Service Provider will submit a monthly report that includes, In-School and Out-of-School, performance and is 
to be submitted via email at the following intervals: (See Attachment I) 

• By the 5th day of the following month;
• Upon completion of the programs*

*Note:  In the final Internal Performance Report narrative comments related to program goals, outcomes and
overall programs should be included.

RECORDKEEPING: 

The Service Provider must maintain records on each participant in sufficient detail to demonstrate compliance 
with the relevant contractual criteria related to the training and employment as contained in this agreement. At a 
minimum, the case file must contain the following: eligibility documents, copies of attendance sheets and progress 
reports, pre and post assessment results, case notes, termination, disciplinary reports, copies of activities, 
credentials, or other documents of program activities completed by the participant, and other pertinent information 
needed to document participation, progress, and results. All case files must be scanned in DocuPhase.  

The Service Provider’s Career Coaches will record all activities with a participant through timely and accurate case 
notes, applications, activity codes, goals, both planned and achieved, program outcomes, and follow ups. The 
Service Provider will enter all appropriate information into Employ Florida, the Work Certified Learning 
Management System and DocuPhase. Case management notes will be available to service providers throughout 
the system. The Service Provider will coordinate and process support services requests in accordance with CSRC 
policies and procedures.  Service Provider will ensure that all staff attend training coordinated by CSRC or the 
State when available and provide documentation of such training to CSRC as requested. The Service Provider will 
maintain all files in accordance with the requirements of the contract with CSRC and established policies and laws. 

The Service Provider must maintain financial records sufficient to account for all funds received from CSRC and 
spent for the program. 

24 of 84



All records will be made available to CSRC, state and federal officials, independent monitors and/or auditors. 
Records will be retained for a period of three years following the date of final expenditure report for this agreement 
or until all audit questions and concerns have been resolved, whichever is later. 

INSURANCE: 

The Service Provider will utilize worker’s compensation insurance provided by the State of Florida for youth 
participants engaged in Internships or related activities.  The Service Provide must carry commercial liability 
insurance of $1 million or more, property insurance on equipment and other property belonging to CSRC, worker’s 
compensation on staff employees, and a surety bond (minimum $100,000 for faithful and honest performance or 
the average amount of funds on hand) on employees who process and expend funds related to this Agreement. 
CSRC must be named as an additionally insured on applicable liability policies and a copy of the proper insurance 
certificates must be submitted with signed copies of this Agreement within 30 days of project startup or prior to 
the advancement of funds. 

25 of 84



ATTACHMENT B – MONITORING & EVALUATION 

CSRC staff and their subcontracted independent monitoring/audit provider and the State of Florida’s Department 
of Economic Opportunity (DEO) will monitor the program for programmatic and fiscal accountability.  Monitoring 
visits may include reviews of participant files, program activities, curriculum, progress reports, the Service 
Provider’s financial records, etc., as necessary to ensure that the program meets the intent and guidelines of this 
agreement, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations.   

At the end of the project, the Service Provider will provide CSRC with reports of performance measured against 
agreement terms.  CSRC staff will verify that these reports are accurate and complete. 

During monitoring, if the Service Provider is found to be out of compliance with the terms of this Agreement, WIOA, 
CSRC policies, or any other governing document, the Service Provider will complete a Corrective Action Plan. 
This plan will be in writing and submitted to CSRC within twenty (20) working days from the receipt of written 
notification from CSRC that corrective action is required.  CSRC will either accept or reject this plan and will notify 
the Service Provider of its decision in writing. 

The Service Provider will provide assistance and access to records to federal and state monitors conducting 
program reviews, as requested.  If found out of compliance during these reviews, the Service Provider will provide 
CSRC with a written Corrective Action Plan addressing federal and state monitors' concerns. 

All monitoring and Corrective Action plans will comply with state and federal regulations. 

In addition, the Service Provider will monitor individual program performance to ensure compliance and fulfillment 
of established federal, state, and local performance objectives. These reports are consolidated by the Service 
Provider’s Area Manager and summarized in a monthly report to the funding agency. 

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

26 of 84



ATTACHMENT C – TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE & GUIDANCE 

CSRC will provide technical assistance and guidance to the Service Provider as requested in writing, or as the 
results of monitoring.  Assistance will be provided in the areas of management, programmatic, and fiscal systems. 
CSRC staff, jointly with the Service Provider, will develop a written plan for technical assistance as follows: 

• Conduct a Service Provider interview
• Identify areas where assistance is needed
• Identify and assign staff who are to be involved
• Set a timetable for completing assistance
• Establish benchmarks to be achieved

The Service Provider will participate in entrance and exit interviews with CSRC staff to facilitate planning and 
follow-up of technical assistance. 

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

27 of 84



ATTACHMENT D – PAYMENT TERMS 

COMPENSATION & TIME PERIOD:  CSRC will reimburse the Service Provider for expenses incurred during the 
performance of duties outlined in this agreement in the amount not to exceed $800,000 for the Youth 
Connections Program, with the final invoice submitted to CSRC by July 15, 2024 unless otherwise modified.  Under 
the terms of this contract payments may be made on a cost reimbursement basis in the amount not to exceed 
$800,000 and not to exceed 33% or $264,000 per quarter for the first three quarters. A maximum of 75% of the 
total contract funds will be utilized to serve Out-of-School Youth, with 25% to be utilized to serve In-School-Youth 
Cost will be paid in accordance with the budget on any line item.  Monthly accruals are due by the 10th day of the 
month and billing (with backup) is due by the 15th.  Electronic format is preferred.  A ten percent (10%) variance 
may occur between line items with approval from CSRC.  

MODIFICATION OF TERMS:  The terms of this Agreement, including total compensation, may be modified by 
mutual consent of both parties if enrollments, agreed-upon services, funding availability or circumstances warrant 
change.  Refer to General Provisions and Assurances. Total budget amount cannot be exceeded. Budget line-
item variances under 10% of line item do not require Board Staff approval. Budget line-item variances over 10% of 
line item require advance approval from CSRC’s Chief Financial Officer and CSRC staff assigned to manage the 
contract.  

CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT/PERFORAMNCE STANDARDS:  It is understood and agreed by both CSRC and the 
Service Provider that payment is for cost associated with serving WIOA eligible youth as negotiated and outlined 
on the Project Budget. 

PERFORMANCE MEASURES:  Service Provider will be required to meet the following performance guidelines as 
part of the contract requirements. 

Performance Benchmark Measure Timeframe Reporting 

Measurable Skills Gains-85%  Upon receipt from DEO 

Attainment of Degree or Certificate-92% Upon receipt from DEO 

Internship Placement-60 Youth Monthly 

Internship Successful Completions-85% Monthly 

Median Earnings 2nd Quarter After Exit -$3300 Upon receipt from DEO 

Employment Rate – Second Quarter After Exit – 82% Upon receipt from DEO 

Employment Rate – Fourth Quarter After Exit – 80% Upon receipt from DEO 

***Above performance goals are from previous 
program year. Goals will be updated upon receipt of 
new program year negotiated rates*** 

28 of 84



1. DEFINITIONS OF PERFOMANCE MEASURES:
Note:  for each definition below, The Service Provider’s numbers for the purpose of this contract will be isolated
from the numbers of other CareerSource Research Coast youth programs/projects .

A. Skills Gains: A minimum of 85% of all contracted enrolled WIOA youth receiving training services
(occupational skills activities, secondary or post-secondary activities, or on-the-job training activities) will
successfully engage in documented skills gains during each year of training related participation.  Skills
gains are defined as:
• Training Milestone: Evaluations completed by an employer or training provider documenting the

achievement of established milestones on-the-job training period.  Employer/training provider
evaluations completed during job shadowing activities or work experience/internship activities cannot
be utilized to document a training milestone measurable skills gain.

• Skills Progression: Documentation showing the successful completion of an exam required for an
occupation, satisfactory attainment of an element or an industry or occupational competency exam
or other completion test required to obtain a credential.

• Attainment of a Secondary School Diploma or its Equivalent: Documentation showing the participant
earned a high school diploma or tis state-recognized equivalent.

• Educational Functioning Level: Results from a pre and post CASAS exam or other literacy numeracy
test approved by the National Reporting System (NRS) showing an increase of at least one functional
level in reading and/or math.

• Secondary or Post-Secondary Transcripts/Report Card: Report card/transcripts for one semester
showing the client is achieving academic standards.  Secondary school credits or secondary school
Carnegie credits may be accepted.

• Other approved WIOA related work preparation attainments, as defined and approved by CSRC.

B. Attainment of Degree or Certificate: Of all youth enrolled in a training program who exit, 92% will
successfully attain an occupational skills credential/certification, Post-Secondary credential/certification,
High School Diploma/GED or a state, industry or nationally recognized credential.  The measure will
include total number of youth exited with credential divided by the total number of youth who received
training services during program participation who have exited from the program each month. Data verified
from EF report.

C. Internship Placement: The service provider will target a minimum of 60 youth to be placed in an internship.
Young adults will career explore and job shadow and have an opportunity to earn up to an average of
$2,496 during paid Internship activities.

Students will be paid $13.00/hour, or current minimum wage, whichever is greater, for up to 32 hours/week
for no more than 192 hours total based on individual participant needs and goals, for paid Internship
activities. Worker’s Compensation coverage will fall under the State’s blanket coverage for WIOA
participants.  Wages in excess of $600 a year may result in issuance of IRS Form 1099 and have tax liability
for participants.  The Service provider will provide guidance and information regarding the possible tax
responsibilities to participants and families.

29 of 84



A minimum of 27% of regional allocation of WIOA Youth funds spent on a quarterly basis will be specific 
to approved and allowable Internship activities, within budget guidelines.  This will include staff hours 
specific to Internship development, engagement, and execution; youth related payments and fees 
(incentives as described under the Internship placement/Job Shadowing section in the summary of Main 
Components and Intent, wages, and payroll fees) directly related to youth engagement in Internship 
activities. 

H. Internship Successful Completion: Of the minimum 60 internship placements, 85% of the youth will
successfully complete an internship defined as completing learning objectives associated with internship
placement AND working a minimum of 140 hours but no more than 192 hours  AND receiving an overall
satisfactory rating from employer upon completion of internship activity. Additionally, the internship may
be considered successful if the internship ends due to direct hire employment with the internship site or
an alternate employer for a higher wage. Data verified from EF closed 400 or 425 cases and hours worked
summary from internship tracker.

D. Median Earnings Second Quarter After Exit:  The median earnings of exited youth participants who are
in unsubsidized employment during the second quarter after exit from the program will be $3,300. Data
will be verified from the DEO Performance Indicator reports.

E. Employment Rate 2nd Quarter After Exit:  Of all youth who exit, 82% will be successfully enrolled in
education or training activities, or in unsubsidized employment, during the second quarter after exit from
the program. Data will be verified from the DEO Performance Indicator reports.

F. Employment Rate 4th Quarter After Exit:  Of all youth who exit, 80% will be successfully enrolled in
education or training activities, or in unsubsidized employment, during the fourth quarter after exit from
the program. Data will be verified from the DEO Performance Indicator reports.

The Service Provider will be paid according to the negotiated terms for expenditures related to these 
deliverables and as costs are incurred.  The Service Provider is expected to make reasonable progress toward 
contract goals.  Reasonable progress shall mean that, at the time of monitoring, activity and outcomes are 
what they should be for the evaluation period. 

Should it appear that reasonable progress is not being made, CSRC will require the Service Provider to 
implement corrective actions.  If the problem is not corrected, this contract may be terminated.  To receive 
payment, the Service Provider must submit invoices for allowable costs as outlined in the negotiated program 
budget.  These total costs may not exceed an aggregate of $800,000. 

Invoices must reflect amounts paid and youth activities must be supported with attached copies of youth 
activities attendance sheets, pre and posttests, certificates, etc., as applicable to the activity.  Documentation 
of costs must be maintained for monitoring and auditing by CSRC. 

When invoices are received, CSRC staff will review them for accuracy and consistency with this Agreement.  If 
the invoices are incomplete, lack documentation or are not in compliance with the Agreement, they will be 
returned to the Service Provider for correction.  Reimbursement will not be made to the Service Provider until 
an acceptable invoice is received, verified, and processed. 

30 of 84



The Service Provider is responsible for maintaining accounting records related to this Agreement.  These 
records will be audited by CSRC staff at the end of the Agreement.  Any disallowed costs for which 
reimbursement has been made must be repaid by the Service Provider to CSRC within 30 days of written 
notification that a disallowed cost and reimbursement have occurred. Reimbursement cannot be made utilizing 
federal funds.  Repayment must be in the form of a check for the amount owed.  Costs may be disallowed if 
they are: 

• Inconsistent with the goals and terms of this Agreement or WIOA law, or CSRC regulations; and/or
• Not traceable to an actual expense and participants from the designated target groups; and/or
• Not clearly documented with class rosters and payroll registers; and/or
• Incurred before the date of this Agreement.

Costs for personnel, travel, transportation, training, membership fees and youth activities must be listed 
separately on the invoice and the costs totaled. Copies of proper documentation of costs incurred must also 
be attached, i.e. payroll registers, cancelled checks, mileage, and training fees. 

At no time will total payments exceed the total dollar amount specified in this Agreement. 

The Service Provider must adhere to all WIOA, state, and CSRC policies and procedures related to 
procurement when securing goods or services for this agreement. Documentation of proper procurement 
must be maintained with each purchase and made available to federal, state and partnership monitors and 
auditors. 

2. PERFORMANCE SANCTIONS:
CSRC may impose sanctions on the Service Provider depending on performance determined during
monitoring and evaluation.  Sanctions will be imposed if goals and objectives are not met.  Sanctions may
include immediate termination of the Agreement, a debarring of the Service Provider from future agreements
or a reduction in enrollments.  CSRC will determine the level of sanctions to be imposed.

3. METHOD AND TIME OF PAYMENT
The Service Provider will be mailed a check for the total allowable cost incurred upon receipt of proper, verified
invoices.

Invoices will be paid promptly provided the invoice is correct, sufficient, that verifiable documentation is
attached, and all costs are allowable based on the negotiated terms.

The last invoice must be submitted no later than July 15, 2024.

4. DEOBLIGATION: The Service Provider is expected to meet the goals and objectives specified in this
Agreement and to provide those services contained in the Statement of Work.  CSRC will monitor these items
and will terminate this Agreement if the Service Provider fails to provide the requested services and
performance.  If this Agreement is terminated, the funds will be de-obligated and awarded to an alternate
provider or retained by CSRC.

31 of 84



ATTACHMENT E – NEGOTIATED BUDGET FOR 2023-2024 YOUTH ACTIVITIES 
 
 
PROJECT BUDGET: 

 

 

PY 23-24 WIOA Youth Budget Summary 

    

Staff Labor  $                376,928 

Fringe Benefits  $                114,971  

Travel: Mileage  $                    4,819 

Other Travel  $                   4,175* 

Employee Related  $                       210 

Supplies / Consumables  $                  2,650** 

Software Licensing  $                    4,350 

Communications  $                    5,400  

Insurance / Professional 
Fees  $                  11,600  

Client Related  $                187,193 

Indirect Cost  $                  87,704 

    

TOTAL  $                800,000 

*Includes additional staff attending Florida WF Summit and other professional development opportunities. 

**Includes existing software license that had previously been classified as client related costs, but was advised to move to operational costs.   

 

 

 
 

[BALANCE OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

32 of 84



ATTACHMENT F – DESIGNATION OF CONTRACT PERSONNEL 

CSRC has authorized the following personnel to administer this contract and give direction to the Service Provider: 

Name:  Christina Coble 
Title:  WIOA Programs Manager 
Address: 584 NW University Blvd., Suite 100, Port St. Lucie, FL  34986 
Telephone Number: (866) 482-4473 x. 617  
Designated by:  Brian Bauer  
Title:  President/CEO  
Date:  July 1, 2023 

The Service Provider has authorized the following personnel as the official contact person to accept direction from 
the above-named personnel and to respond on our behalf: 

Name:  Danielle Brun  
Title:    FL Operations Director 
Address:  114 Rowland Road, Lehigh Acres, FL 33936 
Telephone Number:  (239) 246-3472  
Designated by:  David Dennis, President/CEO 
Title:  President/CEO  
Date:  July 1, 2023 

33 of 84



ATTACHMENT G – SIGNATORY AUTHORITY FOR INVOICES 

The following individual(s) has/have been delegated signatory authority for invoices submitted under Agreement. 
Original signatures are required on this document and the invoice. 

A. 
Signature 

Printed Name & Title 

B. 
Signature 

Printed Name & Title 

C. 
Signature 

Printed Name & Title 

It is suggested that more than one individual be delegated signatory authority. 

Service Provider’s Federal Identification No: 59-2551416 

Provide official mailing address below if different from that provided in the Agreement: 

Eckerd Connects, Inc. 

500 S. Gravers Road 

Plymouth Meeting, PA 19444 

34 of 84



ATTACHMENT H – PROGRESS REPORTS 

35 of 84



ATTACHMENT I – CERTIFICATIONS & ASSURANCES 

This attachment is part of the vendor agreement held between The Workforce Development Board of the Treasure Coast, 
Inc. d/b/a CareerSource Research Coast (CSRC) and Vendor for described in the Agreement attached hereto. In consideration 
of the mutual covenant and stipulations set forth in the contract and Attachment herein, the parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. COMPLIANCE WITH POLICIES AND LAWS
The warranty of this Section specifically includes compliance by Vendor with the provisions of the Immigration Reform
and Compliance Act of 1986 (P. L. 99-603), the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), the provisions of the
Workforce Investment Act of 1998, the Workforce Innovation Act of 2000,  45 CFR 98, the Temporary Assistance for
Needy Families Program (TANF), 45 CFR parts 260-265 and other applicable federal regulations and policies
promulgated thereunder and other applicable State, Federal, criminal and civil law with respect to the alteration or
falsification of records created in connection with this Agreement. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circulars:
Vendor agrees that, if applicable, it shall comply with all applicable OMB circulars, such as 2 CFR 200. Vendor will comply,
as applicable, with the provisions of the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 276a to 276a7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. 276c
and 18 U.S.C. 874, and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40.327-333), regarding labor standards for
federally assisted construction sub agreements.

2. CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER MATTERS
Vendor certifies that it is not currently debarred, suspended, or excluded from or for participation in Federal assistance
programs, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any federal
department or agency within a three-year period preceding the effective date of the Agreement in accordance with 29
CFR Parts 45, 74, 95 and 98.  No contract shall be awarded to parties listed on the GSA List of Parties Excluded from
Federal Procurement or Non-Procurement Programs.

3. NON-DISCRIMINATION, EQUAL OPPORTUNITY ASSURANCES, CERTIFICATIONS, OTHER PROVISIONS
As a condition to the award of financial assistance from the Department of Labor under Title I of the WIOA, the grant
applicant assures that it will comply fully with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions of the following
laws:

• Section 188 of the Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act (WIOA), which prohibits discrimination against all
individuals in the United States based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, political affiliation,
or belief, and against beneficiaries on the basis of either citizenship/status as a lawfully admitted immigrant
authorized to work in the United States or participation in any WIA Title I- Financially assisted program or activity.

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, and
national origin.

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals
with disabilities.

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, which prohibits discrimination based on age.
• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in

educational programs.
• Section 654 of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981 prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed,

color, national origin, sex, handicap, political affiliation or beliefs.
36 of 84



• The American with Disabilities Act of 1990, P.L. 101-336 prohibiting discrimination in all employment practices,
including the job application procedures, hiring, firing, advancement, compensation, training, and other terms,
conditions, and privileges of employment.  It applies to recruitment, advertising, tenure, layoff, leave, fringe benefits,
and all other employment-related activities; and

The Vendor also assures that it will comply with 29 CFR Part 37 and all other regulation implementing the laws listed 
above.  

For contracts more than $10,000, the Vendor will comply with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled 
“Equal Employment Opportunity” as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and supplemented on 
Department of Labor regulations at 41 CFR Chapter 60. 

4. CERTIFICATION REGARDING CLEAN AIR ACT, WATER ACT, ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND ENVIRONMENTAL
STANDARDS, SOLID WASTE
Clean Air and Water Act: When applicable, if this Contract is more than $100,000, Vendor shall comply with all applicable
standards, orders or regulations issued under the Clean Air Act as amended (42 U.S.C. 7401), Section 508 of the Clean
Water Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1368 et seq.), Executive Order 11738 and Environmental Protection Agency regulations
(40 CFR Part 15). The Vendor shall report any violation of the above to the contract manager.  Energy Efficiency: The
Vendor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the State
of Florida’s Energy Conservation Plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Public Law 94-
163).

Vendor will comply with environmental standards which may be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution of 
environmental quality control measures under the National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) and Executive 
Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 
11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in flood plains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of project consistency 
with the approved State management program developed under the Coastal Zone Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. 
1451 et seq .); (f) conformity of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean 
Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. 7401 et seq .); (g) protection of underground sources of drinking water under the 
Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, (P.L. 93-523); and (h) protection of endangered species under the 
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, (P.L. 93-205). The Vendor will comply with the Solid Waste Disposal Act, 
as amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (42 U.S.C. 6962). 

5. CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING AND INTEGRITY
Vendor shall comply with the provisions of the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 U.S.C. 1352) 29 CFR Part 93. When
applicable, if this Agreement is more than $100,000, Vendor must, prior to contract execution, complete the Certification
Regarding Lobbying Form.

6. CONFIDENTIALITY
It is understood that the Vendor shall maintain the confidentiality of any information, regarding CSRC customers and the
immediate family of any applicant or customer, that identifies or may be used to identify them, and which may be obtained
through application forms, interviews, tests, reports from public agencies or counselors, or any other source. Vendor shall
not divulge such information without the written permission of the customer, except that such information which is

37 of 84



necessary as determined by CSRC for purposes related to the performance or evaluation of the Agreement may be 
divulged to  

CSRC or such other parties as they may designate having responsibilities under the Agreement for monitoring or 
evaluating the services and performances under the Agreement, or to governmental authorities to the extent necessary 
for the proper administration of the law.  All release of information shall be in accordance with applicable State laws, and 
policies of the CSRC.  No release of information by Vendor, if such release is required by Federal or State law, shall be 
construed as a breach of this Section. 

7. RIGHTS TO DATA/COPYRIGHTS AND PATENTS
CSRC, State of Florida and the U.S. Department of Labor shall have unlimited rights to inventions made under contract
or agreement: Contracts or agreements for the performance of experimental, developmental, or research work shall
provide for the rights of the Federal Government and the recipient in any resulting invention in accordance with 37 CFR
part 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants,
Contracts and Cooperative Agreements” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency.

8. MONITORING
At any time and as often as CSRC, the State of Florida, United States Department of Labor, Comptroller General of the United 
States, the Inspector Generals of the United States and the State of Florida, or their designated agency  or representative
may deem necessary, Vendor shall make available all appropriate personnel for interviews and all financial, applicant, or
participant books, documents, papers and records or other data relating to matters covered by this contract, for examination
and/or audit, and/or for the making of excerpts or copies of such records for the purpose of auditing and monitoring activities
and determining compliance with all applicable rules and regulations, and the provisions of this Agreement. The above
referenced records shall be made available at the Vendor expense, at reasonable locations as determined by CSRC.  Vendor
shall respond in writing to monitoring reports and requests for corrective action plans within 10 working days after the receipt 
of such request from CSRC.

9. TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT/CONVENIENCE
This modified agreement may be terminated as follows:

a. Either party may request termination of modified agreement upon 60 days prior written notice to the other party.
b. CSRC may unilaterally terminate or modify this modified agreement, if for any reason either the U.S. Department of

Labor or the State of Florida reduces funding through the grants under which this modified agreement is funded.
c. CSRC may unilaterally terminate this modified agreement at any time that it is determined that:

i. Vendor fails to provide any of the services it has contracted to provide; or
ii. Vendor fails to comply with the provisions of this modified agreement; or
iii. Such termination is in the best interest of CSRC.

d. Written notification of termination must be by registered mail, return receipt requested.

If Vendor disagrees with the reasons for termination, they may file a grievance in writing within ten days of notice of 
termination to the CSRC Executive Committee, who will conduct a grievance hearing and decide, from evidence 
presented by both parties, the validity of termination. 

In the event this modified agreement is terminated for cause, Vendor shall be liable to CSRC for damages sustained for 
any breach of this modified agreement by the Vendor, including court costs and attorney fees, when cause is attributable 
to the Vendor. 

38 of 84



 

In instances where Vendor violates or breaches modified agreement terms, CSRC will use all administrative, contractual, 
or legal remedies that are allowed by law to provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. 

 

10. PUBLIC ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ADVERTISING 
Vendor agrees that when issuing statements, press releases, request for proposals, bid solicitation, and other documents 
describing the project or programs funded in whole or in part under this Agreement, Vendor shall clearly state: (1) the 
percentage of the total cost of the program or project which will be financed with Federal money under this Agreement 
and (2) the dollar amount of Federal funds for the project or program. 

 

11. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 
Vendor shall comply with subsection 287 .L33(2)(a), F.S., whereby a person or affiliate who has been placed on the 
convicted Lessor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract 
to provide any goods or services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public 
entity for the construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on 
leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a Lessor, supplier, sub-Lessor or 
consultant under a contract with any public entity and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the 
threshold amount provided in section 287.Ot7, F.S., for Category Two for a period of thirty-six (36) months from the date 
of being placed on the convicted Lessor list. 

 

12. THE PRO-CHILDREN ACT 
Vendor agrees to comply with the Pro-Children Act of 1994, 20 U.S.C. 6083. Failure to comply with the provisions of the 
law may result in the imposition of civil monetary penalty up to $1,000 for each violation and/or the imposition of an 
administrative compliance order on the responsible entity. This clause is applicable to all approved sub-contracts. ln 
compliance with Public Law (Pub. L.) LO3-277, the Contract shall not permit smoking in any portion of any indoor facility 
used for the provision of federally funded services including health, day care, early childhood development, education, 
or library services on a routine or regular basis, to children up to age 18. 

 

13. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS  
 Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions of section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the 

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, and as supplemented by 2 CFR Appendix II to part 200 and 2 CFR part 
200.323 and the requirements stated therein. 

 

14. DOMESTIC PREFERENCES FOR PROCUREMENTS 
 Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions of 2 CFR Appendix II to part 200 and 2 CFR part 200.322 and the 

requirements stated therein. 

 

15. PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT 
 Vendor agrees to comply with the provisions of 2 CFR Appendix II to part 200 and 2 CFR part 200.216 and the 

requirements stated therein. See Public Law 115-232, section 889 for additional information and 2 CFR part 200.471. 
 
 

39 of 84

https://nam02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.law.cornell.edu%2Frio%2Fcitation%2FPub._L._115-232&data=04%7C01%7Ctmcmorris%40careersourcerc.com%7C2ddf68e639b740b658e108d8eef80a82%7C12fc6d77599f42ecb88abea53946a490%7C0%7C0%7C637522096402866957%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C1000&sdata=oXtYpkF5Kzx1N58a7xmR9Xm2mpWbwaR1VS5hOgO8%2FC8%3D&reserved=0


16.  E-Verify 

 Vendor warrants and represents that it complies with section 448.095, F.S., where the State of Florida expressly requires 
the following:  

 
i. Every public employer, contractor, and subcontractor shall register with and use the E-Verify system to verify the 

work authorization status of all newly hired employees. A public employer, contractor, or subcontractor may not 
enter into a contract unless each party to the contract registers with and uses the E-Verify system.  

ii. A private employer shall, after making an offer of employment which has been accepted by a person, verify such 
person’s employment eligibility. A private employer is not required to verify the employment eligibility of a 
continuing employee hired before January 1, 2021. However, if a person is a contract employee retained by a 
private employer, the private employer must verify the employee’s employment eligibility upon the renewal or 
extension of his or her contract. As of July 1, 2023, all private employers in Florida with 25 or more employees will 
be required to use E-Verify, the federal government's database for verifying work authorization.  

 

17.  Free Speech and Religious Liberty (applicable to Sub-recipients only) 

Vendor agrees to the follow the statutory and national policy requirements, as applicable, stated in 2 CFR § 200.300 and 
Executive Order 13798 Promoting Free Speech and Religious Liberty and Executive Order 13864 Improving Free Inquiry, 
Transparency and Accountability at College and Universities. 

 

 

 

Vendor Name:                                                          

 

 

Authorized Representative 

Printed Name & Title:                                                                                  

 

 

Authorized Representative 

Signed Name & Title:        Date:    
  

40 of 84



ATTACHMENT J - SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 287.133 (3) (a), FLORIDA STATUTES, ON 
PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES 

THIS FORM MUST BE SIGNED AND SWORN TO IN THE PRESENCE OF A NOTARY PUBLIC OR OTHER 
OFFICIAL AUTHORIZED TO ADMINISTER OATHS. 

1. This sworn statement is submitted to: The Workforce Board of the Treasure Coast, Inc. d/b/a CareerSource
Research Coast

by 
(print individual's name and title) 

for 
 (print name of entity submitting sworn statement) 

whose business address is  

and (if applicable) its Federal Employer Identification Number is    if the 
entity has no FEIN, include the Social Security Number of the individual signing this sworn statement.) 

2. I understand that a "public entity crime" as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1) (g), Florida Statutes, means a
violation of any state or federal law by a person with respect to and directly related to the transaction of
business with any public entity or with an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United
States, including, but not limited to, any bid or contract for goods or services to be provided to any public
entity or an agency or political subdivision of any other state or of the United States and involving antitrust,
fraud, theft, bribery, collusion, racketeering, conspiracy, or material misrepresentation.

3. I understand that "convicted" or "conviction" as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1) (b), Florida Statutes, means
a finding of guilt or a conviction of a public entity crime, with or without an adjudication of guilt, in any federal
or state trial court of record relating to charges brought by indictment or information after July 1, 1989, as
result of a jury verdict, nonjury trial, or entry of a plea of guilty or nolo contendere.

4. I understand that an "affiliate" as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1) (a), Florida Statutes, means:

a. A predecessor or successor of a person convicted of a public entity crime; or
b. An entity under the control of any natural person who is active in the management of the entity and who

has been convicted of a public entity crime.  The term "affiliate" includes those officers, directors,
executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and agents who are active in the management
of an affiliate.  The ownership by one person of shares constituting a controlling interest in another
person, or a pooling of equipment or income among persons when not for fair market value under an
arm's length agreement, shall be a prima facie case that one person controls another person.  A person
who knowingly enters into a joint venture with a person who has been convicted of a public entity crime
in Florida during the preceding 36 months shall be considered an affiliate.

5. I understand that a "person" as defined in Paragraph 287.133 (1) (e), Florida Statutes, means any natural person
or entity organized under the laws of any state or of the United States with the legal power to enter into a
binding contract and which bids or applies to bid on contracts for the provision of goods or services let by a
public entity, or which otherwise transacts or applies to transact business with a public entity.  The term
"person" includes those officers, directors, executives, partners, shareholders, employees, members, and
agents who are active in management of an entity.

41 of 84



6. Based on information and belief, the applicable statement which I have marked below is true in relation to
the entity submitting this sworn statement.

 Neither the entity submitting this sworn statement, nor any of its officers, directors, executives, 
partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the 
entity, nor any affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime 
subsequent to July 1, 1989. 

  The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, 
partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the 
entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime 
subsequent to July 1, 1989. 

  The entity submitting this sworn statement, or one or more of its officers, directors, executives, 
partners, shareholders, employees, members, or agents who are active in the management of the 
entity, or an affiliate of the entity has been charged with and convicted of a public entity crime 
subsequent to July 1, 1989; however, there has been a subsequent proceeding before a Hearing 
Officer of the State of Florida, Division of Administrative Hearings and the Final Order entered by 
the Hearing Officer determined that it was not in the public interest to place the entity submitting 
this sworn statement on the convicted vendor list.  Attached is a copy of the final order. 

I UNDERSTAND THAT THE SUBMISSION OF THIS FORM TO THE CONTRACTING OFFICER FOR THE PUBLIC 
ENTITY IDENTIFIED IN PARAGRAPH 1 (ONE) ABOVE IS FOR THAT PUBLIC ENTITY ONLY AND, THAT THIS FORM 
IS VALID THROUGH DECEMBER 31 OF THE CALENDAR YEAR IN WHICH IT IS FILED, OR THROUGH THE END 
OF THE CONTRACT FOR WHICH IT IS BEING SIGNED.  I ALSO UNDERSTAND THAT I AM REQUIRED TO INFORM 
THE PUBLIC ENTITY PRIOR TO ENTERING INTO A CONTRACT IN EXCESS OF THE THRESHOLD AMOUNT 
PROVIDED IN SECTION 287.017, FLORIDA STATUES FOR CATEGORY TWO OF ANY CHANGE IN THE 
INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS FORM. 

Signature: ____________________________________________   

Date: _______________________ 

NOTARY PUBLIC 

STATE OF _______________   COUNTY OF_______________________ 

PERSONALLY APPEARED BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, ___________________________________ 
(name of individual signing) 

who, after first being sworn by me, affixed his/her signature in the space provided above on 

this ________day of ________________, ____. 

My commission expires: 

42 of 84



ATTACHMENT K - CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY 
MATTERS 

1. The Service Provider certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its principal:

A. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any federal department or agency.

B. Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been convicted of or had a civil judgment
rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining,
attempting to obtain, or performing a public (federal, state, or local) transaction or contract under a
public transaction, violation of federal or state antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft,
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statement, or receiving stolen
property;

C. Are not presently indicated for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a government entity (federal, 
state, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(B) of this
certification; and

D. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal/contract had one or more
public transactions (federal, state, or local) terminated for cause or default.

2. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such
prospective participant shall submit an explanation to CSRC.

   Service Provider 

Name and Title of Certifying Representative 

    Signature of Certifying Representative 

  Date 

43 of 84



ATTACHMENT L - BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATE 

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements (to be submitted with each bid or offer 
exceeding $100,000)  

APPLICABLE TO THIS CONTRACT:  Yes: ☒ No: ☐ 

The undersigned Service Provider certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 

(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer
or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any
Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal
contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for making
lobbying contacts to an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form--LLL, “Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions as amended by “Government wide Guidance for New
Restrictions on Lobbying,” 61 Fed. Reg. 1413 (1/19/96).

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all
sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative
agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was 
made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction 
imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file 
the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 
for each such failure.  

Pursuant to 31 U.S.C. § 1352(c)(1)-(2)(A), any person who makes a prohibited expenditure or fails to file or amend a 
required certification or disclosure form shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more 
than $100,000 for each such expenditure or failure.  

The Service Provider, Eckerd Connects, Inc., certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement 
of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Service Provider understands and agrees that the 
provisions of 31 U.S.C. A 3801, et seq., apply to this certification and disclosure.  

Name and Title of Certifying Representative 

    Signature of Certifying Representative 

  Date 

44 of 84



ATTACHMENT M - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY PROVISIONS ASSURANCE 
STATEMENT 

As a condition to the award of financial assistance from the Department of Labor under Title I of the WIOA, the 
grant applicant assures that it will comply fully with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions of the 
following laws: 

• Section 188 of the Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act (WIOA), Which prohibits discrimination against
all individuals in the United States on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability,
political affiliation or belief, and against beneficiaries on the basis of either citizenship/status as a lawfully
admitted immigrant authorized to work in the United States or participation in any WIA Title I- Financially
assisted program or activity;

• Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits discrimination based on race, color,
and national origin.

• Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits discrimination against qualified
individuals with disabilities.

• The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, which prohibits discrimination based on age.
• Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits discrimination based on sex

in educational programs.
• Section 654 of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981 prohibiting discrimination based on race,

creed, color, national origin, sex, handicap, political affiliation or beliefs.
• The American with Disabilities Act of 1990, P.L. 101-336 prohibiting discrimination in all employment

practices, including the job application procedures, hiring, firing, advancement, compensation, training,
and other terms, conditions, and privileges of employment.  It applies to recruitment, advertising, tenure,
layoff, leave, fringe benefits, and all other employment-related activities; and

The Service Provider also assures that it will comply with 29 CFR Part 37 and all other regulation implementing 
the laws listed above.  

For construction contracts in excess of $10,000, the Service Provider will comply with Executive Order 11246 of 
September, 24, 1965, entitled “Equal Employment Opportunity” as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 
13, 1967, and supplemented on Department of Labor regulations at 41 CFR Chapter 60. 

Failure to comply with these provisions may result in termination of any contract or agreement with CSRC. 

I certify that I have read the above statement and on behalf of Eckerd Connects, Inc. agree to comply fully with 
the provisions contained therein. 

Name and Title of Certifying Representative 

    Signature of Certifying Representative 

  Date 

45 of 84



ATTACHMENT N - DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENT CERTIFICATION 

Pursuant to the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and its implementing regulations codified at 29 CRF 98, Subpart 

F, I _____________________________ the undersigned, in representation of Eckerd Connects, Inc., attest and 
certify that the grantee will provide a drug-free workplace by: 

1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution, dispensing,
possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace and specifying the
actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such prohibition.

2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about:

(a) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace.
(b) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.
(c) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
(d) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.

3. Making it a requirement that each employee engaged in the performance of the grant be given a copy of the
statement required by paragraph (1).

4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (1) that, as a condition of employment under
the grant, the employee will:

(a) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(b) Notifying the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring

in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction.

5. Notifying the agency in writing ten calendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (4)(b) from an
employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.  We will provide such notice of convicted
employees, including position title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was
working.  The notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant.

6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under subparagraph 4(b), with
respect to any employee who is so convicted:

(a) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination,
consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 as amended; or

(b) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation
program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local, health, law enforcement, or other
appropriate agency.

7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through implementation of
paragraphs (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), and (6).

8. Notwithstanding, it is not required to provide the workplace address under the grant.  As of today, the specific
sites are known and we have decided to provide the specific addresses with the understanding that if any of
the identified places change during the performance of the grant, we will inform the agency of the changes.

46 of 84



The following are the sites for the performance of work done in connection with the specific grant including 
street address, city, county, state, and zip code: 

 
Check (    ) if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. 
Check (    ) if an additional page was required for the listing of the workplaces. 

 
I declare, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States, and under the penalties set forth by the 
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, that this certification is true and correct. 
 
I certify that I who sign this Drug-Free Workplace Certification on behalf of the Service Provider, do so by the 
authority given by the Governor of the State of Florida, that such signing is within the scope of my powers.  
 
 
 
          
        Service Provider 
 
          
  Name and Title of Certifying Representative 
 
          
      Signature of Certifying Representative  
 
          
      Date 
 
 
  

47 of 84



ATTACHMENT O - CERTIFICATION REGARDING SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES 

Section 287.135(2)(a), Florida Statutes, prohibits a company from bidding on, submitting a proposal for, or entering 
into or renewing a contract for goods or services of any amount if, at the time of contracting or renewal, the 
company is on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List, created pursuant to section 215.4725, Florida 
Statutes, or is engaged in a boycott of Israel. Section 287.135(2)(b), Florida Statutes, further prohibits a company 
from bidding on, submitting a proposal for, or entering into or renewing a contract for goods or services over one 
million dollars ($1,000,000) if, at the time of contracting or renewal, the company is on either the Scrutinized 
Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy 
Sector List, both created pursuant to section 215.473, Florida Statutes, or the company is engaged in business 
operations in Cuba or Syria.  

As the person authorized to sign on behalf of ___________________________________________________, 

I hereby certify that the statement selected below is true:                      (Service Provider) 

☐ The Service Provider

i. Is not engaged in a boycott of Israel and
ii. Is not on the Scrutinized Companies that Boycott Israel List and
iii. Is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List and
iv. Is not on the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran Petroleum Energy Sector List and
v. Has not engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria.

☐ The Service Provider meets the conditions for exemption as provided in section 287.135(4), Florida Statutes.

I understand that pursuant to section 287.135, Florida Statutes, the submission of a false certification may subject 
the company to civil penalties, attorney’s fees, and/or costs. I further understand that any contract with Workforce 
Development Board of the Treasure Coast d/b/a CareerSource Research for goods or services of any amount may 
be terminated if the Service Provider is found to have submitted a false certification may subject the company to 
civil penalties, attorney's fees, and/or costs. I further understand that any contract for goods or services may be 
terminated if the Service Provider is found to have submitted a false certification or has been placed on the 
Scrutinized Companies with Activities in Sudan List or the Scrutinized Companies with Activities in the Iran 
Petroleum Energy Sector List or been engaged in business operations in Cuba or Syria. 

Name and Title of Certifying Representative 

    Signature of Certifying Representative 

  Date 

48 of 84



ATTACHMENT P – LOCAL DEFINITION FOR YOUTH REQUIRING ADDITIONAL ASSISTANCE TO COMPLETE 
AN EDUCATION PROGRAM OR TO SECURE AND HOLD EMPLOYMENT 

LWDB 20 defines "A low- income individual who requires additional assistance to enter or complete an 
educational program or to secure or hold employment" as a youth that meets Federal guidelines for low income 
and also meets one or more of the following criteria: 

1. Youth that have one or more biological parent incarcerated, institutionalized, or sentenced by a court of law
to incarceration/institutionalization for more than one year. Documentation must be provided by court,
institution, or the Department of Corrections.

2. Youth that have been victims of domestic violence or intimate partner violence as documented by law
enforcement or domestic violence organization.

3. Youth that are documented gang members as defined and documented by local law enforcement.

4. Youth that are residing in a high poverty area as defined by census track records showing area of youth's
residence as having a poverty rate of 25% or greater.

5. Youth that are over age 21 and have no work history or have poor work history as defined by the lack of
employment for more than 180 consecutive days as documented by employer records, pay records, or State
system (Suntax).

6. Youth at risk of dropping out of high school due to grades/credits/ attendance/not passing proficiency exams
or has had an out of school suspension or expulsion from school.

7. Is attending an alternative school/education program or has been enrolled in an alternative school within the
past 12 months.

In accordance with WIOA guidelines, ISY youth applying for the WIOA youth program as a "youth requiring 
additional assistance" must also meet income guidelines for WIOA enrollment. CareerSource Research Coast 
utilizes federal/state/local agency documentation sources as validation of the "youth requiring additional 
assistance" barrier whenever possible but may accept an applicant statement/self-attestation in extenuating 
circumstances. 

49 of 84



Agenda Item 4 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Title

Strategic 
Plans/Goals

Policy/Plan/Law

Action Requested

Background

Staff  
Recommendations

Supporting 
Material 

Board Staff

Review and Approve Revisions to the WIOA Youth - Incentive 
Payments Policy   

Optimal Use of Resources

Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act 

Review and Approve Revisions to the WIOA Youth - Incentive 
Payments Policy Revisions

WIOA regulations authorize the use of incentive payments for youth 
participants.  Incentive payments are allowable for recognition and 
achievements directly tied to training activities, education, and work 
experience.  Local Workforce Development Boards are tasked with 
determining the value of the incentive payments and to create 
policies governing their use.  

Review and Approve the WIOA Youth - Incentive Payments Policy 
Revisions 

WIOA Youth - Incentive Payments Policy Revisions 

Tracey McMorris
Vice President of Operations/COO 
tmcmorris@careersourcerc.com 
(866) 482-4473 ext. 528

50 of 84

mailto:ccoble@careersourcerc.com


WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT YOUTH 
INCENTIVE PAYMENTS POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 8/17/2021 
REVISION DATE: 097/0819//20223 

BOARD EFFECTIVE DATE: 1008/2630/20223 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers may be reached by persons using TTY/TDD 
equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

6 Item - WIOA Youth - Incentive Payment Policy - October August 20223 Page 1 of 3 

PURPOSE 
To establish a uniform standard for providing incentive payments to Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 
(WIOA) Youth Program participants of CareerSource Research Coast (CSRC). 

REFERENCE 
20 CFR 681.640. U.S. Department of Labor Training and Employment Guidance Letter No. 21-16. 

BACKGROUND 
WIOA regulations authorize the use of incentive payments for youth participants. Unlike supportive services, 
incentives are permitted for recognition and achievements directly tied to training activities, education, and work 
experience. In addition, Local Workforce Development Boards may determine the value of the incentive payments 
and create policies related to their use. Achievements completed prior to WIOA Youth enrollment do not qualify 
for incentives. 

Opportunities for WIOA Youth to earn incentives must be outlined in writing and reviewed with the participant to 
ensure a thorough understanding of program requirements. Supporting documentation of the activities completed 
or milestones achieved must be documented in the participant’s file as verification of achievement. 

LOCAL POLICY 
For CSRC, In-School Youth (ISY) participants are limited to a maximum incentive earnings of $600 and Out-of- 
School Youth (OSY) participants are limited to maximum incentive earnings of $650 per program year. If 
extenuating circumstances require funding in excess of the allowable limits, exceptions may be made upon 
request by the WIOA Youth Program Manager to the CSRC staff overseeing the WIOA Youth Workforce Service 
Contract and approved by CSRC’s Chief Financial Officer. 

Incentive payments are based on the availability of funding and may be declined, adjusted, and/or discontinued 
due to changes in funding, budgets, and contracts, without notice. A participant’s lack of satisfactory 
performance/progress or disciplinary issues may delay receipt of any/all incentives until resolved. 

CSRC offers the incentives listed below to WIOA Youth participants as determined allowable and upon meeting 
the requirements listed for each. Complete details regarding specific requirements for each may be found on the 
OSY Youth Connections Incentive Sheet and ISY Youth Connections Incentive Sheet. 

Type Description Value Limit Per
Program 

Year 

ISY, 
OSY, or 

Both 

Successful Grade 
Report 

Submission of end of term grade report reflecting 
satisfactory progress in a current education program. 

$25 Two ISY

51 of 84



WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT YOUTH 
INCENTIVE PAYMENTS POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 8/17/2021 
REVISION DATE: 097/0819//20223 

BOARD EFFECTIVE DATE: 1008/2630/20223 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers may be reached by persons using TTY/TDD 
equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

6 Item - WIOA Youth - Incentive Payment Policy - October August 20223 Page 2 of 3 

 

 

 
Type Description Value Limit Per 

Program 
Year 

ISY, 
OSY, or 

Both 

Success in 
Education 

Attainment of Dean’s List, Honor Roll, or Perfect 
Attendance reports in conjunction with a successful 
grade report 

$50 One ISY 

YESS Class 
Completion 

Completion of core modules of the YESS Work 
Readiness curriculum. 

$100 One Both 

Job Shadowing Completion of a minimum of ten- twelve documented 
hours “shadowing” a professional in the industry or 

field identified in the participant’s career plan. 

$75 - OSY 

$50- ISY 

One - OSY 

Two - ISY 

Both 

Internship 
Completion 

Completion of an internship for six- eight 
consecutive weeks working 140 hours minimum to/ 

192 hours maximum. 

$150 One Both 

Basic Skills Upgrade Increase of at least one Educational Functioning Level. 
Must be basic skills deficient at the time of enrollment. 

$50 - OSY 
$25 - ISY 

Two Both 

Credentialing – Long 
term Occupational 
Skills Credential 

Attainment of a state or nationally recognized 
certification requiring long-term academic or 

occupational skills upgrades/training. 

$100 One Both 

Credentialing – 
GED/High School 

Diploma 

Attainment of a state or nationally recognized high 
school diploma or GED. 

$200 -OSY 
$150 - ISY 

One Both 

Financial Literacy Completion of an assigned Financial Literacy course. $25 One Both 

Leadership/ 
Entrepreneurial 

Project 

Planning and execution of an approved 
leadership/entrepreneurial project. 

$25 One Both 

Education 
Exploration 

Completion of at least one higher education institution 
visit. 

$25 One Both 

52 of 84



WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT YOUTH 
INCENTIVE PAYMENTS POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 8/17/2021 
REVISION DATE: 097/0819//20223 

BOARD EFFECTIVE DATE: 1008/2630/20223 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers may be reached by persons using TTY/TDD 
equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

6 Item - WIOA Youth - Incentive Payment Policy - October August 20223 Page 3 of 3 

Type Description Value Limit Per
Program 

Year 

ISY, 
OSY, or 

Both 

Youth Positive 
Outcome- Entered 
Employment/Job 

Retention 

Obtained employment, earned an industry- 
recognized credential if enrolled in a training activity, 
and gained a basic skills upgrade (if youth is basic-

skills-deficient at enrollment). 

$150 One Both

Youth Positive 
Outcome- Enrolled 
in Post-Secondary 

Education or 
Occupational Skills 

Training 

Earned an industry-recognized credential if 
enrolled in a training activity and enrollment/ 
attendance in post-secondary education and 

gained a basic skills upgrade (if youth is basic- 
skills-deficient at enrollment). 

$150 One Both

Youth Positive 
Outcome- Enlisted in 

the Military 

Earned an industry- recognized credential if enrolled in 
a training activity and enlisted in the military and 

gained a basic skills upgrade (if youth is basic-skills-
deficient at enrollment). 

$150 One Both

Youth Positive 
Outcome- Enrolled 
in a State Approved 

Apprenticeship 
Program 

Earned an industry-recognized credential if enrolled in 
a training activity and entered a state-approved 

apprenticeship and gained a basic skills upgrade (if 
youth is basic-skills-deficient at enrollment). 

$150 One Both 

2nd Quarter 
Employment 

Retention 

Verification of employment or school attendance 
during the second quarter after program exit. 

$75 One Both

4th Quarter 
Employment 

Retention 

Verification of employment or school attendance 
during the fourth quarter after program exit. 

$75 One Both

Referenced Documents: 

OSY Youth Connections Incentive Sheet 

ISY Youth Connections Incentive Sheet 
WIOA Youth Incentive Payments Procedure 

53 of 84



WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT YOUTH 
INCENTIVE PAYMENTS POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 8/17/2021 
REVISION DATE: 07/19//2023 

BOARD EFFECTIVE DATE: 08/30/2023 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers may be reached by persons using TTY/TDD 
equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

6 Item - WIOA Youth - Incentive Payment Policy - August 2023 Page 1 of 3 

PURPOSE 
To establish a uniform standard for providing incentive payments to Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 
(WIOA) Youth Program participants of CareerSource Research Coast (CSRC). 

REFERENCE 
20 CFR 681.640. U.S. Department of Labor Training and Employment Guidance Letter No. 21-16. 

BACKGROUND 
WIOA regulations authorize the use of incentive payments for youth participants. Unlike supportive services, 
incentives are permitted for recognition and achievements directly tied to training activities, education, and work 
experience. In addition, Local Workforce Development Boards may determine the value of the incentive payments 
and create policies related to their use. Achievements completed prior to WIOA Youth enrollment do not qualify 
for incentives. 

Opportunities for WIOA Youth to earn incentives must be outlined in writing and reviewed with the participant to 
ensure a thorough understanding of program requirements. Supporting documentation of the activities completed 
or milestones achieved must be documented in the participant’s file as verification of achievement. 

LOCAL POLICY 
For CSRC, In-School Youth (ISY) participants are limited to a maximum incentive earnings of $600 and Out-of- 
School Youth (OSY) participants are limited to maximum incentive earnings of $650 per program year. If 
extenuating circumstances require funding in excess of the allowable limits, exceptions may be made upon 
request by the WIOA Youth Program Manager to the CSRC staff overseeing the WIOA Youth Workforce Service 
Contract and approved by CSRC’s Chief Financial Officer. 

Incentive payments are based on the availability of funding and may be declined, adjusted, and/or discontinued 
due to changes in funding, budgets, and contracts, without notice. A participant’s lack of satisfactory 
performance/progress or disciplinary issues may delay receipt of any/all incentives until resolved. 

CSRC offers the incentives listed below to WIOA Youth participants as determined allowable and upon meeting 
the requirements listed for each. Complete details regarding specific requirements for each may be found on the 
OSY Youth Connections Incentive Sheet and ISY Youth Connections Incentive Sheet. 

Type Description Value Limit Per
Program 

Year 

ISY, 
OSY, or 

Both 

Successful Grade 
Report 

Submission of end of term grade report reflecting 
satisfactory progress in a current education program. 

$25 Two ISY

54 of 84



WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT YOUTH 
INCENTIVE PAYMENTS POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 8/17/2021 
REVISION DATE: 07/19//2023 

BOARD EFFECTIVE DATE: 08/30/2023 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers may be reached by persons using TTY/TDD 
equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

6 Item - WIOA Youth - Incentive Payment Policy - August 2023 Page 2 of 3 

Type Description Value Limit Per
Program 

Year 

ISY, 
OSY, or 

Both 

Success in 
Education 

Attainment of Dean’s List, Honor Roll, or Perfect 
Attendance reports in conjunction with a successful 
grade report 

$50 One ISY

YESS Class 
Completion 

Completion of core modules of the YESS Work 
Readiness curriculum. 

$100 One Both

Job Shadowing Completion of a minimum of ten- twelve documented 
hours “shadowing” a professional in the industry or 

field identified in the participant’s career plan. 

$75 - OSY 

$50- ISY 

One - OSY 

Two - ISY 

Both 

Internship 
Completion 

Completion of an internship working 140 hours 
minimum to 192 hours maximum. 

$150 One Both

Basic Skills Upgrade Increase of at least one Educational Functioning Level. 
Must be basic skills deficient at the time of enrollment. 

$50 - OSY 
$25 - ISY 

Two Both

Credentialing – Long 
term Occupational 
Skills Credential 

Attainment of a state or nationally recognized 
certification requiring long-term academic or 

occupational skills upgrades/training. 

$100 One Both

Credentialing – 
GED/High School 

Diploma 

Attainment of a state or nationally recognized high 
school diploma or GED. 

$200 -OSY 
$150 - ISY 

One Both

Financial Literacy Completion of an assigned Financial Literacy course. $25 One Both 

Leadership/ 
Entrepreneurial 

Project 

Planning and execution of an approved 
leadership/entrepreneurial project. 

$25 One Both

Education 
Exploration 

Completion of at least one higher education institution 
visit. 

$25 One Both

55 of 84



WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT YOUTH 
INCENTIVE PAYMENTS POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 8/17/2021 
REVISION DATE: 07/19//2023 

BOARD EFFECTIVE DATE: 08/30/2023 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers may be reached by persons using TTY/TDD 
equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

6 Item - WIOA Youth - Incentive Payment Policy - August 2023 Page 3 of 3 

Type Description Value Limit Per
Program 

Year 

ISY, 
OSY, or 

Both 

Youth Positive 
Outcome- Entered 
Employment/Job 

Retention 

Obtained employment, earned an industry- 
recognized credential if enrolled in a training activity, 
and gained a basic skills upgrade (if youth is basic-

skills-deficient at enrollment). 

$150 One Both

Youth Positive 
Outcome- Enrolled 
in Post-Secondary 

Education or 
Occupational Skills 

Training 

Earned an industry-recognized credential if 
enrolled in a training activity and enrollment/ 
attendance in post-secondary education and 

gained a basic skills upgrade (if youth is basic- 
skills-deficient at enrollment). 

$150 One Both

Youth Positive 
Outcome- Enlisted in 

the Military 

Earned an industry- recognized credential if enrolled in 
a training activity and enlisted in the military and 

gained a basic skills upgrade (if youth is basic-skills-
deficient at enrollment). 

$150 One Both

Youth Positive 
Outcome- Enrolled 
in a State Approved 

Apprenticeship 
Program 

Earned an industry-recognized credential if enrolled in 
a training activity and entered a state-approved 

apprenticeship and gained a basic skills upgrade (if 
youth is basic-skills-deficient at enrollment). 

$150 One Both 

2nd Quarter 
Employment 

Retention 

Verification of employment or school attendance 
during the second quarter after program exit. 

$75 One Both

4th Quarter 
Employment 

Retention 

Verification of employment or school attendance 
during the fourth quarter after program exit. 

$75 One Both

Referenced Documents: 

OSY Youth Connections Incentive Sheet 

ISY Youth Connections Incentive Sheet 
WIOA Youth Incentive Payments Procedure 

56 of 84



Agenda Item 5

Title

Strategic 
Plans/Goals

Policy/Plan/Law

Action 
Requested

Background

Staff 
Recommendations

Supporting Material

Board Staff

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Review and Approve Revisions to WIOA Youth - Supportive 
Services Policy 

Optimal Use of Resources

Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act 

Review and Approve Revisions to the WIOA Supportive Services 
Policy Revisions

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) requires 
that WIOA participants have access to limited funds designated 
through program design to help them overcome barriers to 
employment. Supportive service payments are issued on a case-
by-case basis and determined by the individual participant’s needs 
under WIOA regulations. 

Approve revisions to the WIOA Youth - Supportive Services Policy 
Revisions

WIOA Youth - Supportive Services Policy Revisions

Tracey McMorris
Vice President of Operations/COO 
tmcmorris@careersourcerc.com 
1-866-482-4473 ext. 528

57 of 84

mailto:ccoble@careersourcerc.com


WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT - YOUTH  
SUPPORTIVE SERVICES POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 3/28/2018 
REVISION DATE: 1007/0519/20213 

BOARD EFFECTIVE DATE: 1008/2730/20213 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers may be 
reached by persons using TTY/TDD equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

WIOA Youth – Support Service Policy October August  20213

PURPOSE 
To establish a uniform standard for providing supportive services to Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act 
(WIOA) Youth program participants of CareerSource Research Coast (CSRC).  To avoid duplication, WIOA Youth 
Program staff shall coordinate and provide cost-effective support services to participants by either connecting 
participants to other resources or when appropriate WIOA funding is available. CSRC shall authorize supportive 
services when a participant demonstrates the financial need, when the participant will not be successful without 
the support, and when no alternative funding is available to pay for such supportive service.  

REFERENCES 
Section 129 of the Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act. WIOA Desk Reference; Supportive Services, June 
2017 Edition, Employment and Training Administration, United States Department of Labor, U.S. Department of 
Labor Training and Employment Guidance Letter No.  TEGL 21-16, and CareerSource Florida Administrative Policy 
No. 109.  

BACKGROUND 
Supportive services, one of the fourteen program elements for the WIOA youth program, are services that 
enable an individual to participate in WIOA activities. These supportive services include but are not limited to 
assistance with transportation, childcare, housing, health care, educational testing, work-related attire, and work-
related tools.  

LOCAL POLICY 
To help WIOA Youth program participants overcome barriers to employment and training services, supportive 
services may be provided to youth actively enrolled and participating in a training activity. Staff must assess the 
youth’s financial need for supportive services during the initial objective assessment and throughout the youth’s 
enrollment in career and training services. WIOA-funded supportive services may be provided to youth only after 
staff has determined and appropriately documented the following: 

 Supportive services are necessary for the youth to complete the WIOA career or training services.
 The identified supportive service is not available through other agencies, programs, or services.

o If available through other sources, staff must document how/why referrals to other agencies for
the supportive service would create a hardship for the participant.

 Staff has documented the need for the supportive service in the participant’s Individual Service
Strategy (ISS) OR Individual Employment Plan (IEP).

 WIOA Youth participant has completed and signed a Statement of Need documenting the financial
need for support and the cost of the requested supportive services. A copy of the form must be
maintained in the participant’s case file.

 Staff has recorded the appropriate code in the State’s Management Information System, Employ
Florida, along with a supporting case note documenting the need for the supportive service, as
reflected in the IEP.

Staff must ensure supportive services provided are used for their intended purpose and must not be issued to a 
third party on behalf of the WIOA Youth participant. Supportive services are purchased directly from the 
appropriate vendor; CSRC does not reimburse youth for costs incurred.  The availability of supportive services 
may vary with each program year and is based on WIOA Youth Program funding. 

58 of 84



WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT - YOUTH  
SUPPORTIVE SERVICES POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 3/28/2018 
REVISION DATE: 1007/0519/20213 

BOARD EFFECTIVE DATE: 1008/2730/20213 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers may be 
reached by persons using TTY/TDD equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

WIOA Youth – Support Service Policy October August  20213

Due to limited WIOA Youth program funding, CSRC does not regularly authorize supportive service payments 
for housing expenses, childcare/dependent care, legal fees, fines, late fees, court costs, or any item not listed in 
the chart below.  However, requests for support services not listed may be approved by the WIOA Youth 
Program Manager.  

SUPPORT SERVICE LIMITATIONS PER YOUTH PER PROGRAM YEAR 
Support Service Cost Limitation Quantity Limitation 
Uniforms $75100.00 2 Tops, 2 Bottoms 
Shoes $50.00 One Pair
Safety Steel Toe Boots $75.00 One Pair 
Interview Attire $75100.00 2 Tops, 2 Bottoms, and Shoes 
Tools $100.00 No Quantity Limitation
Background Screening $100.00 No Quantity Limitation 
Physicals/Drug Screening $100.00 No Quantity Limitation 
Bus Passes $35.00 One Book Per Month Maximum 
Gas Cards/Uber Cards Based on Mileage, Not to 

Exceed $2550.00 
One Per Month Maximum 

Educational Testing, Licensing 
Fees, Required Textbooks 

$300.00 No Quantity Limitation

Required Accommodations for 
Youth with Disabilities 

No Predetermined Limit- 
Based on Documentation 
of Need and Manager 
approval 

No Quantity Limitation 

Driver’s License, Permit, State 
ID 

$65.00No Predetermined 
Limit. Based on actual cost. 

No Quantity Limitation 

Reference Documents: 
WIOA Youth - Supportive Services Procedure 

59 of 84



WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT - YOUTH  
SUPPORTIVE SERVICES POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 3/28/2018 
REVISION DATE: 07/19/2023 

BOARD EFFECTIVE DATE: 08/30/2023 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers may be 
reached by persons using TTY/TDD equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

WIOA Youth – Support Service Policy August  2023

PURPOSE 
To establish a uniform standard for providing supportive services to Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act 
(WIOA) Youth program participants of CareerSource Research Coast (CSRC).  To avoid duplication, WIOA Youth 
Program staff shall coordinate and provide cost-effective support services to participants by either connecting 
participants to other resources or when appropriate WIOA funding is available. CSRC shall authorize supportive 
services when a participant demonstrates the financial need, when the participant will not be successful without 
the support, and when no alternative funding is available to pay for such supportive service.  

REFERENCES 
Section 129 of the Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act. WIOA Desk Reference; Supportive Services, June 
2017 Edition, Employment and Training Administration, United States Department of Labor, U.S. Department of 
Labor Training and Employment Guidance Letter No.  TEGL 21-16, and CareerSource Florida Administrative Policy 
No. 109.  

BACKGROUND 
Supportive services, one of the fourteen program elements for the WIOA youth program, are services that 
enable an individual to participate in WIOA activities. These supportive services include but are not limited to 
assistance with transportation, childcare, housing, health care, educational testing, work-related attire, and work-
related tools.  

LOCAL POLICY 
To help WIOA Youth program participants overcome barriers to employment and training services, supportive 
services may be provided to youth actively enrolled and participating in a training activity. Staff must assess the 
youth’s financial need for supportive services during the initial objective assessment and throughout the youth’s 
enrollment in career and training services. WIOA-funded supportive services may be provided to youth only after 
staff has determined and appropriately documented the following: 

 Supportive services are necessary for the youth to complete the WIOA career or training services.
 The identified supportive service is not available through other agencies, programs, or services.

o If available through other sources, staff must document how/why referrals to other agencies for
the supportive service would create a hardship for the participant.

 Staff has documented the need for the supportive service in the participant’s Individual Service
Strategy (ISS) OR Individual Employment Plan (IEP).

 WIOA Youth participant has completed and signed a Statement of Need documenting the financial
need for support and the cost of the requested supportive services. A copy of the form must be
maintained in the participant’s case file.

 Staff has recorded the appropriate code in the State’s Management Information System, Employ
Florida, along with a supporting case note documenting the need for the supportive service, as
reflected in the IEP.

Staff must ensure supportive services provided are used for their intended purpose and must not be issued to a 
third party on behalf of the WIOA Youth participant. Supportive services are purchased directly from the 
appropriate vendor; CSRC does not reimburse youth for costs incurred.  The availability of supportive services 
may vary with each program year and is based on WIOA Youth Program funding. 

60 of 84



WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT - YOUTH  
SUPPORTIVE SERVICES POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 3/28/2018 
REVISION DATE: 07/19/2023 

BOARD EFFECTIVE DATE: 08/30/2023 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers may be 
reached by persons using TTY/TDD equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

WIOA Youth – Support Service Policy August  2023

Due to limited WIOA Youth program funding, CSRC does not regularly authorize supportive service payments 
for housing expenses, childcare/dependent care, legal fees, fines, late fees, court costs, or any item not listed in 
the chart below.  However, requests for support services not listed may be approved by the WIOA Youth 
Program Manager.  

SUPPORT SERVICE LIMITATIONS PER YOUTH PER PROGRAM YEAR 
Support Service Cost Limitation Quantity Limitation 
Uniforms $100.00 2 Tops, 2 Bottoms 
Shoes $50.00 One Pair
Safety Steel Toe Boots $75.00 One Pair 
Interview Attire $100.00 2 Tops, 2 Bottoms 
Tools $100.00 No Quantity Limitation
Background Screening $100.00 No Quantity Limitation 
Physicals/Drug Screening $100.00 No Quantity Limitation 
Bus Passes $35.00 One Book Per Month Maximum 
Gas Cards/Uber Cards Based on Mileage, Not to 

Exceed $50.00 
One Per Month Maximum 

Educational Testing, Licensing 
Fees, Required Textbooks 

$300.00 No Quantity Limitation

Required Accommodations for 
Youth with Disabilities 

No Predetermined Limit- 
Based on Documentation 
of Need and Manager 
approval 

No Quantity Limitation 

Driver’s License, Permit, State 
ID 

No Predetermined Limit. 
Based on actual cost. 

No Quantity Limitation 

Reference Documents: 
WIOA Youth - Supportive Services Procedure 

61 of 84



Agenda Item 6 

Title

Strategic Plans/Goals

Policy/Plan/Law

Action Requested

Background

Staff 
Recommendations

Supporting Material 

Board Staff

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Review and Approve WIOA - Individual Training Account Policy 
Revisions

Optimal Use of Resources

Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Section 134 (c)(3)(G)(ii) 

Review and Approve WIOA - Individual Training Account Policy 
Revisions

The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) requires that 
individuals be provided an Individual Training Account (ITA) to pay 
for tuition, books, and fees related to occupational skills training 
accessed through an approved training provider. CareerSource 
Florida requires that local boards establish policies related to the 
value of the ITA, cancellation, transferability, and limits that apply to 
these accounts.  

Program & Services Committee made a motion to approve the WIOA 
- Individual Training Account Policy Revisions with an amendment of 
adding a Maximum ITA amount for Tier 3 or striking the addition of 
Tier 3 completely.

Review and Approve WIOA - Individual Training Account Policy 
Revisions

WIOA - Individual Training Account Policy Revisions

Tracey McMorris
Vice President of Operations/COO 
tmcmorris@careesourcerc.com 
1-866-482-4473 ext. 528

62 of 84



PURPOSE 
To provide guidance on the use of Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Individual Training Accounts (ITA) 
for eligible and suitable career seekers determined in need of training. WIOA training services are provided to assist a 
career seeker in obtainingself-sufficient employment in their field of training. This policy establishes guidelines to promote 
successful training completion, certification/credential attainment and gainfulemployment. 

REFERENCE 
The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 (WIOA), Sec.134(c)(3)(G)(ii), specifies that, with certain limited 
exemptions, all Title I Adult and Dislocated Worker training services shall be provided using Individual Training Accounts 
(ITAs). 

BACKGROUND 
The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act promotes career seeker choice and designates ITAs for that purpose. 
Career seekers determined eligible and suitable are issued an ITA for training programs in alignment with occupations 
identified on the Local Targeted Occupations List (LTOL) and included on the approved Eligible Training Provider List 
(ETPL). WIOA Section 134 states that training services may include a program of one or more classes or courses, or a 
structured regimen, that upon successful completion leads to a certification/credential, an associate of science degree, a 
baccalaureate degree, completion of a registered apprenticeship program, or the skills or competencies needed for a 
specific job or jobs, an occupation, an occupational group, or generally, for many types of jobs or occupations, as 
recognized by employers and determined prior to training. 

Under WIOA, training services may be provided if CareerSource Research Coast (CSRC) staff determine, after an interview, 
evaluation, assessment, and career planning, that the individual: 
 Is unlikely or unable to obtain or retain employment, that leads to economic self-sufficiency or wages comparable

to or higher than wages from previous employment through career services alone; 
 Needs training services to obtain or retain employment that leads to self-sufficiency or wages comparable to or 

higher than wages from previous employment; and 
 Has the skills and qualifications to successfully participate in the selected program of training service. 

WIOA requires that individuals be provided an ITA to pay for tuition, books and fees related to occupational skills training 
accessed through an approved training provider. Local boards must establish policies related to the value of the ITA, 
cancellation, transferability, and limits that apply to these accounts. 

POLICY 
CSRC has developed its ITA system to encourage and promote career pathways that lead to self-sufficiency. 
Assessment is mandatory to target services to the individual needs of the career seeker who is unable to find suitable 
employment with existing skills and/or academic credentials as evidenced through documented unsuccessful job 
search and placement. An Individual Employment Plan (IEP) must be developed by the Career Planner and participant 
detailing the role of the training (ITA) in preparing the participant for employment in a demand occupation included on 
the LTOL. The plan must be signed prior to the issuance of the ITA. 

Priority will be given to ITAs for occupations in the following industry sectors identified by CSRC for targeted sector 
strategiesy initiatives as reflected in the current CSRC WIOA Local Plan :. 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone 
numbers may be reached by persons using TTY/TDD equipment with Florida Relay Service at 711. 

WIOA – Individual Training Account Policy – March 
August 2023 Page 1 of 3 

Formatted: Centered 

WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT 
INDIVIDUAL TRAINING ACCOUNT POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 2/12/2014 
REVISION 

DATE: 027/179/2023 
Formatted: Centered, Indent: Left: 0.01", Hanging: 
0.1", Right: 0.01", Line spacing: single 

63 of 84



An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone 
numbers may be reached by persons using TTY/TDD equipment with Florida Relay Service at 711. 

WIOA – Individual Training Account Policy – 
MarchAugust 2023 Page 3 of 3 

An ITA tier system will be utilized to determine the maximum allowable amount of the ITA. All ITAs will be categorized 
using the average entry wage of the selected training program. The thresholds for allowable ITA investment within a 
given Program Year will be categorized in the following two tiers*: 

TIER AVG ENTRY WAGE FOR LWDA MAXIMUM ITA INVESTMENT 

Tier 1 $13.00* to $15.00 per hour Up to $53,5000** 

Tier 2 $15.01+ per hour Up to $510,000** 

Tier 3 Related Instruction for 
Registered Apprenticeship 

Actual Cost of Related 
Instruction 

*ITA’s may be awarded at the Tier 1 amount for those occupations whose entry wage is not at the designated level when 
the training program provides a career pathway for an occupation designated in the LWDA’s industry sectors. The 
training must be included on the CSRC ETPL. 
**Funding that exceeds the maximum ITA investment may be recommended by the ITA Committee on a case-by-case 
basis for clients with significant barriers to employment, with approval granted by the President/CEO, Vice President of 
Operations/COO, or the CFO. 

To be eligible for an ITA, the following criteria must be met: 

1. The career seeker must not have received an ITA in the past 24 months..

2. The career seeker must be a resident of the CSRC service delivery area to receive an ITA. Anexceptionmaybemadeto 
awardan ITA to eligible and suitable career seekers who are residents of other CareerSource LWDAs when each of the 
following conditions are met: 

a. The purpose of the ITA is for specialized sector training as specified by WIOA funding awarded through grants 
and/or specialized projects. 
b. A partnership with the Local Workforce Development Board governing the LWDA in which the career seeker 
resides has been established and documented. 

3. The career seeker has been determined through formal assessment(s), interviews, and career planning, to be an 
appropriate match and possess the aptitude to complete the selected training program, obtain the appropriate 
certification/credential, and be eligible for hire in training related employment. 

4. As part of the suitability determination process, career seekers must demonstrate the ability to self-sustain financially 
for the length of the training until employment is gained and be able to cover the training amount above CSRC funds. 

5. The selected training program and training provider is listed on the ETPL and is within the LWDA’s commuting area. 

6. The career seeker must select an eligible training program offered by an eligible training provider, which upon 
completion of training, leads to an industry-recognized certification, credential, or degree. 

7. On an annual basis, or in the case of scholarships, as they become available, the career seeker must apply for 
other training assistance (for example: Pell Grant, scholarshipsscholarships, and employer-sponsored training) to 
help assist with the cost of training and training related support. Any scholarships or grants received will be applied 
toward the total allowable tuition, books, and fees prior to determining the ITA amount. 

8. The career seeker will only receive one (1) ITA to complete the training program for which they are 
deemed suitable and eligible. If the career seeker has completed such a program and is requesting 
additional funding to upgrade their program and continue on a career pathway, additional funding may 

WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT 
INDIVIDUAL TRAINING ACCOUNT POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 2/12/2014 
REVISION DATE: 027/179/2023 

BOARD  EFFECTIVE  DATE: 083/0130/2023 

Formatted: Left, Right: 0.38", Space Before: 4.75 pt 

Commented [JE1]: P & S Committee voted to 
approve the WIOA - Individual Training Account Policy 
Revisions with an amendment of adding a Maximum 
ITA amount for Tier 3 or striking the addition of Tier 3 
completely.

64 of 84



An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone 
numbers may be reached by persons using TTY/TDD equipment with Florida Relay Service at 711. 

WIOA – Individual Training Account Policy – 
MarchAugust 2023 Page 4 of 3 

be awarded, provided it is not for a graduate degree. Note: Individuals who have degrees in current demand 
occupations, are employed full-time and have years of experience in their field are not appropriate for 
consideration of additional training. Consideration will be given to 

9. 

individuals who have outdated credentials and/or credentials in occupations not considered high wage/high skills as 
referenced on the LTOL and are determined under-employed. Career seekers who meet one of the following 
conditions are considered under-employed: 

 Individuals employed less than full-time who are seeking full-time employment; 
 Individuals who are employed in a position that is inadequate with respect to their skills and training; 

 

 Individuals who are employed who meet the definition of low-income individual; 
 Individuals who are employed, but whose current job’s earnings are not sufficient compared to their previous 

job’s earnings from their employment, per state and/or local policy. 

8. The duration of the ITA will be determined on a case-by-case basis by reviewing the maximum allowable amount of 
the ITA, the duration of the program, and the prevailing costs of tuition, books, and fees along with the career 
seeker’s receipt of financial aid. The Career Planner and the career seeker must develop a documented educational 
plan that ensures completion of the training program within the allotted timeframe. CSRC reserves the right to limit 
the number of semesters/terms and the amount of funding provided based on length of training, cost of training 
programs and availability of funds. 

10. The duration of the ITA cannot exceed 12 months. In conjunction with the Career Planner, the career seeker must
develop a documented educational plan that ensures completion of the training program within the allowable 12- 
month timeframe. Note: An exception may be considered upon approval of the WIOA Programs Manager when a 
participant has documented needs or barriers which require an ITA for longer than 12 months. Additionally, an 
extension may be considered in the case of medical issues, military deployment, or other life changing events that 
alter the scheduled plan of completion for the training program. This extension must be approved, in advance, by the 
WIOA Programs Manager or the Vice President of Operations. CSRC reserves the right to limit the number of 
semesters/terms and the amount of funding provided based on length of training, cost of training programs and 
availability of funds. 

11.9. Payments to training providers made on behalf of ITA participants will be on an individual class or per- 
semester basis. Participants must provide documentation of successful completion of prior semester/term 
coursework before a subsequent payment may be made. 

12.10. Career seekers must demonstrate satisfactory progress throughout the duration of the training to 
continue receiving WIOA funding. Satisfactory progress for the purpose of this policy is defined as maintaining a 
“C” average for each approved class on an official transcript or grade report. If the career seeker does not 
perform as expected, the ITA may be withdrawn until such time the grade level in each class returns to a “C” 
(2.0) and documentation provided to the Career Planner. 

All ITAs are subject to the availability of funds and issued for the current program year only. CSRC cannot 
provide a guarantee of continued funding as funds used to provide training are based on federal/state dollars’ 
availability. 

The use of ITAs for occupational skills training is subject to the Priority of Service procedures defined by 

WWIOA. ITAs are not transferable. 

WORKFORCE INNOVATION & OPPORTUNITY ACT 
INDIVIDUAL TRAINING ACCOUNT POLICY 

ORIGINAL APPROVAL DATE: 2/12/2014 
REVISION DATE: 027/179/2023 

BOARD  EFFECTIVE  DATE: 083/0130/2023 

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left: 0.49", No bullets or 
numbering 
Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0.49", Right: 
0.52", Space Before: 4.6 pt, Tab stops: 0.49", Left 

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.49" 

65 of 84



PURPOSE 
To provide guidance on the use of Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Individual Training Accounts (ITA) 
for eligible and suitable career seekers determined in need of training. WIOA training services are provided to assist a 
career seeker in obtaining self-sufficient employment in their field of training. This policy establishes guidelines to promote 
successful training completion, certification/credential attainment and gainful employment. 

REFERENCE 
The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act of 2014 (WIOA), Sec.134(c)(3)(G)(ii), specifies that, with certain limited 
exemptions, all Title I Adult and Dislocated Worker training services shall be provided using Individual Training Accounts 
(ITAs). 

BACKGROUND 
The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act promotes career seeker choice and designates ITAs for that purpose. 
Career seekers determined eligible and suitable are issued an ITA for training programs in alignment with occupations 
identified on the Local Targeted Occupations List (LTOL) and included on the approved Eligible Training Provider List 
(ETPL). WIOA Section 134 states that training services may include a program of one or more classes or courses, or a 
structured regimen, that upon successful completion leads to a certification/credential, an associate of science degree, a 
baccalaureate degree, completion of a registered apprenticeship program, or the skills or competencies needed for a 
specific job or jobs, an occupation, an occupational group, or generally, for many types of jobs or occupations, as 
recognized by employers and determined prior to training. 

Under WIOA, training services may be provided if CareerSource Research Coast (CSRC) staff determine, after an interview, 
evaluation, assessment, and career planning, that the individual: 
• Is unlikely or unable to obtain or retain employment, that leads to economic self-sufficiency or wages comparable

to or higher than wages from previous employment through career services alone;
• Needs training services to obtain or retain employment that leads to self-sufficiency or wages comparable to or

higher than wages from previous employment; and
• Has the skills and qualifications to successfully participate in the selected program of training service.

WIOA requires that individuals be provided an ITA to pay for tuition, books and fees related to occupational skills training 
accessed through an approved training provider. Local boards must establish policies related to the value of the ITA, 
cancellation, transferability, and limits that apply to these accounts. 

POLICY 
CSRC has developed its ITA system to encourage and promote career pathways that lead to self-sufficiency. 
Assessment is mandatory to target services to the individual needs of the career seeker who is unable to find suitable 
employment with existing skills and/or academic credentials as evidenced through documented unsuccessful job 
search and placement. An Individual Employment Plan (IEP) must be developed by the Career Planner and participant 
detailing the role of the training (ITA) in preparing the participant for employment in a demand occupation included on 
the LTOL. The plan must be signed prior to the issuance of the ITA. 

Priority will be given to ITAs for occupations in the industry sectors identified by CSRC for targeted sector strategy 
initiatives as reflected in the current CSRC WIOA Local Plan. 

66 of 84



An ITA tier system will be utilized to determine the maximum allowable amount of the ITA. All ITAs will be categorized 
using the average entry wage of the selected training program. The thresholds for allowable ITA investment will be 
categorized in the following tiers*: 

TIER AVG ENTRY WAGE FOR LWDA MAXIMUM ITA INVESTMENT 

Tier 1 $13.00* to $15.00 per hour Up to $5,000** 

Tier 2 $15.01+ per hour Up to $10,000** 

Tier 3 Related Instruction for 
Registered Apprenticeship 

Actual Cost of Related 
Instruction 

*ITAs may be awarded at the Tier 1 amount for those occupations whose entry wage is not at the designated level when 
the training program provides a career pathway for an occupation designated in the LWDA’s industry sectors. The 
training must be included on the CSRC ETPL. 
**Funding that exceeds the maximum ITA investment may be recommended by the ITA Committee on a case-by-case 
basis for clients with significant barriers to employment, with approval granted by the President/CEO, Vice President of 
Operations/COO, or the CFO. 

To be eligible for an ITA, the following criteria must be met: 

1. The career seeker must not have received an ITA in the past 24 months.

2. The career seeker must be a resident of the CSRC service delivery area to receive an ITA. An exception may be made to
award an ITA to eligible and suitable career seekers who are residents of other CareerSource LWDAs when each of the
following conditions are met:

a. The purpose of the ITA is for specialized sector training as specified by WIOA funding awarded through grants
and/or specialized projects.
b. A partnership with the Local Workforce Development Board governing the LWDA in which the career seeker
resides has been established and documented.

3. The career seeker has been determined through formal assessment(s), interviews, and career planning, to be an
appropriate match and possess the aptitude to complete the selected training program, obtain the appropriate
certification/credential, and be eligible for hire in training related employment.

4. As part of the suitability determination process, career seekers must demonstrate the ability to self-sustain financially
for the length of the training until employment is gained and be able to cover the training amount above CSRC funds.

5. The selected training program and training provider is listed on the ETPL and is within the LWDA’s commuting area.

6. The career seeker must select an eligible training program offered by an eligible training provider, which upon
completion of training, leads to an industry-recognized certification, credential, or degree.

7. On an annual basis, or in the case of scholarships, as they become available, the career seeker must apply for
other training assistance (for example: Pell Grant, scholarships, and employer-sponsored training) to help assist
with the cost of training and training related support. Any scholarships or grants received will be applied toward
the total allowable tuition, books, and fees prior to determining the ITA amount.

The career seeker will only receive one (1) ITA to complete the training program for which they are deemed suitable
and eligible. If the career seeker has completed such a program and is requesting additional funding to upgrade
their program and continue on a career pathway, additional funding may be awarded, provided it is not for a
graduate degree. Note: Individuals who have degrees in current demand occupations, are employed full-time and

67 of 84



have years of experience in their field are not appropriate for consideration of additional training. Consideration will 
be given to individuals who have outdated credentials and/or credentials in occupations not considered high 
wage/high skills as referenced on the LTOL and are determined under-employed. Career seekers who meet one of 
the following conditions are considered under-employed: 

• Individuals employed less than full-time who are seeking full-time employment;
• Individuals who are employed in a position that is inadequate with respect to their skills and training;
• Individuals who are employed who meet the definition of low-income individual;
• Individuals who are employed, but whose current job’s earnings are not sufficient compared to their previous

job’s earnings from their employment, per state and/or local policy.

8. The duration of the ITA will be determined on a case-by-case basis by reviewing the maximum allowable amount of
the ITA, the duration of the program, and the prevailing costs of tuition, books, and fees along with the career
seeker’s receipt of financial aid. The Career Planner and the career seeker must develop a documented educational
plan that ensures completion of the training program within the allotted timeframe. CSRC reserves the right to limit
the number of semesters/terms and the amount of funding provided based on length of training, cost of training
programs and availability of funds.

9. Payments to training providers made on behalf of ITA participants will be on an individual class or per-semester
basis. Participants must provide documentation of successful completion of prior semester/term coursework before
a subsequent payment may be made.

10. Career seekers must demonstrate satisfactory progress throughout the duration of the training to continue
receiving WIOA funding. Satisfactory progress for the purpose of this policy is defined as maintaining a “C”
average for each approved class on an official transcript or grade report. If the career seeker does not perform as
expected, the ITA may be withdrawn until such time the grade level in each class returns to a “C” (2.0) and
documentation provided to the Career Planner.

All ITAs are subject to the availability of funds and issued for the current program year only. CSRC cannot 
provide a guarantee of continued funding as funds used to provide training are based on federal/state dollars’ 
availability. 

The use of ITAs for occupational skills training is subject to the Priority of Service procedures defined by 

WIOA. ITAs are not transferable. 

68 of 84



Agenda Item 8

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

Title

Strategic Goals/Plans 

Policy/Plan/Law 

Action Required

Background

Staff 
Recommendation 

Supporting Materials 

Board Staff

Review and Approve Board Member CSF Contract/COI Exemption 
Requests - PY 2023-2024  

Optimal Use of Resources 

CareerSource Florida Strategic Policy # 2012.05.24.A.2 

Review and Approve UPDATED Board Member CSF Contract/COI 
Exemption Requests - PY 2023-2024   

Under CSFL Strategic Policy # 2012.05.24.A.2, the policy 
establishes criteria and procedures used to address potential 
conflicts of interest and, when appropriate, “cure” such 
conflicts and ensure compliance with Public Law 113-128, 
Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (2014), section 
445.007(1) and (11), Florida Statutes, and section 112.3143, Florida 
Statutes.   

At a board’s discretion, the following may be exempt from the 
policy described above: 

Contracts with a board member receiving a grant for workforce 
services. All contracts between a board and a board member 
or other person or entity who may benefit financially from a 
contract must be approved by a two-thirds vote of the board when 
a quorum has been established. Board members are required to 
complete a Contract Information Form and a Conflict of Interest 
Form. 

Review and Approve UPDATED Board Member CSF Contract/COI 
Exemption Requests - PY 2023-2024  for:

• William Armstead - Boys & Girls Club of St. Lucie County (B/U)

Board Member CSF Contract/COI Exemption Request/Form 8B - PY 
2023-2024   

Brian Bauer 
President/CEO 
bbauer@careersourcerc.com 
(866) 482-4473 ext. 418

69 of 84

mailto:bbauer@careersourcerc.com


Bo
ar

d 
M

em
be

r C
on

tr
ac

t-C
O

I E
xe

m
pt

io
n 

Fo
rm

 - 
20

23
-2

02
4 

Da
te

 
Ve

nd
or

 
Pa

rty
 

De
sc

rip
tio

n 
Pu

rp
os

e 
Ex

pe
ns

e 
St

at
e 

of
 F

lo
rid

a 
Ap

pr
ov

ed
 V

en
do

r 
Lo

w
 B

id
 

Co
m

m
en

ts
 

P
Y

 2
3-

2
4 

C
le

ve
la

nd
 C

lin
ic

 In
di

an
 R

iv
er

 H
os

pi
ta

l 
P

am
el

a 
B

ur
ch

el
l 

2
0

12
.0

5
.2

4.
A

.2
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 
C

on
tr

ac
tin

g 
C

on
fli

ct
 o

f I
nt

er
es

t P
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 
ex

em
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 

bo
ar

ds
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y-

 m
an

da
te

d 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

O
n-

th
e-

Jo
b 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 
un

de
r 

$
15

0
,0

0
0

 
n/

a 
n/

a 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

r 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
gr

an
t f

or
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

un
de

r 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 

P
Y

 2
3-

2
4 

In
di

an
 R

iv
er

 S
ta

te
 C

ol
le

ge
 

D
r. 

Ti
m

ot
hy

 M
oo

re
 

2
0

12
.0

5
.2

4.
A

.2
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 
C

on
tr

ac
tin

g 
C

on
fli

ct
 o

f I
nt

er
es

t P
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 
ex

em
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 

bo
ar

ds
 to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y-

 m
an

da
te

d 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

pr
ov

id
er

 
un

de
r 

$
15

0
,0

0
0

 
n/

a 
n/

a 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

r 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
gr

an
t f

or
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

un
de

r 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 

P
Y

 2
3-

2
4 

C
le

ve
la

nd
 C

lin
ic

 M
ar

tin
 H

ea
lth

 
Lo

rn
a 

La
nd

he
rr

 

2
0

12
.0

5
.2

4.
A

.2
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 C
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t 

P
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 e
xe

m
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 b

oa
rd

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y-

 
m

an
da

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

 

O
n-

th
e-

Jo
b 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 
un

de
r 

$
15

0
,0

0
0

 
n/

a 
n/

a 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

r 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
gr

an
t f

or
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

un
de

r 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 

P
Y

 2
3-

2
4 

K
ei

se
r 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 

Le
sl

ie
 K

ris
to

ff 

2
0

12
.0

5
.2

4.
A

.2
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 C
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t 

P
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 e
xe

m
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 b

oa
rd

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y-

 
m

an
da

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

pr
ov

id
er

 
un

de
r 

$
15

0
,0

0
0

 
n/

a 
n/

a 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

r 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
gr

an
t f

or
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

un
de

r 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 

P
Y

 2
3-

2
4 

Tr
ea

su
re

 C
oa

st
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 C
ol

le
ge

 
D

r. 
D

av
id

 M
oo

re
 

2
0

12
.0

5
.2

4.
A

.2
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 C
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t 

P
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 e
xe

m
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 b

oa
rd

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y-

 
m

an
da

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

 

 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

pr
ov

id
er

 
un

de
r 

$7
5,

0
0

0
 

n/
a 

n/
a 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

r 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
gr

an
t f

or
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

un
de

r 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 

P
Y

 2
3-

2
4 

Th
e 

P
or

ch
 F

ac
to

ry
 

Ji
m

 B
ra

nn
 

2
0

12
.0

5
.2

4.
A

.2
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 C
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t 

P
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 e
xe

m
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 b

oa
rd

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y 

–
 m

an
da

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

O
n-

th
e-

Jo
b 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 
un

de
r 

$
40

,0
0

0
 

n/
a 

n/
a 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

r 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
gr

an
t f

or
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

un
de

r 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 

P
Y

 2
3-

2
4 

Tr
ea

su
re

 C
oa

st
 B

ui
ld

er
s 

A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n 

(T
C

B
A

) 
M

ad
di

e 
W

ill
ia

m
s 

2
0

12
.0

5
.2

4.
A

.2
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 C
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t 

P
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 e
xe

m
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 b

oa
rd

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y 

–
 m

an
da

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

O
n-

th
e-

Jo
b 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 
un

de
r 

$
10

,0
0

0
 

n/
a 

n/
a 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

r 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
gr

an
t f

or
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

un
de

r 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 

P
Y

 2
3-

2
4 

S
t. 

Lu
ci

e 
P

ub
lic

 S
ch

oo
ls

 
Jo

n 
P

rin
ce

 

2
0

12
.0

5
.2

4.
A

.2
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 C
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t 

P
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 e
xe

m
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 b

oa
rd

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y 

- m
an

da
te

d 
se

rv
ic

es
. 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

U
se

 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t o
f t

he
 

G
ar

de
n 

C
ity

 C
ar

ee
r 

C
en

te
r 

un
de

r 
$2

0
,0

0
0

 
n/

a 
n/

a 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

r's
 e

m
pl

oy
er

, S
t. 

Lu
ci

e 
Pu

bl
ic

 
S

ch
oo

ls
, t

o 
re

ce
iv

e 
re

nt
 fo

r 
fa

ci
lit

y 
us

ag
e 

at
 G

ar
de

n 
C

ity
, F

or
t. 

P
ie

rc
e 

C
ar

ee
r 

C
en

te
r. 

P
Y

 2
3-

2
4 

M
oo

re
 S

ol
ut

io
ns

, I
nc

. 
Te

rr
an

ce
 M

oo
re

 

2
0

12
.0

5
.2

4.
A

.2
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 C
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t 

P
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 e
xe

m
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 b

oa
rd

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y 

–
 m

an
da

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

W
or

ks
ite

 A
gr

ee
m

en
t 

fo
r 

W
IO

A
 Y

ou
th

 
W

or
k 

Ex
pe

rie
nc

e 
un

de
r 

$
10

,0
0

0
 

n/
a 

n/
a 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

r 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
gr

an
t f

or
 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

un
de

r 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e,

 o
r o

th
er

 g
ov

er
nm

en
ta

l 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 p
ro

gr
am

s.
 

P
Y

 2
3-

2
4 

Tr
ea

su
re

 C
oa

st
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 C
ol

le
ge

 
D

r. 
D

av
id

 M
oo

re
 

2
0

12
.0

5
.2

4.
A

.2
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 C
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t 

P
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 e
xe

m
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 b

oa
rd

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y 

–
 m

an
da

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

Fa
ci

lit
y 

U
se

 
A

gr
ee

m
en

t f
or

 th
e 

Ec
ke

rd
 C

on
ne

ct
s 

C
ar

ee
r C

en
te

r 
un

de
r 

$
10

,0
0

0
 

n/
a 

n/
a 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

r's
 e

m
pl

oy
er

 T
re

as
ur

e 
C

oa
st

 
Te

ch
ni

ca
l C

ol
le

ge
 (T

C
TC

), 
S

ch
oo

l D
is

tr
ic

t o
f I

nd
ia

n 
R

iv
er

 
C

ou
nt

y,
 to

 re
ce

iv
e 

re
nt

 fo
r f

ac
ili

ty
 u

sa
ge

 a
t T

C
TC

 fo
r t

he
 E

ck
er

d 
C

on
ne

ct
s 

C
ar

ee
r 

C
en

te
r 

P
Y

 2
3-

2
4 

B
oy

s 
&

 G
irl

s 
C

lu
b 

of
 S

t. 
Lu

ci
e 

C
ou

nt
y 

W
ill

ia
m

 A
rm

st
ea

d 

2
0

12
.0

5
.2

4.
A

.2
 S

ta
te

 a
nd

 L
oc

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

oa
rd

 C
on

tr
ac

tin
g 

C
on

fli
ct

 o
f I

nt
er

es
t 

P
ol

ic
y 

w
ith

 e
xe

m
pt

io
n 

to
 th

e 
pr

oh
ib

iti
on

 to
 a

llo
w

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 b

oa
rd

s 
to

 p
ro

vi
de

 s
ta

tu
to

ril
y 

–
 m

an
da

te
d 

se
rv

ic
es

. 

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
tr

ai
ni

ng
 

pr
ov

id
er

 T
A

N
F 

S
um

m
er

 Y
ou

th
 T

ee
n 

P
re

gn
an

cy
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
P

ro
gr

am
 

U
nd

er
 $

30
,0

0
0

 
n/

a 
n/

a 

A
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ith
 a

 b
oa

rd
 m

em
be

r 
re

ce
iv

in
g 

a 
gr

an
t f

or
 

 w
or

kf
or

ce
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

un
de

r 
fe

de
ra

l, 
st

at
e,

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
go

ve
rn

m
en

ta
l 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 p

ro
gr

am
s.

 

70 of 84



I, ____________________________, ______________________, hereby disclose that __________________________ 

Or “Other’(describe):_________________________________ could benefit financially from the contract described below: 

Local Workforce Development Board: _________________________________________________________ 

Contractor Name & Address: ________________________________________________________________ 

Contractor Contact Phone Number: ___________________________________________________________

Description or Nature of Contract: ____________________________________________________________ 

Description of Financial Benefit*: _____________________________________________________________ 

For purposes of the above contract the following disclosures are made: The contractor’s 
principals**/owners***: (check one)  

___ have no relative who is a member of the board or an employee of the board; OR 
___ have a relative who is a member of the board or an employee of the board, whose name is: 

The contractor’s principals**/owners*** ____is ___ is not (check one) a member of the board. If applicable, the 

principal’s/owner’s name is: _________________________________________________________________ 

_______________________________________ _____________________________ 
Signature of Board Member/Employee Print Name  Print Name 

_____________________________ 
Date 

*“Benefit financially from a contract” means the special private financial gain to a member, a special private 
financial gain to any principal which retains the member, the special private financial gain of the parent 
organization or subsidiary of a corporate principal which retains the member or the special private financial gain 
to any member’s relatives or business associate or to a board employee and such benefit is not remote or 
speculative. 

** “Principal” means an owner or high-level management employee with decision-making authority. 
*** “Owner” means a person having any ownership interest in the contractor. 

NOTICE: CONFLICTS OF INTEREST REGARDING BOARD MEMBERS AND BOARD EMPLOYEES MUST BE 
DISCLOSED PRIOR TO THE BOARD’S DISCUSSION OR VOTING TO APPROVE THE CONTRACT. BOARD 
MEMBERS WHO BENEFIT FINANCIALLY OR BOARD MEMBERS OR EMPLOYEES OF THE BOARD WHO HAVE A 
RELATIONSHIP WITH THE CONTRACTING VENDOR MUST ABSTAIN FROM VOTING DURING THE PERIOD OF 
TIME THE VOTES ARE CAST, AND THE CONTRACT MUST BE APPROVED BY A TWO-THIRDS VOTE OF THE 
BOARD WHEN A QUORUM HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED. COMPLETION OF THIS FORM DOES NOT IN ANY WAY 
SUPERSEDE OR SUBSTITUTE FOR COMPLIANCE WITH CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURE 
REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 112.3143, FLORIDA STATUTES, OR SECTION 101(f), WIOA. 

Approved training provider TANF Summer Youth Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program

William Armstead

CareerSource Research Coast/LWDB20

William Armstead, 3104 Avenue J Fort Pierce, FL 34947 

772-460-9918

Financial gain to parent organization

William Armstead

a board member My employer

✔

✔

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8E52BC96-BA0A-4FAB-BEE1-F62CDD952C2D

8/1/2023 | 5:05 PM EDT

71 of 84



FORM 8B   MEMORANDUM OF VOTING CONFLICT FOR 
COUNTY, MUNICIPAL, AND OTHER LOCAL PUBLIC

LAST NAME – FIRST NAME – MIDDLE NAME NAME OF BOARD, COUNCIL, COMMISSION, AUHORITY, OR COMMITTEE 

MAILING ADDRESS THE BOARD, COUNCIL, COMMISSION, AUTHORITY OR COMMITTEE ON 
WHICH I SERVE IS A UNIT OF: 

☐ CITY ☐ COUNTY ☐ OTHER LOCAL AGENCY

CITY COUNTY NAME OF POLITICAL SUBDIVISION: 

DATE ON WHICH VOTE OCCURRED MY POSITION IS 

☐ ELECTIVE   ☐ APPOINTIVE

WHO MUST FILE FORM 8B 
This form is for use by any person serving at the county, city, or other local level of government on an appointed or elected board, 

council, commission, authority, or committee. It applies equally to members of advisory and non-advisory bodies who are presented 
with a voting conflict of interest under Section 112.3143, Florida Statutes. 

Your responsibilities under the law when faced with voting on a measure in which you have a conflict of interest will vary greatly 
depending on whether you hold an elective or appointive position. For this reason, please pay close attention to the instructions on 

this form before completing the reverse side and filing the form.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 112.3143, FLORIDA STATUTES 

A person holding elective or appointive county, municipal, or other local public office MUST ABSTAIN from voting on a measure 
which inures to his or her special private gain or loss. Each elected or appointed local officer also is prohibited from knowingly voting 
on a mea – sure which inures to the special gain or loss of a principal (other than a government agency) by whom he or she is 
retained (including the parent organization or subsidiary of a corporate principal by which he or she is retained); to the special private 
gain or loss of a relative; or to the special private gain or loss of a business associate. Commissioners of community redevelopment 
agencies under Sec. 163.356 or 163.357, F.S., and officers of independent special tax districts elected on a one-acre, one-vote 
basis are not prohibited from voting in that capacity.  

For purposes of this law, a “relative” includes only the officer’s father, mother, son, daughter, husband, wife, brother, sister, father-in-
law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, and daughter-in-law. A “business associate” means any person or entity engaged in or carrying on a 
business enterprise with the officer as a partner, joint venture, co-owner of property, or corporate shareholder (where the shares of 
the corporation are not listed on any national or regional stock exchange). 
*             *              *              *              *             *             *            *            *            *            *            *            *            *            *     *

ELECTED OFFICERS: 

In addition to abstaining from voting in the situations described above, you must disclose the conflict: 

PRIOR TO THE VOTE BEING TAKEN by publicly stating to the assembly the nature of your interest in the measure on which you 
are abstaining from voting; and  

WITHIN 15 DAYS AFTER THE VOTE OCCURS by completing and filing this form with the person responsible for recording the 
minutes of the meeting, who should incorporate the form in the minutes.   
*             *              *              *              *             *             *            *            *            *            *            *            *            *            *     * 

APPOINTED OFFICERS:   

Although you must abstain from voting in the situations described above, you otherwise may participate in these matters. However, 
you must disclose the nature of the conflict before making any attempt to influence the decision, whether orally or in writing and 
whether made by you or at your direction.    

IF YOU INTEND TO MAKE ANY ATTEMPT TO INFLUENCE THE DECISION PRIOR TO THE MEETING AT WHICH THE VOTE 
WILL BE TAKEN: 

• You must complete and file this form (before making any attempt to influence the decision) with the person responsible for
recording the minutes of the meeting, who will incorporate the form in the minutes. (Continued on other side)

Armstead,       William CareerSource Research Coast/LWDB20

3104 Avenue J ■

Ft. Pierce St. Lucie

August 30, 2023 ■

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8E52BC96-BA0A-4FAB-BEE1-F62CDD952C2D

72 of 84



APPOINTED OFFICERS (continued) 

• A copy of the form must be provided immediately to the other members of the agency.

• The form must be read publicly at the next meeting after the form is filed.
IF YOU MAKE NO ATTEMPT TO INFLUENCE THE DECISION EXCEPT BY DISCUSSION AT THE MEETING:

• You must disclose orally the nature of your conflict in the measure before participating.

• You must complete the form and file it within 15 days after the vote occurs with the person responsible for recording the minutes of
the meeting, who must incorporate the form in the minutes. A copy of the form must be provided immediately to the other members
of the agency, and the form must be read publicly at the next meeting after the form is filed.

DISCLOSURE OF LOCAL OFFICER’S INTEREST 

I, __________________________________________, hereby disclose that on __________________________________,20: ____

A measure came or will come before my agency which (check one) 

___ inured to my special private gain or loss; 

___ inured to the special gain or loss of my business associate, ______________________________________________________; 

___ inured to the special gain or loss of my relative, _______________________________________________________________; 

___ inured to the special gain or loss of_______________________________________________________________________, by 
whom I am retained; or 

___ inured to the special gain or loss of ____________________________________________________________________, which 
is the parent organization or subsidiary of a principal which has retained me. 

(b) The measure before my agency and the nature of my conflicting interest in the measure is as follows

___________________________________________________    _________________________________________ 
Date Filed   Signature 

NOTICE: UNDER PROVISIONS OF FLORIDA STATUTES §112.317, A FAILURE TO MAKE ANY REQUIRED DISCLOSURE 
CONSTITUTES GROUNDS FOR AND MAY BE PUNISHED BY ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING: IMPEACHMENT, 
REMOVAL OR SUSPENSION FROM OFFICE OR EMPLOYMENT, DEMOTION, REDUCTION IN SALARY, REPRIMAND, OR A 
CIVIL PENALTY NOT TO EXCEED $10,000. 

William Armstead August 30

Boys & Girls Club of St. Lucie County✔

23

DocuSign Envelope ID: 8E52BC96-BA0A-4FAB-BEE1-F62CDD952C2D

8/1/2023 | 5:05 PM EDT

73 of 84



• 

• 

• 

• 

•

74 of 84



Agenda Item 9 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Title Review and Approve One-Stop Operator - RFP 23-002-OSO

Strategic Plans/Goals Optimal Use of Resources

Policy/Plan/Law Board Policy/Board Responsibility

Action Requested Review and Approve Recommendation of Rating Team for One-Stop 
Operator - RFP 23-002-OSO

Background WIOA legislation requires a more integrated philosophy of service 
delivery by requiring a clear separation between the one-stop operator 
responsibilities and the provider of adult and dislocated worker career 
services. WIOA requires local boards to define the one-stop operator’s 
responsibilities and to procure the one-stop operator through a 
competitive bid process. WIOA also requires a differentiated role of a 
One-Stop Operator whose main function is to serve as the coordinator of 
service delivery for all one-stop required partners, including Adult 
Education, Vocational Rehabilitation, Community Services Block Grant 
providers, and the Division of Blind Services.  

CareerSource Research Coast released a Request for Proposal on June 
13, 2023, to accept proposals from vendors to provide One-Stop 
Operator Services for the period of 9/01/2023 through 6/30/2027.  

CSRC received one (1) proposal from Glenda Harden that first passed 
technical review and was then rated by Board Member Bob Cenk, Vice 
President of Operations/COO Tracey McMorris, and Director of Programs 
Shelly Batton. 

The RFP/RFQ Rating Team Compilation is being proposed to the Board 
for review and approval. Based upon the cumulative rating score of the 
team, Manpower, Inc. has been determined the most advantageous 
contract award for CSRC.  

Review and Approve Review and Approve Recommendation of Rating 
Team for One-Stop Operator - RFP 23-002-OSO

RFP/RFQ Rating Team Compilation, OSO Cost Estimate 

Staff 
Recommendations

Supporting Material 

Board Staff Tracey McMorris  
Vice President of Operations/COO 
tmacmorris@careersourcerc.com  
(866) 482-4473 ext. 528

75 of 84

mailto:tmacmorris@careersourcerc.com


INTERNAL FORM 

RFP/RFQ COMPOSITE RATING SHEET 

An equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. All voice telephone numbers may be reached by persons using TTY/TDD 
equipment via the Florida Relay Service at 711. 

RFP 23-002-OSO Composite Rating Sheet 

RFP/RFQ Title:   One Stop Operator RFP/RFQ Number: 23-002-OSO

Rating Team Captain:   Tracey McMorris 

Rating Team Members:   1.  Bob Cenk     _____________ 2. Shelly Batton

3. Tracey McMorris

Rated Elements 
Proposer 

Comments Glenda 
Harden 

Understanding of One-Stop System and 
Role of the One-Stop Operator  
 (20 pts max) 

20.00 
Proposer and partner of the planned LLC combined, have 40+ years of workforce development 
experience, including firsthand knowledge of the current Comprehensive One Stop Career 
Center and its required partners. 

Has Contracted to Provide Similar Services 
(10 pts max) 

8.67 
The Proposer was previously awarded a contract as DWG consultant and, as the former COO, 
she had direct oversight of the OSO. Partner of her planned LLC is the former One Stop 
Comprehensive Career Center Manager. 

Experience Building Relationships to Achieve Goals  
(20 pts max) 

20 
Given the Proposer’s and her partner’s (of the planned LLC) previous roles with CSRC, they 
have extensive experience and relationships already established with the stakeholders of the 
Comprehensive Center. 

Cost 
(20 pts max) 

9.33 
The Proposer’s cost ($40k) is above the budgeted amount ($35k) for the OSO stated in the RFP, 
with no breakdown of costs provided. The Rating team hopes to resolve this with the Proposer 
during contract negotiations.    

 

Understanding/Approach  

a) Understands CSRC’s mission        (5 pts max) 
b) Review, Update MOU and IFA      (5 pts max) 
c) Manage, Oversee Customer Satisfaction (5 pts max)
d) Certification criteria       (5 pts max) 
e) Compliance performance  (5 pts max) 
f) Quarterly meetings and reporting  (5 pts max) 

TOTAL (30 pts max) 

5 
5 
5 
5 
5 
5 

30 

The Proposer specifically referenced each element in their proposal with methods/actions to be 
taken to carry out all functions of the One-Stop Operator’s role.   

Site Visits 
(20 pts max) 

20 The Proposer will conduct six site visits to the Comprehensive Center annually, to conduct 
interviews with partner staff and CSRC Management. 

TOTAL POINTS (120 PTS MAX): 108 

Rating Team Captain Signature:      Date:    

Digitally signed by Tracey McMorris 
Date: 2023.08.02 12:05:23 -04'00' 8/2/2023

76 of 84



77 of 84

mailto:info@careersourcrc.com


Agenda Item 10 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Title Executive Staff Performance-Based Bonuses 

Strategic Plans/Goals Administration & Strategic Planning 

Policy/Plan/Law DEO Grantee/Subgrantee Agreement /CSRC Employee Bonus Policy

Action Requested Review and Approve Executive Staff Bonuses for PY2022-2023 
Performance 

Background Per the DEO Grantee/Sub-Grantee Agreement, no changes to 
compensation for the board’s executive staff are allowed without 
documented Board approval and must align with local policies and 
procedures.  

CSRC’s Employee Bonus Policy allows for non-discretionary, 
performance-based, year-end bonuses for all CSRC staff not to exceed 
5% of an employee’s annual salary. 

Staff 
Recommendations

Review and Approve Executive Staff Performance-Based Bonuses of 
Up to 5% for PY 2022-2023: 

• Tracey McMorris, Vice President of Operations/COO
• Lisa Deligatti, CFO

Supporting Material None 

Board Staff Brian Bauer  
President/CEO 
bbaueri@careersourcerc.com 
(866) 482-4473 ext. 418

78 of 84

mailto:bbaueri@careersourcerc.com


 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Program Year 2023-2024 Budget 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

79 of 84



             

    

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
Note: PY 23-24 Funding represents budgeted funding to be utilized during the program year. 
Funding may be comprised of prior year carry forward or reduced by funding budgeted for 
carry over to PY 24-25. 

 
 

80 of 84



WIOA Youth Contracts
$800,000

Salaries and  
Benefits 

$3,225,192

Supportive Services non 
ITA

$28,885

Training, 
$1,652,364

One Stop Costs
$458,387

Other Operating
$747,655

Administrative
$601,836

PY 23-24 Budget Expenditures by Category 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

81 of 84



NARRATIVE OF EXPENDITURE CATEGORIES 
 
 
SALARIES AND BENEFITS 
This category contains the salaries, payroll taxes, insurances (health, vision, dental, short-term 
disability, and life), CSRC 401K match, workers compensation, and contract labor costs for EOR 
temporary to conversion employees. 
 

WIOA YOUTH CONTRACT 
The subrecipient for the WIOA Youth program for PY23-24 is Eckerd Connects. 
 

OTHER OPERATING COSTS 
This category represents the Administrative Office costs as well as the allocable programmatic 
indirect costs.  This may include but is not limited to facility and equipment rent, utilities, non-
capitalized equipment, staff development and training, dues and memberships, service charges 
and fees, marketing, programmatic indirect, professional fees, supplies, repairs and maintenance, 
security, travel, and employee relations costs. 
 

ONE STOP COSTS 
All costs associated with the operation of CSRC’s One Stop Centers and mobile units. 
 

TRAINING 
This category represents the training and training support costs for participants.  This includes 
Individual Training Accounts (ITA), On the Job Training (OJT), Customized Training, Employed 
Worker Training, Work Experience, Internships and Participant wages paid through the CSRC 
Employer of Record. 
 

SUPPORTIVE SERVICES 
This category includes participant incentives and stipends and participant supportive services for 
non WIOA funding sources.  These supportive services include but are not limited to books, 
mandatory fees, equipment, tools, supplies, uniforms, drug test, physicals, background checks, 
transportation assistance, child and dependent care assistance, and other needs related 
payments. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
This category represents the administrative portion of Indirect Costs.  It includes fiscal audit and 
monitoring fees, costs related to providing support to the governing board, strategic planning, 
and administrative staff salaries and benefits that cannot be specifically identified with a specific 
grant. 

82 of 84



LW
D

B
 2

0
PY

 2
3-

24
 B

ud
ge

t

B
ud

ge
t f

or
 P

Y
 2

3-
24

TO
TA

L 
LW

D
B

2
0

  
FU

N
D

IN
G

IN
D

IR
EC

T
10

 A
D

U
LT

12
 D

W
11

 Y
O

U
TH

2
0

 W
P

2
2

 S
N

A
P

2
4 

LV
ER

2
5

 D
V

O
P

2
71

 R
ES

EA

Fu
nd

in
g:

PY
 2

3-
24

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
5,

85
4,

63
3

$
   

   
   

 
1,0

20
,6

96
$

   
   

  
76

8,
87

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
89

0
,9

40
$

   
   

   
  

81
2,

23
9

$
   

   
  

40
5,

84
1

$
   

   
   

  
12

6,
16

7
$

   
   

   
 

16
6,

10
8

$
   

   
45

3,
0

0
0

$
   

  
PY

 2
3-

24
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l 

16
4,

38
4

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
16

4,
38

4
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
U

nr
es

tr
ic

te
d 

Fu
nd

s 
Ea

rn
ed

 th
is

 y
ea

r
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
A

dd
iti

on
al

 F
un

ds
/In

ce
nt

iv
es

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

R
et

ai
ne

d 
by

 D
EO

 fo
r M

er
it 

Sa
la

rie
s

(5
23

,9
74

)
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
(3

54
,0

62
)

$
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(7
8,

69
9)

$
   

   
   

(9
1,2

13
)

$
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
C

ar
ry

fo
rw

ar
d 

to
 P

Y
 2

4-
25

(3
,3

57
,3

21
)

$
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(9
19

,4
43

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
(4

82
,2

76
)

$
   

   
   

 
(11

4,
54

4)
$

   
   

  
(18

8,
15

2)
$

   
   

   
  

(3
7,

39
6)

$
   

   
   

(5
8,

70
4)

$
   

   
(6

3,
69

4)
$

   
   

 
C

ar
ry

fo
rw

ar
d 

fr
om

 P
Y

 2
2-

23
5,

0
11

,0
13

$
   

   
   

   
 

28
6,

36
4

$
   

   
   

  
86

9,
76

8
$

   
   

   
   

   
56

8,
11

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
81

,5
65

$
   

   
   

 
13

0
,5

34
$

   
   

   
   

20
,4

63
$

   
   

   
 

24
,5

29
$

   
   

 
12

2,
54

0
$

   
   

 
   

To
ta

l D
EO

 G
ra

nt
 F

un
di

ng
7,

14
8

,7
35

$
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

30
7,

0
6

0
$

   
   

 
8

8
3,

5
8

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
9

76
,7

74
$

   
   

   
  

4
2

5
,1

9
7

$
   

   
 

34
8

,2
2

3
$

   
   

   
 

30
,5

35
$

   
   

   
4

0
,7

2
0

$
   

   
5

11
,8

4
6

$
   

   
O

TH
ER

 N
O

N
 D

EO
 R

EV
EN

U
ES

36
5,

58
4

$
   

   
   

   
 

   
To

ta
l A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

in
g

7,
5

14
,3

19
$

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

1,
30

7,
0

6
0

$
   

 
8

8
3,

5
8

7
$

   
   

   
 

9
76

,7
74

$
   

   
  

42
5

,1
9

7
$

   
 

34
8

,2
2

3
$

   
   

30
,5

35
$

   
   

40
,7

2
0

$
   

5
11

,8
46

$
   

 

B
ud

ge
te

d 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s:

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

6
0

1,
8

36
$

   
   

   
   

 
(0

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
19

5
,9

4
9

$
   

   
   

 
2

1,
9

37
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

16
,0

8
4

$
   

   
   

   
 

10
,4

37
$

   
   

   
30

,5
79

$
   

   
   

   
1,

9
8

4
$

   
   

   
   

2
,4

8
8

$
   

   
  

4
4

,8
6

2
$

   
   

 

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
51

5,
35

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
51

5,
35

0
$

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

   
G

en
er

al
 a

nd
 A

dm
in

is
tr

at
iv

e
86

,4
86

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
86

,4
86

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
   

A
llo

ca
te

d 
In

di
re

ct
 C

os
ts

(0
)

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

(6
0

1,8
36

)
$

   
   

   
19

5,
94

9
$

   
   

   
   

21
,9

37
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

16
,0

84
$

   
   

   
   

  
10

,4
37

$
   

   
   

 
30

,5
79

$
   

   
   

   
 

1,9
84

$
   

   
   

   
 

2,
48

8
$

   
   

   
44

,8
62

$
   

   
  

   
R

ec
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
   

Tr
av

el
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

  

P
ro

gr
am

 T
ra

in
in

g
6

,9
12

,4
8

4
$

   
   

   
 

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
1,

11
1,

11
1

$
   

   
   

  
8

6
1,

6
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
9

6
0

,6
9

0
$

   
   

   
 

4
14

,7
6

0
$

   
   

31
7,

6
4

4
$

   
   

   
 

2
8

,5
5

1
$

   
   

   
 

38
,2

32
$

   
   

4
6

6
,9

8
4

$
   

  

  W
IO

A
 Y

ou
th

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
80

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

80
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
 

3,
17

8,
28

8
$

   
   

   
  

23
6,

70
6

$
   

   
   

 
1,1

10
,16

4
$

   
   

   
  

15
9,

56
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
37

,2
42

$
   

   
   

   
  

43
,7

80
$

   
   

   
23

6,
42

3
$

   
   

   
  

7,
71

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
9,

68
7

$
   

   
   

36
0

,9
69

$
   

   
   

C
on

tr
ac

t L
ab

or
 

46
,9

0
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

,0
13

$
   

   
   

   
   

90
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
6,

11
9

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
3,

41
8

$
   

   
   

   
2,

35
3

$
   

   
   

   
   

27
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

6
$

   
   

   
   

3,
59

9
$

   
   

   
 

   
In

te
rn

sh
ip

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

   
In

ce
nt

iv
es

/S
tip

en
ds

17
,12

6
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

   
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
N

on
-IT

A
11

,7
59

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
   

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

IT
A

16
1,5

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

5,
0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

1,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-IT

A
/O

ST
/T

A
A

65
0

,4
15

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

21
0

,6
28

$
   

   
   

   
9,

78
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

5,
0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-O

JT
66

3,
22

4
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
24

5,
62

8
$

   
   

   
  

5,
59

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-C

us
t./

Em
pl

oy
ed

 W
or

ke
r

78
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

40
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

   
W

EX
/ I

nt
er

ns
hi

ps
/ P

ar
tic

ip
an

t W
ag

es
99

,2
26

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

   
Tr

av
el

26
,2

15
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

6,
30

1
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

88
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
44

7
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
36

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
1,2

55
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,6
90

$
   

   
   

   
 

2,
26

5
$

   
   

   
1,8

0
0

$
   

   
   

  
   

O
ne

 S
to

p 
Sh

ar
ed

 C
os

ts
45

8,
38

7
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
15

8,
18

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
9,

29
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
62

,5
98

$
   

   
   

33
,9

27
$

   
   

   
   

 
15

,6
58

$
   

   
   

  
21

,5
65

$
   

   
  

54
,9

62
$

   
   

  
   

O
th

er
 O

pe
ra

tin
g 

Ex
pe

ns
es

72
1,4

40
$

   
   

   
   

   
18

,4
43

$
   

   
   

   
 

13
0

,6
70

$
   

   
   

   
10

,19
1

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

11
0

,0
63

$
   

   
   

   
 

52
,7

72
$

   
   

   
25

,7
22

$
   

   
   

   
 

2,
37

0
$

   
   

   
   

3,
29

5
$

   
   

   
26

,6
35

$
   

   
  

A
llo

ca
te

d 
Pr

og
ra

m
 In

di
re

ct
(0

)
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
(2

55
,14

9)
$

   
   

   
 

83
,0

73
$

   
   

   
   

 
9,

30
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
81

9
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

4,
42

5
$

   
   

   
  

12
,9

64
$

   
   

   
   

  
84

1
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

1,0
55

$
   

   
   

 
19

,0
19

$
   

   
   

 
R

ec
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
(8

92
,5

46
)

$
   

   
   

 
64

5,
13

7
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
24

7,
40

9
$

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

To
ta

l P
la

nn
ed

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s
7,

5
14

,3
19

$
   

   
   

  
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,
30

7,
0

6
0

$
   

   
 

8
8

3,
5

8
7

$
   

   
   

   
  

9
76

,7
74

$
   

   
   

  
4

2
5

,1
9

7
$

   
   

 
34

8
,2

2
3

$
   

   
   

 
30

,5
35

$
   

   
   

4
0

,7
2

0
$

   
   

5
11

,8
4

6
$

   
   

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S:
\W

D
Ac

ct
\B

ud
ge

ts
\P

Y2
02

3\
PY

 2
3-

24
 B

ud
ge

t
7/

28
/2

02
3

83 of 84



LW
D

B
 2

0
PY

 2
3-

24
 B

ud
ge

t

B
ud

ge
t f

or
 P

Y
 2

3-
24

Fu
nd

in
g:

PY
 2

3-
24

 A
llo

ca
tio

ns
PY

 2
3-

24
 S

up
pl

em
en

ta
l 

U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
Fu

nd
s 

Ea
rn

ed
 th

is
 y

ea
r

A
dd

iti
on

al
 F

un
ds

/In
ce

nt
iv

es
R

et
ai

ne
d 

by
 D

EO
 fo

r M
er

it 
Sa

la
rie

s
C

ar
ry

fo
rw

ar
d 

to
 P

Y
 2

4-
25

C
ar

ry
fo

rw
ar

d 
fr

om
 P

Y
 2

2-
23

   
To

ta
l D

EO
 G

ra
nt

 F
un

di
ng

O
TH

ER
 N

O
N

 D
EO

 R
EV

EN
U

ES

   
To

ta
l A

va
ila

bl
e 

Fu
nd

in
g

B
ud

ge
te

d 
Ex

pe
nd

itu
re

s:

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

   
Sa

la
rie

s 
an

d 
 B

en
ef

its
   

G
en

er
al

 a
nd

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

   
A

llo
ca

te
d 

In
di

re
ct

 C
os

ts
   

R
ec

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n 

   
Tr

av
el

P
ro

gr
am

 T
ra

in
in

g

  W
IO

A
 Y

ou
th

 C
on

tr
ac

ts
   

Sa
la

rie
s 

an
d 

 B
en

ef
its

 
   

C
on

tr
ac

t L
ab

or
 

   
In

te
rn

sh
ip

   
In

ce
nt

iv
es

/S
tip

en
ds

   
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
N

on
-IT

A
   

Su
pp

or
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

IT
A

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-IT

A
/O

ST
/T

A
A

   
Tr

ai
ni

ng
-O

JT
   

Tr
ai

ni
ng

-C
us

t./
Em

pl
oy

ed
 W

or
ke

r
   

W
EX

/ I
nt

er
ns

hi
ps

/ P
ar

tic
ip

an
t W

ag
es

   
Tr

av
el

   
O

ne
 S

to
p 

Sh
ar

ed
 C

os
ts

   
O

th
er

 O
pe

ra
tin

g 
Ex

pe
ns

es
A

llo
ca

te
d 

Pr
og

ra
m

 In
di

re
ct

R
ec

la
ss

ifi
ca

tio
n

To
ta

l P
la

nn
ed

 E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s

40
 W

TP
4

74
 R

ap
id

 
R

es
po

ns
e 

N
av

ig
at

or
47

5
 F

A
W

A
48

 F
.A

.T
.E

.S
.

9
5

 W
or

kf
or

ce
 

Su
m

m
it

79
2

 Y
ou

th
 

S
O

S
 S

LC
 O

th
er

 N
on

 
N

FA
TO

TA
L 

FO
R

M
U

LA
 

FU
N

D
S

99
5,

76
4

$
   

   
   

   
75

,0
0

0
$

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
14

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

85
4,

63
3

$
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
4,

38
4

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

(5
23

,9
74

)
$

   
   

   
   

  
(16

3,
61

4)
$

   
   

   
   

 
(4

2,
94

0
)

$
   

   
 

(1,
18

9,
51

5)
$

   
   

 
(9

7,
0

43
)

$
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
(3

,3
57

,3
21

)
$

   
   

   
   

14
6,

60
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

2,
76

0
,5

41
$

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
0

11
,0

13
$

   
   

   
   

  
9

78
,7

5
0

$
   

   
   

  
32

,0
6

0
$

   
   

 
1,

5
71

,0
2

6
$

   
   

(9
7,

0
4

3)
$

   
   

   
14

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
7,

14
8

,7
35

$
   

   
   

  
15

6,
30

8
$

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

14
9,

23
0

$
   

   
  

60
,0

46
$

   
   

   
36

5
,5

8
4

$
   

   
   

   
 

9
78

,7
5

0
$

   
   

  
32

,0
6

0
$

   
 

1,
5

71
,0

2
6

$
   

5
9

,2
6

5
$

   
   

 
14

0
,0

0
0

$
   

  
14

9
,2

30
$

   
 

6
0

,0
46

$
   

   
7,

5
14

,3
19

$
   

   
  

8
7,

30
4

$
   

   
   

   
 

2
,9

2
5

$
   

   
   

14
9

,3
72

$
   

   
   

5
,4

2
3

$
   

   
   

   
 

13
,4

36
$

   
   

   
  

14
,2

8
3

$
   

   
   

4
,7

73
$

   
   

   
   

6
0

1,
8

36
$

   
   

   
   

  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
51

5,
35

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

86
,4

86
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

87
,3

0
4

$
   

   
   

   
  

2,
92

5
$

   
   

   
 

14
9,

37
2

$
   

   
   

 
5,

42
3

$
   

   
   

   
  

13
,4

36
$

   
   

   
   

14
,2

83
$

   
   

   
 

4,
77

3
$

   
   

   
   

 
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

8
9

1,
4

4
7

$
   

   
   

   
2

9
,1

35
$

   
   

  
1,

4
2

1,
6

5
3

$
   

   
5

3,
8

4
2

$
   

   
   

 
12

6
,5

6
5

$
   

   
   

13
4

,9
4

7
$

   
   

 
5

5
,2

72
$

   
   

   
6

,9
12

,4
8

4
$

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
80

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

59
6,

22
8

$
   

   
   

   
25

,2
49

$
   

   
  

30
0

,0
46

$
   

   
   

18
,19

5
$

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
12

,9
12

$
   

   
   

  
23

,4
11

$
   

   
   

   
3,

17
8,

28
8

$
   

   
   

   
5,

68
2

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

1,2
62

$
   

   
   

   
  

37
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
6,

90
3

$
   

   
   

  
1,6

38
$

   
   

   
   

 
46

,9
0

3
$

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

15
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
2,

12
6

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

,12
6

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
60

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

1,1
59

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

11
,7

59
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
5,

0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
15

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

50
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

16
1,5

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

40
0

,0
0

0
$

   
   

  
15

,0
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

0
,4

15
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
40

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
  

12
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

66
3,

22
4

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

28
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

78
,0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
99

,2
26

$
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

99
,2

26
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
95

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
 

36
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

6,
20

0
$

   
   

   
   

 
75

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

13
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,4

90
$

   
   

   
   

 
26

,2
15

$
   

   
   

   
   

  
75

,3
54

$
   

   
   

   
  

1,3
97

$
   

   
   

   
7,

0
0

8
$

   
   

   
   

 
2,

90
5

$
   

   
   

   
 

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

10
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

15
,5

34
$

   
   

   
  

45
8,

38
7

$
   

   
   

   
   

13
4,

22
0

$
   

   
   

   
 

88
9

$
   

   
   

   
  

65
,8

11
$

   
   

   
   

 
1,8

95
$

   
   

   
   

  
12

0
,8

69
$

   
   

   
 

6,
42

1
$

   
   

   
   

11
,17

6
$

   
   

   
   

 
72

1,4
40

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
37

,0
12

$
   

   
   

   
   

1,2
40

$
   

   
   

  
63

,3
27

$
   

   
   

   
2,

29
9

$
   

   
   

   
 

5,
69

6
$

   
   

   
   

 
6,

0
55

$
   

   
   

  
2,

0
24

$
   

   
   

   
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$
   

   
   

   
  

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

-
$

   
   

   
   

   
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  

9
7 8

,7
5

0
$

   
   

   
  

32
,0

6
0

$
   

   
 

1,
5

71
,0

2
6

$
   

   
5

9
,2

6
5

$
   

   
   

 
14

0
,0

0
0

$
   

   
  

14
9

,2
30

$
   

   
6

0
,0

4
6

$
   

   
   

7,
5

14
,3

19
$

   
   

   
   

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

S:
\W

D
Ac

ct
\B

ud
ge

ts
\P

Y2
02

3\
PY

 2
3-

24
 B

ud
ge

t
7/

28
/2

02
3

84 of 84


	2 Agenda Summary - Financial Reports
	2 Item - PY 22-23 May Financial Report
	2a Item - PY 22-23 June Financial Report
	2b Item - PY 22-23 June Expenditure Pie Chart
	2c Item - Narrative of Expenditure categories
	3 Agenda Summary - WIOA Youth Services Contract Renewal for PY2023-2024
	3 Item - WIOA Youth Services Contract - PY2023-2024 DRAFT
	Subrecipient Agreement FOR THE SERVICE PROVIDER OF THE LOCAL WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT AREA 20 CAREER CENTER SYSTEM
	Signatures and Attestations
	Attachment B – Monitoring & Evaluation
	Attachment C – Technical Assistance & Guidance
	Attachment D – Payment Terms
	Attachment E – Negotiated Budget for 2023-2024 Youth Activities
	Attachment F – Designation of Contract Personnel
	Attachment G – Signatory Authority for Invoices
	Attachment I – Certifications & Assurances
	As a condition to the award of financial assistance from the Department of Labor under Title I of the WIOA, the grant applicant assures that it will comply fully with the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions of the following laws:
	 Section 188 of the Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act (WIOA), which prohibits discrimination against all individuals in the United States based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, political affiliation, or belief, an...
	 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, and national origin.
	 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities.
	 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, which prohibits discrimination based on age.
	 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex in educational programs.
	 Section 654 of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981 prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, creed, color, national origin, sex, handicap, political affiliation or beliefs.
	 The American with Disabilities Act of 1990, P.L. 101-336 prohibiting discrimination in all employment practices, including the job application procedures, hiring, firing, advancement, compensation, training, and other terms, conditions, and privileg...
	The Vendor also assures that it will comply with 29 CFR Part 37 and all other regulation implementing the laws listed above.
	ATTACHMENT J - SWORN STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 287.133 (3) (a), FLORIDA STATUTES, ON PUBLIC ENTITY CRIMES
	ATTACHMENT K - CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS
	ATTACHMENT L - BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING CERTIFICATE
	ATTACHMENT M - NONDISCRIMINATION AND EQUAL OPPORTUNITY PROVISIONS ASSURANCE STATEMENT
	 Section 188 of the Workforce Innovation & Opportunity Act (WIOA), Which prohibits discrimination against all individuals in the United States on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, political affiliation or beli...
	 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, which prohibits discrimination based on race, color, and national origin.
	 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, which prohibits discrimination against qualified individuals with disabilities.
	 The Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, which prohibits discrimination based on age.
	 Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, which prohibits discrimination based on sex in educational programs.
	 Section 654 of the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1981 prohibiting discrimination based on race, creed, color, national origin, sex, handicap, political affiliation or beliefs.
	 The American with Disabilities Act of 1990, P.L. 101-336 prohibiting discrimination in all employment practices, including the job application procedures, hiring, firing, advancement, compensation, training, and other terms, conditions, and privileg...
	The Service Provider also assures that it will comply with 29 CFR Part 37 and all other regulation implementing the laws listed above.
	Failure to comply with these provisions may result in termination of any contract or agreement with CSRC.
	I certify that I have read the above statement and on behalf of Eckerd Connects, Inc. agree to comply fully with the provisions contained therein.
	ATTACHMENT N - DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENT CERTIFICATION
	ATTACHMENT O - CERTIFICATION REGARDING SCRUTINIZED COMPANIES
	ATTACHMENT P – LOCAL DEFINITION FOR YOUTH REQUIRING ADDITIONAL ASSISTANCE TO COMPLETE AN EDUCATION PROGRAM OR TO SECURE AND HOLD EMPLOYMENT

	4 Agenda Summary - Review and Approve Revisions to the WIOA Youth Incentive Payments Policy
	4 Item - WIOA Youth - Incentive Payment Policy w changes-August 2023
	4a Item - WIOA Youth - Incentive Payment Policy wo changes-August 2023
	5 Agenda Summary - Review and Approve Revisions to WIOA Youth - Supportive Services Policy
	5 Item - WIOA Youth - Supportive Services Policy w changes - August 2023
	5a Item - WIOA Youth - Supportive Services Policy wo changes - August 2023
	6 Agenda - WIOA-Individual Training Acoount Policy  Agenda Item Summary
	6 Item - WIOA - Individual Training Account Policy w changes- August 2023
	6a Item - WIOA - Individual Training Account Policy wo changes- August 2023
	PURPOSE
	REFERENCE
	BACKGROUND
	POLICY

	7 Agenda Summary - Budget PY22-23
	TITLE:

	7 Item - LWDB20 PY23-24 Budget
	8 Agenda Summary - Board Member COI Exemption Form Request 2023-2024
	STAFF

	8 Item - Board Member Updated Contract - COI Exemption Form PY 23-24 - Revised
	8a Item - Board Member Contract - Boys & Girls Club of St. Lucie County
	COI Disclosure Forms
	CSF Form 8B - Template
	CSF Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form with Form 8B Template.pdf


	8b Item - CSF Contract Information Form - William Armstead
	CSF Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form with Form 8B Template.pdf
	Untitled


	8c Item - Board Member Contract-COI Exemption Form  - Indian River Select
	CSF Contract Info & COI Disclosure Forms  - Template - June 2021
	CSF Form 8B - Template
	CSF Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form with Form 8B Template.pdf


	8d Item - CSF Contract Information Form - Katie Sterling
	CSF Conflict of Interest Disclosure Form with Form 8B Template.pdf
	Untitled


	9 Agenda Summary - EOR - RFP - Contract Award
	The RFP/RFQ Rating Team Compilation is being proposed to the Board for review and approval. Based upon the cumulative rating score of the team, Manpower, Inc. has been determined the most advantageous contract award for CSRC.

	9 Item - RFP 23-002-OSO Composite Rating Sheet signed
	9a Item - RFP 23-002-OSO COST ESTIMATE
	10 Agenda Summary - Executive Staff Performance-Based Bonuses.pdf
	CSRC’s Employee Bonus Policy allows for non-discretionary, performance-based, year-end bonuses for all CSRC staff not to exceed 5% of an employee’s annual salary.

	Executive Committee Agenda - 8-11-2023.pdf
	Meeting Details
	MS Teams Virtual Meeting Access:

	Executive Committee Agenda - 8-11-2023.pdf
	Meeting Details
	MS Teams Virtual Meeting Access:


	Group3: Off
	Contractor Contact Phone Number_2: 772-460-9918
	Identification of all parties to the contract: CareerSource Research Coast/LWDB20
	Contractor Name  Address: William Armstead, 31904 Avenue J, Fort Pierce, FL 34947
	Contract Number or Other Identifying Information if any: n/a
	Contract Term: PY23-24
	Value of the Contract with no extensions or renewals exercised: Under $30,000
	Value of the Contract with all extensions and renewals exercised: n/a
	Method of procurement for the goods andor services to be procured: n/a
	23 vote: William Armstead
	The nature of the conflicting interest in the contract: Financial gain to parent organization
	Print Name: Leslie Kristof
	Description of goods andor services to be procured: Approved training provider TANF Summer Youth Teen Pregnancy Prevention Program
	Text7: Lelsie Kristof
	Date: 


